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COMPANY PROFILE
AFET

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration turnkey
solution provider in China. According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group
are the largest solution provider in China in 2017, with market share
of 19.8% in terms of revenue from providing centralised hazardous
waste incineration solutions, and with market share of 37.3% for
centralised incineration of hazardous waste in terms of aggregate
designed disposal capacity of projects. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group has 12 completed hazardous waste incineration projects
with aggregate designed disposal capacity of 215,000 tonnes per
annum, and 17 outstanding hazardous waste incineration projects
with aggregate designed disposal capacity of 436,000 tonnes per

annum.

The shares of the Company had been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 3 January 2019.

Leveraging its experience and expertise in hazardous waste
incineration, the Group has expanded its offerings to other areas
of solid waste treatment, such as thermal desorption of oil sludge,
pyrolysis treatment of solid waste and cement plant parallel
kiln co-treatment. As at 31 December 2018, the Group already
successfully entered into aforementioned new business areas with
some new customers or potential customers, such as the first oil
sludge thermal desorption project of the Group located in Karamay,
Xinjiang, the first waste paper residues pyrolysis project of the
Group located in Shandong, the first waste new energy batteries
pyrolysis project of the Group located in Hunan, and the first
cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment of the Group in negotiation

stage located in Guangdong.

The Group will continue to focus on the technology innovation
to maintain its advanced technology and strong R&D capability.
To capture the opportunities brought by the policies for the
development of the environmental protection industry and the
huge demand of industrial enterprise to comply with increasingly
tighter environmental protection policies, the Group will leverage
its technology advantage to expanding its business into more and
more new areas, and devote itself to become a leading solid waste

treatment solutions provider in China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cai Zhuhua
Mr. Gu Chunbin

LEGAL ADVISERS TO OUR COMPANY

As to Hong Kong law:

Miao & Co.

(in Association with Han Kun Law Offices)
Rooms 3901-05, 39/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands law:
Walkers (Hong Kong)

15th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

Han Kun Law Offices

Room 2103-04, 21/F, Tower 3
Kerry Plaza

1-1 Zhongxinsi Road

Futian District

Shenzhen 518048

PRC

AUDITORS AND REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Altus Capital Limited
21 Wing Wo Street
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cayman Corporate Centre

27 Hospital Road, George Town
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

14-15/F, Block A4

No. 181 Science Boulevard
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province
China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3507, 35/F, AIA Tower
183 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
Cayman Corporate Centre
27 Hospital Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

PRINCIPAL BANK

Bank of Guangzhou

Science City Branch

3/F, Science and Technology
Innovation Base Complex

80 Lanyue Road

Science City, Guangzhou
Guangdong Province

China

China Merchants Bank

Hong Kong Branch

31/F, Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place, Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1845

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.gzweigang.com/

DATE OF LISTING

3 January 2019
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB480.1 million, representing an increase of 153.5%
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit of the
Group amounted to RMB124.7 million and the gross profit margin
of the Group was 26.0%, representing an increase of 100.8% and
decrease of 6.8 percentage points as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2017, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net profit of the Group
amounted to RMB57.4 million, and the net profit margin of the Group
was 12.0%, representing an increase of 92.6% and decrease of 3.8
percentage points as compared with the year ended 31 December
2017.

If excluding the listing expense incurred, the adjusted net profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB69.7 million, the net
profit margin was 14.5%.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB49.8 million, representing
an increase of 64.9% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMBO0.049, as
compared to RMB0.032 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE  REEHWA
BARKE 4801 BEL * BEE20174F 12 A 31
BIEFE#EIN153.5% °

HZE2018F12A31BHIEFE  AEBHEF
BARE1247H5E T MASENERNEL A
26.0% D RIREE2017F12 31 HIEFE
#h1100.8% KEi 6.8 EH D2 °

HE2018F12A31HILFE  REBAOLLF
BARESTABEL  MAKERFFEAA
12.0% ' D RIEE E2017F 12 A1 B IEFE
#IN92.6% K iE A 3.8 EH 72 -

WABEMEEN EMAS B Z=2018F12
A31BHILFENSARGTH AARKE7TEHE
TG TR FRBNA14.5% °

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE AR a#EA A
FEEFEAARK498EHET ' REZE20175F
1231 HIEFEEIMN64.9% °

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE  ARA#HA A
EESREAEF A ARK00497T MEZE
2017 12 A31 HIEFERA B AR 0.0327T °

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2018 2017 2016 2015
2018 2017 % 2016 F 2015 &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT | ARKFT AREFT AREFT

Revenue A 480,091 189,407 88,971 74,883

Gross profit EF 124,663 62,104 28,840 26,713

Profit before income tax MR BT 15 35 A A1) 67,970 36,379 22,880 20,720

Income tax expense Fri5Hif = (10,559) (6,620) (3,357) (5,105)

Profit for the year FAFE 57,411 29,759 19,523 15,615

Profit attributable to: PR & 7 RS ¢
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIEZZ=N 49,799 30,195 19,523 15,615
Non-controlling interests R 7,612 (436) — —
As at 31 December
R12H31H

2018 2017 2016 2015

2018 F 2017 & 2016 F 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT | AREFT ARETT ARETT

Total Assets BEMAE 469,735 253,053 90,842 63,904

Total liabilities BEHERE 310,445 218,356 38,443 31,028
Equity attributable to the RAEHEE NELER

owners of the Company 132,070 35,188 52,399 32,876
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEF

On behalf of the Board, | am hereby pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
future outlook of 2019.

2018 REVIEW

The year of 2018 was an extremely meaningful year for the
development of the Group, which the Group has taken a solid
step for its commitment to become a leading solid waste treatment
solutions provider in China. The strategic arrangement on the
Group’s shareholding structure and the smooth transition of the
Group’s business structure have laid a solid foundation for the
Group to tap into the capital markets in Hong Kong. In 2018,
by capturing the opportunities brought along with the favorable
environmental policies promulgated by the government in the
People’'s Republic of China (“PRC”), the Group’s business has
achieved higher growth in revenue and profit, which to some extent
contributed to the pollution prevention and control and energy

conservation in China.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2019, the Group will continue to capture the
opportunities brought by the policies for the development of the
environmental protection industry, and actively seize more business
opportunities from solid waste treatment by commercialising its
advanced solid waste treatment technologies to market with the
resources from strategic shareholders, the capital market network,
and its strong R&D capabilities. The Group will still continue to
focus on the technology innovation to further expand the Group’s
business scope, maintain the Group’s leading position in the market,
maximize shareholder returns and optimize the Group’s commitment
of becoming a leading solid waste treatment solutions provider in
China.

CAIl Zhuhua

Chairman

26 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution provider in China focused on
the research, design, integration and commissioning of solid
waste treatment systems, particularly for hazardous waste
incineration. Leveraging its experience and expertise in
hazardous waste incineration, the Group has expanded its
offerings to other areas of solid waste treatment, such as
thermal desorption of oil sludge, pyrolysis treatment of solid
waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment. The Group
conduct research and development of technologies related to
these new areas and have successfully applied some of them

to its new solid waste treatment projects.

In 2018, the Group primarily engaged in and generated a
substantial portion of the revenue from the design, integration
and commissioning of hazardous waste incineration systems

in China.
Provision of Hazardous Waste Incineration Solutions

Before 2018, the Group has 7 completed hazardous waste
incineration projects with aggregate designed disposal
capacity of 110,000 tonnes per annum which were passed
to the Group’s customers in normal operation. In 2018, the
Group completed 5 more hazardous waste incineration
projects which located in Hebei, Guangdong and Jiangxi with
an aggregate designed disposal capacity of approximately
105,000 tonnes per annum. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group took 17 outstanding hazardous waste incineration
projects on hand, covering 17 cities in China with an
aggregate designed disposal capacity of approximately
436,000 tonnes per annum. The table below sets out the
summary of the completed hazardous waste incineration
projects in 2018 and the outstanding hazardous waste

incineration projects as at 31 December 2018:

I E R

AEBERTEBENGAEREMRIER
ERBERREMRE - TEINERBEY
RBRERG(LERBRENRELREZR)
BT - REF - SRREAR o BEAKE
EEREMRERETHNKRIEXAM
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Y E M SR - ARERABLHT - BB RE AN
EARBEENIOEREEFITIHRE
E - AREMREZSHEEAEORM
W - WERD A ER D T AR R E AR
BB EYRRIZAE -

2018 4F » AEEFEHEFERHEERE
MIRIERE ZHNER - EREAR I
BHFAEERK—BIUA °

RUCRBURBEERARTR

20184 A » ANEE T T 7E E R &
MREREBEVYERNEFEL THEHI
FTRAEBNEP R RFAEREENA
110,000MF /" 4F - FA20184F + A & E 58
HNSERK T BEMIAA AL - BR KT ARG
SEVMNEREER © RETRiT AR
#)/105,00088 /& - %2018 12 A 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Completed hazardous waste incineration projects in 2018: R2018F R THEREYREREER
Designed
Disposal/
Treatment
Capacity
No. Project (tonnes per annum)
REIBRERERED
wms EB (W, )
1 Hebei Hengshui hazardous waste incineration AL EKERE R G R B TE B 20,000
project
2 Solid Waste Comprehensive Treatment Centre BREFIEEEEED 20,000
of Qingyuan Overseas Chinese Industrial Park RERBRUBERER
hazardous waste incineration project EIHH
3 Fujian Quanzhou hazardous waste incineration BEIMNEERERETEE 20,000
project
Jiujiang hazardous waste incineration project NIBEREEERE 20,000
Fujian Nanping hazardous waste incineration REBMTEEREEEEE 25,000
project
Total et 105,000
* Completed project is defined as which the system functionality * B & TIH A RE BT XA EE NG5 A H
evaluation is completed. A -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Outstanding hazardous waste incineration projects as at 31

December 2018:

No.

5

© O N o O b

11

12

13

14

15

16
17

Project

HE

Shandong Weifang hazardous waste incineration
project

Taixing Economic Development Zone hazardous
waste Incineration project

Jiangxi Ganzhou hazardous waste incineration
project

Shanghai hazardous waste incineration project

Yantai hazardous waste incineration project

Nantong hazardous waste incineration project

Xiamen hazardous waste incineration project

Shaoxing hazardous waste incineration project

Suzhou Industrial Park solid waste comprehensive
treatment project

Fuzhou hazardous waste incineration project

Hubei Yaojiagang industrial waste treatment and
utilisation project |

Hebei Tangshan Caofeidian hazardous waste
incineration project

Sichuan Chengdu hazardous waste incineration
project Il

Jiangsu Nanjing hazardous waste incineration
project

Foshan hazardous waste incineration project

Dongguan hazardous wasteincineration project

Henan Puyang hazardous waste incineration

project

Total

WA BREDRERE
HE

THEFREERERRR
EEMRIERER B

TSN ERER R EIRE

FEEEREREEIER
EaEEREREIER
FMREEREREEE
EFEEREREER
BEEERGEREIE R
N TEREERE RS R
EH
BINEEREREIER
WAL RB TEBEYRIE &
BIR{LIEE — 8
AL ILE i | R EE e
R EIEE
)1 R AR & R B 4 BE B 0
—H
IEHEREREDRELE
EH
HILEEREREEER
RERERERSEE
RIS EEREEEIEE

R2018F 12 A1 HE AT I BREY
REEREEE

Designed

Disposal/
Treatment

Capacity

(tonnes per annum)
RITEEREESD
(Wi, %)

50,000
30,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
20,000

30,000

20,000
30,000

20,000

30,000

21,000

30,000

20,000
15,000

436,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

(i)  General increase in market demand

There was a general increase in market demand driven
by various factors such as the increasing hazardous
waste suitable for incineration, the increasing number of
centralised incineration facilities as well as favourable

government policy support.
(ii)  Increased customer recognition

The Group has been focusing on hazardous waste
incineration treatment solutions to the facility operators
and other customers with large solid waste output and
environmental compliance needs. With many years
of experience, the Group has gradually accumulated
an extensive knowledge pool and has built its brand
recognition among hazardous waste treatment facility
operators in China. The increased customer recognition
facilitates the Group’s exploration of new customers and
it is able to obtain more projects through customers’

referral.
Provision of Oil Sludge Thermal Desorption Solution

In the 4th quarter of 2018, the first thermal desorption project
of the Group which located in Karamay, Xinjiang, has already
commenced operation and generated revenue amounted to
RMB10.7 million.

Provision of Pyrolysis Treatment of Solid Waste Solution

In 2018, we had entered into a service contract with a paper
manufacturer in Shandong province for the commissioning
and operation of waste paper residues pyrolysis project
with designed disposal capacity of approximately 15,000
tonnes per annum. Up to 26 March 2019, this project is in
the process of environmental assessment and expected to

commence operation in 2019.

We also entered into a contract with a waste new energy
batteries recycling company in Hunan province for the
design, integration and commissioning of waste new energy
batteries pyrolysis project with designed disposal capacity of
approximately 14,000 tonnes per annum. The contract amount
is RMB27.0 million and up to 26 March 2019, this project is in

the process of solution design.

(i) TEFEREEER

MizHm KX S HEE RS ME LY
R WEARRERRREYIL
N S AR B R e BUE G N R
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REE-BEEIRARMEELERNR
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72 P B AT e BE ) R TR BR B A TS
FEVEMOREANEE BEFPR
AEMRARFAEBRERENE
P mEXREEBRENBBEF,H
EHNESELIER -

RECHE LM R TR

R2018 FENEE - AEEEHEFBERAL
IBIREAKITER DR EE  WELS T
AARKEA10.7BET °

RUBEBEMNESRBERERATR

2018 4F « B Mt BE A B M A M fE TH B
MR REEE LRGN —REREET L
REALD R EEL N4 A 150008
F o HE2019F3H26H ' ZBERHILEE
HEATIRIEATE - BEH R 2019F s &

f

BT EEH R E N EANEEE K
&%~%W&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mf%@%%
BEREM BRI B L - REHEE A

%ﬁman/ﬁfpmﬁﬁﬁﬁAE%

270B B MAEZE201943A26H -
FRAEENT AN G O
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Provision of Cement Plant Co-treatment of Hazardous
Waste Solution

In 2018, we had entered into a letter of intent with the cement
producer and we were in the process of negotiating the
commercial terms with this cement producer for the Co-

treatment Cooperation.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The overall operating results of the Group for 2018 has
grown substantially as compared with 2017; and the financial
conditions of the Group for 2018 maintained steady which
strongly supported the Group’s strategic development. The
operating revenue increased significantly as the Group
successfully seized strategic opportunities under the
enhanced environmental management in the PRC. After
deduction of the effects from decrease in gross profit margin
rate, the profit increased substantially as compared to that
of 2017. The Group continued to low asset-liability ratio and
maintain sufficient cash resource to lay a solid foundation for
the Group’s development. The Group also successfully tapped
into new areas of thermal desorption of oil sludge, pyrolysis
treatment of solid waste and cement plant parallel kiln co-

treatment.
Revenue

Revenue increased by 153.5% from RMB189.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB480.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. This increase was mainly
attributable to the rapid growth of our hazardous waste

incineration treatment business.

The Group derived the majority of its revenue from provision
of hazardous waste incineration solutions and the remainder
from provision of oil sludge thermal desorption solution,
pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions and other services

including technical upgrading and maintenance services.

1R ALK TR R 155 (5] BE 22 12 B BE WD R OR 5 R

2018 F » BB K REEREF &R
E2 BrFFEEZKELERMHREES
VET R P SE IR K ©

MBRRREERE

L2017 FAELL - NEER 2018 F MBS
BB ABER - MASER2018
FHOPBARREIFIRTE - ANEE LB
ERREH-RMANNZE - REEEEF
Bl pnsa 3R 3R B IR AT R A B R A - AL
WA B ARG N » MR EF K TREAF
2% FER2017FARBER - AEEE
EBEXHERCHEFENRCER A
REEMNERET TREMNEN - AEE
RN &R - R RN - B
By ESHEEIE KRR ETIT
BEEE -

WA

WAHREZ2017F12A31H LFE W
AR¥189.48 & TIEN153.5% & &
2018 12 AB1HIEFE M AR 480.1
BET ZERFEBEAREREME
REEBRFER -

AEE A B D WA B RE B E YT
BREFRTR  FBRBRAKARMHTE
MBMERS R - BRBEYNEARNER
IR RR I3 78 I LA BR 7 (B4R BT THAR B
&R -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %)

13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Revenue from hazardous waste incineration solutions
increased by 152.6% from RMB176.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB444.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. This increase was mainly driven by

a combination of favourable factors below:
(i)  General increase in market demand

According to Frost & Sullivan, the total revenue of
solution providers for large-scale centralized hazardous
waste incineration facilities in China increased at a
CAGR of 42.3% from 2013 to 2017, and is expected
to increase from 2018 to 2022 at a CAGR of 7.7% and
achieve RMB1,688 million in 2022.

(ii)  Increased customer recognition

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had business
relationships with five of the ten largest centralized
hazardous waste treatment facility operators in China
and established stable partnership relationship with
them. Benefit from the Group’s outstanding industry

reputation, the Group won 4 new customers in 2018.

The Group’s revenue generated from the provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB10.7 million (2017: nil),
which were attributable to the Group’s first oil sludge thermal

desorption project commenced operation in 2018.

The Group recognized revenue from the provision of pyrolysis
treatment of solid waste solution amounted to RMB4.1 million

(2017: nil) due to the Jiangmen project progress in 2018.

Revenue from other services (including technical upgrading
services and maintenance services) increased by 55.3%
from RMB13.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB20.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
This increase was attributable to the customer demand
for maintenance of hazardous waste incineration projects
increase, which is in line with the Group’s expansion in

hazardous waste incineration business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Cost of Services

Cost of services increased by 179.2% from RMB127.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB355.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. This increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in cost of services for the Group’s

hazardous waste incineration treatment business.

Cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste incineration
treatment business consists primarily of (i) cost of equipment
and materials; (ii) direct labour costs; (iii) sub-contracting

costs; and (iv) others.

The cost of services for the Group’s hazardous waste
incineration treatment business increased by 188.5% from
RMB114.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB331.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
This increase was mainly due to the Group’s expansion in

hazardous waste incineration business.

The Group’s cost of services generated for provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB2.8 million (2017: nil),
which were attributable to the Group’s first oil sludge thermal
desorption project commenced operation in 2018. The cost of
services for provision of oil sludge thermal desorption solution
primarily consist of energy consumption, depreciation, staff

cost and other miscellaneous expenses.

Cost of services for other services increased by 48% from
RMB12.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
This increase was attributable to the customer demand
for maintenance of hazardous waste incineration projects
increase, which is in line with the Group’s expansion in

hazardous waste incineration business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by 100.8% from RMB62.1
million for the year 2017 to RMB124.7 million for the year
2018, while the gross profit margin decrease from 32.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 26.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and

gross profit margin for each of the business segments for the

EMRERE

AREBMBOERKE2017F 89 A R #62.1
A BT iN100.8% £ 2018 F M A R #
1247 B&TT - MEMERBZE2017F 12
A31BIEFEN32.8% P EEHE2018
F12A31HIEFER26.0% °

TRBIIN AR A R E S L5 B
EFRERE -

periods stated.

Gross profit GP margin
E7 EF=E
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F 2018 % 2017

RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREEET

RMB million RMB million
AR¥EET AREBET

Hazardous waste incineration BERREYIT KR & R

solutions AR 113.6 61.4 25.5% 34.8%
Pyrolysis solid waste treatment EENREBEVRE N/A

solutions R & 1.2 — 29.3% TiEA
Oil sludge thermal desorption SR ZR i B 52 22 AR 75 N/A

treatment services 7.9 — 73.8% TE A
Technical upgrading services Ffa R % 0.6 0.4 5.4% 3.5%
Maintenance services K ERTS 1.4 0.3 14.9% 16.7%
Total A&t 124.7 62.1 26.0% 32.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

The gross profit of hazardous waste incineration solutions
increased by 85.0% from RMB61.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to RMB113.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. This increase was mainly attributable to the
rapid growth of our hazardous waste incineration treatment
business. The gross profit margin of hazardous waste
incineration solutions decreased from 34.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 25.5% for the year ended 31
December 2018 primarily due to (i) the Company has adjusted
the project price of the hazardous waste incineration solutions
in view of the intense competition in the market and in order
to scale up our operations and obtain more market share; and
(i) the Company has procured equipment and materials with
higher cost for installation of certain hazardous incineration
systems so as to improve the quality of our systems, enhance
our corporate brand and maintain better relationship with our

customers.

The gross profit of provision of oil sludge thermal desorption
solution for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to RMB7.9 million (2017: nil), which were attributable to the
Group'’s first oil sludge thermal desorption project commenced
operation in 2018. The gross profit margin of provision of oil
sludge thermal desorption solution was 73.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

The gross profit of other services increased by 185.7%
from RMBO.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
This increase was attributable to the customers’ demand
for maintenance of hazardous waste incineration projects
increase, which is in line with the Group’s expansion in
hazardous waste incineration business. The gross profit
margin of other services increased from 5.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 9.8% for the year ended
31 December 2018 primarily due to the proportion of the
maintenance services in the total other services increase,
which had higher gross profit margin than the technical

upgrading services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Other Income, Gains and Losses

The Group’s other income and gains increased by 237.5%
from RMB2.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB8.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
primarily attributable to 1) compensation revenue amounted to
RMBS3.8 million by a counterparty for its default of contract in
relation to a hazardous waste incineration project in Suzhou;
2) foreign exchange gains amounted to RMB3.2 million due
to depreciation of HK Dollars against RMB which affected the

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in HK Dollars.
Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 138.5%
from RMB11.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB27.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
primarily attributable to (i) an increase in staff salaries and
benefits of RMB7.1 million as the Company has hired more
staff for role of management, finance and administration for
the business growth, and recognised share option expense
amounted to RMB2.2 million; (ii) an increase in professional
fees of RMB3.0 million as more professionals has been
engaged to provide consultancy services in relation to the
business operations, financial management and strategic
development; and (iii) an increase of approximately RMB2.0
million for certain advertising activities with an aim to
enhance corporate recognition of the Company and for other
miscellaneous administrative expenses for the expanded

business.
Other Expenses

Other expenses include (i) listing expenses; and (ii) research
and development expenses, including staff costs, material
and other related costs mainly in connection with the research

and development of solid waste treatment applications.

The listing expenses of the Company was approximately
RMB12.3 million in connection for the year ended 31
December 2018, which included in the professional fees and

other fees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

The Group’s research and development expenses increased
by 104.9% from RMB8.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB16.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, primarily attributable to the Group continued
our focus of research and development on hazardous waste

incineration solutions and new area.
Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 1,400% from RMBO0.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB6.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, primarily
attributable to the interest on obligation arising from a put
option amounted to RMB5.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

On 4 April 2018, the Group entered into two joint venture
agreements with Orient Landscape Group Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd. (“Orient Landscape”) for the investment
in Guangzhou Weigang. Pursuant to such agreements, the
Group granted Orient Landscape a put option, which if the
Listing does not take place on or before 3 April 2020, Orient
Landscape is entitled to require the Group to purchase all
of the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient
Landscape at a price equal to the sum of (i) the Subscription
Price plus an interest of 8% per annum and (ii) any declared

but unpaid dividends.

Pursuant to the put option aforementioned, the investment
from Orient Landscape is recognised as obligation arising
from a put option, and the corresponding interest of 8% per
annum during 2018 is recognised in obligation arising from
a put option and profit or loss. Pursuant to such agreements
aforementioned, as the Listing of the Company already
succeeded, the put option lapsed and all the previously
recognised interest expenses will be reversed through equity
at the Listing date of the Company in 2019 without any

payment to Orient Landscape.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists of current tax and deferred tax for

PRC enterprise income tax.

The Company operated business principally through its PRC
subsidiaries which were subject to the PRC enterprise income
tax at a statutory rate of 25% on its estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 25%).
Guangzhou Weigang was recognised as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” in 2016 and was entitled to a
preferential PRC income tax rate of 15% for each of 2016,
2017 and 2018 and such recognition can be applied for

renewal every three years.

The Group’s effective tax rate decreased from 18.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to 15.6% for the year ended
31 December 2018, primarily due to the Group had super-
deduction on R&D expenses for income tax amounted to
RMB3.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year increased by 92.6% from RMB29.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB57.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 mainly due to the Groups
rapid growth in business. The net profit margin decrease from
15.7% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 12.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 mainly due to the decrease of

gross profit margin.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s principal capital requirements are to pay
for working capital needs and capital expenditures on
equipment and intangible assets. The Group met these capital
requirements by relying on its cash at banks, net cash flows
from operating activities and net proceeds from the Listing
as its principal source of funding. The Directors are of the
view that the Group has sufficient working capital required for
the Group’s operations at present and for the year ending 31
December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Trade and note receivables

The increase in trade and note receivables from RMB57.8
million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB142.8 million as at 31
December 2018 was primarily due to an increase in the total

number of ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.

The average trade receivables turnover days decreased
from 76.9 days in 2017 to 67.1 days in 2018 as the Group
continued to spend more efforts in collecting trade receivables

in a timely manner.
Trade payables

The increase in trade payables from RMB32.9 million as at
31 December 2017 to RMB84.1 million as at 31 December
2018 was primarily due to an increase in the procurement of
equipment and materials, as well as sub-contracting services
which was generally in line with the expanded business
and number of outstanding projects of hazardous waste

incineration at the end of 2018.

The average trade payables turnover days decreased from
61.4 days in 2017 to 60.1 days in 2018 as the Group intended
to maintain steady trade payables turnover days.

Contract assets

The increase in contract assets from RMB69.4 million as at
31 December 2017 to RMB177.0 million as at 31 December
2018 was primarily due to an increase in our total number of

ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.
Contract liabilities

The increase in contract liabilities from RMB67.8 million as
at 31 December 2017 to RMB72.9 million as at 31 December
2018 was primarily due to an increase in our total number of

ongoing hazardous waste incineration projects.

BEZRUWHERERRE

BHRWRIBRERZEE2017F 124
S1TEHMARBSE7.8EELIEME20184F
12A31EMARKE1428BEL  TER
FHEEEETHNEREYNIEREER &
g o

B S EBGRIER T EE B EE 2017 F6)
76 9H B E2018F M67.1H  RERXR
SEEBNES N RFWEE S EIEE -

B 5 RARIE

ZoRENKEA2017F 12831 BEHAR
32 9BH BT MNE 20184 12 A31 B
ARKE8ANEE L XZRARKMRE
R @AM RS A RS BRSBTS
AR ERIRR K 2018 FIE LA EITARG
BEMREEEBHE -

B S RNFIENTHEEAEE 2017 48
61.4 B E2018F M60.1H - REAZK
EEEERFEENE HENFIBFHIE
EHE -

BHEE

AHMEEB2017TF12A31TEH AR
69.4HETIEME20184 12 A31 HHA
R¥E1770887T FZREAZEEET
MR EYI B E ETH B AEE M -

BHAEE

AHAEBEA2017TF12A31THHN AR
67.8HETEME20184F 12 A31 HHA
RET290HET  TERARIELETH
EREYRGEEER B BEEM -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %)

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEESNWmE DM

Bank Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank borrowings
of RMB10.0 million provided by a commercial bank in China
with personal guarantees provided by the Group’s controlling
shareholder, Mr. Cai, and his spouse, Ms. Huang Ying (2017:
RMB11.0 million).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s material
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB11.7
million (2017: RMB17.3 million), mainly used for (1) the
purchase of oil sludge treatment facility for the Group’s first
thermal desorption project in Karamay, which has commenced
operation in 2018; (2) the purchase of patents for pyrolysis
solid waste treatment methods, which is the Group’s key R&D

area in the future.
Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitment
amounted to RMB4.6 million (2017: RMB6.5 million) which
consisted mainly of payments to be made for the waste paper

residues pyrolysis project in Shandong province.
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged deposits
of RMB43.9 million (2017: RMB8.9 million) mainly for (1)
deposit for bank acceptance which the Groups issued to its
suppliers amounted to RMB10.3 million; and (2) deposit for
bank guarantee given to several customers for performance

obligation fulfilment amounted to RMB33.6 million.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.
Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the current assets of the Group
were approximately RMB400.8 million, total assets were
approximately RMB469.7 million, current liabilities were
approximately RMB210.5 million and total liabilities were
approximately RMB310.4 million. The gearing ratio (total
liabilities/total assets) of the Group was approximately 66.1%
(2017: 86.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2019, the Group will continue to capture
the opportunities brought by the policies for the development
of the environmental protection industry, and actively seize
more business opportunities from solid waste treatment
by commercialising its advanced solid waste treatment
technologies to market with the resources from strategic
shareholders, the capital market network, and its strong R&D
capabilities. The Group will still continue to focus on the
technology innovation to further expand the Group’s business
scope, maintain the Group’s leading position in the market,
maximize shareholder returns and optimize the Group’s
commitment of becoming a leading solid waste treatment

solutions provider in China.

Leveraging on our comprehensive understanding of the market
environment, in 2019 the Group has planned to focus on the

following tasks in order to achieve its goals:

Establish and utilize our research and engineering centre

to enhance service standards

Many of the various solid waste treatment technologies under
developing are at a relatively early development stage and
face uncertainties with respect to experiment process and
prototyping outcomes, so the Group needs to establish an
internal R&D centre. The Group will conduct targeted and
application oriented researches either by its own team or in
collaboration with experts from industry-renowned universities
and institutions in China, and carry out, through inhouse
pilot systems, prototyping, integration and testing of system
components to enhance the feasibility and adaptability of the

technology.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Continue to consolidate the leading market position and
expand the market share on hazardous waste incineration

The Group focus to: (1) Further improving technics on
hazardous waste incineration treatments; (2) Continue
to cultivate customer relationships as well as explore
new customers in both China and oversea markets; (3)
Facilitate more frequent communications and provide more
comprehensive value-add services with industry participants;
and (4) Further investment on other area of hazardous waste
treatment, including applying the facilities of oil sludge
thermal desorption technology, upgrading cement production
facilities to implement hazardous waste cooperative disposal

system and etc.

Grasp more business opportunities on solid waste

treatment through industrialization of pyrolysis technology

The Group will explore the demand of market by developing
and commercializing solutions for a number of new solid
waste treatment applications such as with respect to waste

new energy batteries and waste paper residues.

Further enhance our competitiveness and risk
management with the adoption of more project models

The Group seeks the chance to participate in solid waste
treatment projects by exploring different project models, such
as the first operation and maintenance services project, an
oil sludge treatment facility designed and commissioned in
Karamay. In future, the Group may also consider investing
in and/or operating its own solid waste treatment projects as
primary or joint project owner in other new area of solid waste

treatment industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior

management and comparable market practices.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 200 employees
(2017: 107 employees), among which approximately 150 were
personnel conducting R&D, project management and execution for

our business.

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject to

the approval of the shareholders general meeting.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 3 January 2019 (“Listing Date”) and the net proceeds raised
from the global offering were approximately HK$285.5 million. We
intend to use approximately HK$114.2 million for the continual
utilization of the pyrolysis technology for the treatment of various
types of solid waste by pyrolysis treatment systems; approximately
HK$57.1 million for the establishment of a research and engineering
centre in Guangdong province; approximately HK$42.8 million
for further commercialisation of oil sludge thermal desorption
technology; approximately HK$42.90 million for cooperation with
cement producers in China to invest in and operate the business
of cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment solutions. Due to the fact
that the Company was listed on 3 January 2019, there were no
proceeds raised as at 31 December 2018. After the Listing Date,
such net proceeds will be applied in accordance with the proposed
application as disclosed in the prospectus dated 19 December
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWR D

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Adoption of Dividend Policy

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 26
March 2019 (“Dividend Policy”) that aims to set out the principles
and guidelines of the Company in relation to the declaration,

recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should
be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
When considering dividend declaration recommendation, the Board

shall take into account of the following factors:
(i) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(i) capital requirement for the Group'’s existing/potential project

or investment;

(iii)  earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable

reserves of the Company and the Group; and
(iv)  other factors that the Board deem relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
provisions of the Articles of the Company, the Companies Law
of the Cayman lIslands and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to
recommend final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and
to declare or not to declare any other dividends, including but
not limited to interim and/or special dividends, after taking into

consideration the factors as stated in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended and modified from

time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

DIRECTORS

Name

e

Mr. CAl Zhuhua
BIRE S E

Mr. DONG Honghui
EAESE

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BkELEAE

Mr. REN Jingfeng
EREEE

Mr. YANG Zhigiang
BEREE

Mr. YANG Zhifeng
HEIELE

Mr. FENG Tao
VB

Mr. JIANG Guoliang
BEIREE

B

Age
FiR

55
55 5%

48
48 5%,

52
52 5%

76
76 5%

58
58 5%

55
55 5%

44
44 5%

43
43 5%

Date of appointment

EBREAH

18 May 2017
201745 H 18 B

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27 A

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27 A

8 November 2018
20184 11 A8 H

3 January 2019
20194 1HA3H

3 January 2019
20194 1HA3H

3 January 2019
20194 1HA3H

Position

B

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Non-executive Director

FHITEF

Non-executive Director

FHITEF

Independent non-executive Director

BWIUIFNITES

Independent non-executive Director

BWUFNITES

Independent non-executive Director

BWIUFNITES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

Mr. CAl Zhuhua, aged 55, is an executive Director and the
chairman of our Board since 27 April 2018. Mr. CAl is responsible
for the management of the Board and the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr.
CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG, who is a member of our senior
management. Mr. CAl is also the chairman of the nomination

committee of the Board.

Mr. CAl has over 20 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions and in particular for hazardous waste

incineration.

Mr. CAl was awarded a bachelor's degree in welding engineering
by South China University of Technology* (¥FI2 T AE) (then
known as South China Engineering College* (/@ T £t )) in
the PRC in July 1984. Mr. CAl was certified as an engineer by
Guangzhou Science and Technology Committee* (/N &I E
8€) in March 1993.

Mr. DONG Honghui, aged 48, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DONG is responsible for the daily operation of our
Group.

Mr. DONG has over 13 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. Mr. DONG joined the Group in 2009 and has
been the general manager of Guangzhou Weigang Environmental
Protection Technology Limited* (B /M # B R EREBHEER A7)
(“Guangzhou Weigang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. DONG obtained a bachelor's degree in material science and
engineering from Northwestern Polytechnical University* (7 1t
T2 KE) in China in July 1993. Mr. DONG was certified as a
mechanical engineer by Guangzhou Personnel Bureau* (E/NH ASE
/&) in January 2003.

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan, aged 52, is an executive Director since 27
April 2018. Mr. DENG is responsible for the project management,
technical supervision and research and development for our

Group’s business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EESRSREEE

Mr. DENG has over 12 years’ experience in providing solid waste
treatment solutions. He joined our Group in 2009 and has been
the chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Guangzhou
Weigang. In addition, he is also a director of a certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. DENG received a bachelor's degree in Cementitious Material
Science from South China University of Technology* (#ERFIET A
&) in China in July 1988. Mr. DENG was certified as a cement
production process engineer by Guangdong International Trust &
Investment Co., Ltd.* (BERBEEEFEEEAR]) in November 1995.

Mr. REN Jingfeng, aged 76, was appointed as the non-executive
Director in April 2018. Mr. REN is responsible for supervising and

providing engineering technology advice to the Board.

Mr. REN Jingfeng graduated from the PRC Military Institute of
Engineering for People’s Liberation Army* (FEARMBHREET S TIE
&7 ) in March 1966. He was awarded a certificate for completion
of national technological contract law training course* (& BRIl
ARVEEEIRITAEEFEE) by the State Science and Technology
Commission* (BREIEFTEZEE) and the Legal Affairs Bureau
of the State Council* (B#BAHIB) in October 1987. Mr. REN
Jingfeng also received a certificate of qualification for senior
engineer® (F3# Ti2f0) by the Aviation Industry Department* (f22
T %38) of Shaanxi Job Title Reform Leading Committee* (PRFE4 B
T ELEE /AR in June 1988.

Mr. REN Jingfeng is the father of Mr. REN, one of our substantial
Shareholders.

Mr. YANG Zhigiang, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive

Director in November 2018.

Mr. YANG served as the chief legal officer of China Everbright
International Limited (FFEIY KBEEARAR) (“CEIL"), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 257), from
July 2012 to March 2016, and as a non-executive director of China
Everbright Water Limited (B¢ KK AR A7), a subsidiary
of CEIL and listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (stock code: U9E.SG), from December
2014 to February 2017.

Mr. YANG has been serving as the executive director and vice
president of China Everbright Greentech, the shares of which are

listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1257), since May 2017.
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EENEREEE

Mr. YANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree from the Medical Science
Department of Beijing Medical University* (L RERIKE) in the
PRC and a postgraduate diploma in law from the College of Law of
England and Wales. Mr. YANG has the qualification of an attending

doctor and is a qualified lawyer in the PRC.

Mr. YANG Zhifeng, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. YANG has over 23 years of experience in research and
education in the environmental science field. Since October
1995, Mr. YANG has been working as a professor at the School
of Environment of Beijing Normal University* (1t ZEI&AE). Mr.
YANG served as the head of the Institute of Environmental Science*
CGRIBRIZMITHT) of Beijing Normal University* (1t REM&EIAZ) from
November 1999 to September 2003. From October 2003 to January
2016, Mr. YANG served as the dean of School of Environment of
Beijing Normal University* (1t 5 A& KE2)

Mr. YANG obtained the degree of doctor in philosophy in
engineering from Tsinghua University (& # X £ ) in China in
December 1989. Mr. YANG has been a fellow member of the
Chinese Academy of Engineering” (B T#2pFT) since November
2015.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 44, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. FENG has over 14 years’ experience in providing financial
management services to listed companies. Mr. FENG served as
the chief financial officer, from September 2013 to November 2017,
and an executive director, from December 2013 to October 2017,
of Peace Map Holding Limited (X NEEARBERAF]), the shares of

which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 402).

Mr. FENG obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting from Central
University of Finance and Economics (1 R Bf & K2 ) in China
in June 1997 and a master’'s degree in business administration
from Peking University (36 /KZ) in China in January 2010. Mr.
FENG obtained a professional technology qualification in business
administration and economics (intermediate level)* (TEEIRLEHE
(AR EEFIME) from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC* (3 ARKME A 1 ERFI 2RIEZER)
in November 2004.
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Mr. JIANG Guoliang, aged 43, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination

committee of the Board on 3 January 2019.

Mr. JIANG has served as a partner of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* (4
ST AMEEMEFT) since October 2012. Prior to that, Mr. JIANG was
a vice president of BOCGI Zheshang Capital Co. Ltd.* (FiR#&RE
HEEXESEEAGMRAF]) from August 2010 to September 2012,
a partner of the Hangzhou branch of King & Wood Mallesons (4t
e EERTIMNAFT) from August 2008 to July 2010 and an
associate of T&C (Zhejiang) Law Firm* G XMEEIEHFT) from
April 1999 to July 2008.

Mr. JIANG has been an independent director of Zhejiang
Communications Technology Co., Ltd.* (H/ I X BRI 5 AR
A7]) since December 2013, the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 002061), and an
independent non-executive director of Leap Holdings Group Limited
(g =B AR A R)) since 31 August 2018, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499).

Mr. JIANG obtained his bachelor’'s degree in laws from Peking
University* (465 K2) in the PRC in July 1997, and is a practising
PRC lawyer.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Name Age

#H& FHe

Dr. WANG Zhicheng 54

FEKEL 54 3%
Ms. HUANG Ying 51
EHa+ 515%
Mr. CUI Jinhong 44
EiRE LA 4435,
Mr. LI Zhouxin 34
FRMESE 345
Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan 34
BT 345%
Mr. GU Chunbin 29
ZEWEE 29%%

BREEE

Date of joining
the Group
MAZEEHEH

1 May 2018
201845 H1H

15 July 2009
20094 7 A 15 A

1 February 2017
201742 A 1R

24 February 2017
201742 H24H

2 March 2018
201843 H2H

1 December 2016
2016 F 12 A1 H

Position

B

Chief scientist and a
deputy general manager
BRENMERREBLRE

Deputy general manager
Bl 4B R

Deputy general manager
Bl

Chief financial officer

BERVHE

Financial Controller
[ at=s

Joint company secretary
and head of corporate
investment and
financing

R A EIMEFRME
RELE Bp AT

Responsibility

BE

Overseeing the research
and development of our
Group in relation to solid
waste treatment solutions

ERAKEE S E YRR
7R AR

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group
EEAEERTEL

Overseeing the daily
operations of our Group
EEASERRES

Overseeing the financial and
accounting affairs of our
Group

EBAEEMBREAEH

Responsible for the financial
and accounting affairs of
our Group

BEAREEVE LG EB

Handling handling corporate
governance, corporate
investment, corporate
finance, investor
relations and corporate
administrative matters of
our Group

BRIBEEER  BRIEME
REEBERREERF
THE®
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Dr. WANG Zhicheng, aged 54, joined our Group in May 2018 as
the chief scientist and a deputy general manager of our Group.
Dr. WANG is mainly responsible for overseeing the research and
development of our Group in providing solutions for solid waste
treatment. Prior to joining our Group, Dr. WANG had been providing
technical support in relation to solid waste treatment to our Group

since January 2017.

Dr. WANG has over 18 years of experience in the environmental
protection industry. Dr. WANG is the inventor, or designer of,
various patents registered, or pending registration, in the PRC in the

field of pyrolysis technology.

Dr. WANG received a bachelor’'s degree in chemistry from Sichuan
University (P9JIIX&) in China in July 1986, and a master’s degree
in chemical engineering from Sinopec Research Institute of
Petroleum Processing* (R EIA{LHFEFL) in China in January 1991,
and the degree of doctor in philosophy in materials science from the
Clark Atlanta University in the U.S. in May 1999.

Ms. HUANG Ying, aged 51, joined our Group in July 2009 as a
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang and is mainly
responsible for overseeing our daily operations. She is a director of

Guangzhou Weigang.

Ms. HUANG received a college diploma in architectural studies
from the Guangdong Architectural Engineering Technical College*
(BERERETHEERER) in June 1990, and was awarded an
architectural design engineer qualification by the Guangzhou First
Evaluation Committee of Architectural Engineering Technology
Engineer* (BMMEE TR TIZAIE —FHEZLZEE) in November
1998.

Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAIl, who is an executive Director

and a Controlling Shareholder.

EEREL 5455 0 R2018F5A MAKXE
B EEASEERNERRERLE - TiEL
TEREERASEREEREYRERATR
B o IMAKREER - B2017F 1AL £
Bt EESEEYERERAASEBRERITX

# o

IBIREBERTEHREB18FLR - TBLA
B A R R SR I 2 TR B R S A i A
HEBHASRAE o

FETR1986F7 A BN KEES(LE
BEa4 27 N1991F1 AP EALFE
RS C B TIRE L2 - WH1999F5H 8
EEANTERFEARSIMEM AR Z2E L2

fiZ °

EBLZL 5155 20097 AMAKRER -
EIEMNEBRIHEKE T EA5EERATE
g HBEMNEE—RES -

BEHXTMI1990F6 FEERERETRERE
REVSEEBAHEN - WH 1998 F 11 AR
MIRETRFRINIRME—TEZE R
ERFTTRMERE -

BT RIITEE MIERBIRE S EME -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %3} 33



34

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

Mr. CUI Jinhong, aged 44, joined our Group in February 2017 as
a deputy general manager of Guangzhou Weigang and is mainly

responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our Group.

Mr. CUl has over 17 years of experience in the environmental

protection industry.

Mr. CUl obtained a bachelor's degree in chemical machinery and
equipment from the South China University of Technology* (Z
I T KE) in the PRC in July 1995 and a master's degree in
environmental engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
(WBEEITEAZ) in the PRC in January 2008. Mr. CUl was certified
as an Environmental Protection Technology Engineer* (3% 3% (R & Fi iy
Ti2H8) by Shenzhen Job Title Management Office* (G378 & 1%

AZE) in December 2002.

Mr. LI Zhouxin, aged 34, joined our Group as a consultant in
February 2017 to provide advice on financial matters and strategic
development of our Group; and since February 2018, he has been
the chief financial officer of our Group. Mr. LI is mainly responsible

for overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of our Group.

Mr. LI has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance,
investment management and strategic planning. From November
2015 to April 2017, Mr. LI served as the chief financial officer of
China Child Care Corporation Limited (P E R EZEEE AR A Al)
(formerly known as Prince Frog International Holdings Limited), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1259). He has also been a non-executive director of China
Child Care Corporation Limited since June 2017 and was one
of its executive directors from January 2016 to June 2017. From
November 2017, Mr. LI has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of LEAP Holdings Group Limited (AT#1ZlREREHR
[R/A7]), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1499). Mr. LI is currently the vice chairman of the 8th

Executive Committee of the Youth Business Association of Fujian
Province* (fRREAEFHE).

Mr. LI received a bachelor’'s degree in finance from Fuzhou
University in China in July 2007. Mr. LI is a PRC certified public
accountant (non-practising) and a certified management accountant
recognised by the U.S. Institute of Management Accountants.
Mr. LI was qualified as an intermediate economist* (/1 #% #& &
Bfi) by Zhangzhou Profession Reform Office* (EM M B HE) in
January 2016. Mr. LI also holds a Certification in Risk Management

Assurance accredited by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan, aged 34, joined our Group in March 2018
as the financial controller. He is responsible for the financial and

accounting affairs of our Group.
Mr. ZHENG has over 10 years of experience in finance and auditing.

Mr. ZHENG obtained his bachelor’'s degree in finance from
Shenzhen University* OFIIIKE) in the PRC in June 2008. He was
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant* (3Ffi&5t6f) in the PRC
in February 2012.

Mr. GU Chunbin, aged 29, joined our Group in December 2016 as
a consultant to provide advice on financial matters and strategic
development of our Group and currently is one of the joint company
secretary of the Company as well as head of corporate investment
and financing. Mr. GU is mainly responsible for handling corporate
governance, corporate investment, corporate finance, investor

relations and corporate administrative matters.

Mr. GU received a bachelor’s degree in logistics management from
Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade* (_E/B%INE HEFR) in China
in July 2012 and concurrently, a bachelor’s degree in business
(logistics and supply chain management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Australia in June 2012. He also obtained a
master’s degree in media management from the Hong Kong Baptist

University in Hong Kong in November 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since the Listing Date. The Group is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed herein, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during
the Period. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

As the Company was not yet listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange until the Listing Date, the CG Code was not applicable
to the Company during the period under review. However, in the
opinion of the Directors the Company has fully complied with the
CG Code during the Period except from the deviation from the Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding dealings in
the securities of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have strictly complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the Period.

The Board has also adopted the Model Code to regulate all
dealings by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
securities in the Company as referred to in code provision A.6.4 of
the CG Code. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code
by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted during the

Period after making reasonable enquiry.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board Committees including the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee. The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the

success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control

and risk management systems are in place.
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TRERERHRE

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors. Members of the Board are

listed below:

Members of the Board
EEERE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. CAl Zhuhua
BIRERE

Mr. DONG Honghui

BAmEEE

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan
BkE LA

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. REN Jinfeng
EREEE

Mr.YANG Zhigiang
HEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BAFHTES

Mr. YANG Zhifeng
1B EE S A

Mr. FENG Tao
R EE

Mr. JIANG Guoliang
BERSTE

EESHAEMK

EEeRRHN\ZESZAK  BREZGHTE
- MEERNTEER=LBIUEHTEE - &
EeRERENT ¢

Position

Bifs

Chairman of the Board, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

BEER  MITEFERITHRAE

Executive Director

BITES

Executive Director

BITES

Non-executive Director

FRTES

Non-executive Director

FRTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIEMITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIERNITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIJEMITES

Date of appointment

ZERY

18 May 2017
201745 H18H

27 April 2018

20184 4 A 27H

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27H

27 April 2018
20184 4 A 27H

8 November 2018
20184 11 A8 H

3 January 2019
201941 A3 H

3 January 2019
201941 A3 H

3 January 2019
201941 A3 H
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. All Directors have carried
out duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and the

Shareholders at all times.

Biography of each Director is set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or

other material/relevant relationship(s)) between the Directors.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cai Zhuhua serves as
chairman as well as chief executive officer of the Company and this
dual role leadership has been in practice by the Company since
2009. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered
to be more efficient to have one single person to be chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of
a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning and
better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations and governance of the Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals, with half of them being
non-executive directors of the Company. The Company will review

the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Period, the Company has three independent non-
executive Directors in compliance with the Rules 3.10(1) and Rules
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors accounts for more than one-third of the number

of the Board members.
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According to the Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have made confirmations to the
Company regarding their independence during the Period. Based
on the confirmations of the independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers each of them to be independent during the

Period.
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall

be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Memorandum and Articles

of Association.

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service contract
with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date or until the third annual general meeting of the Company since
the Listing Date (whichever ends earlier). Either party has the right
to give not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the

agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter on 10 December 2018 with the Company with an
initial term for three years or until the third annual general meeting
of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier,
subject to re-election as and when required under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party

giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company on 10 December 2018
with an initial term for three years or until the third annual general
meeting of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends
earlier, subject to re-election as and when required under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association unless terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the appointment letter
or by either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior

notice in writing.
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In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment. Any director appointed as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.
Training and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their

contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director has been provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. Prior to the Listing, each of Mr. CAl Zhuhua, Mr. DONG
Honghui, Mr. DENG Zhaoshan, Mr. REN Jingfeng and Mr. YANG
Zhigiang has attended the training courses conducted by the legal
adviser of the Company. The content of such training related to the

duties of directors and on-going obligations of listed companies.

All the Directors have been updated with the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. In addition, continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors will be arranged

whenever necessary.
Directors’ Responsibility on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2018.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring
that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied
with.
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The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an

informed assessment for approving the financial statements.
Board Meetings and General Meeting

No meeting had been held by the Board during the year ended 31
December 2018 as the shares of the Company were only listed on
the Stock Exchange on 3 January 2019. From the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report, two Board meetings were held
for reviewing and approving the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and other matters. All Directors attended

the Board meetings.

Notices for all regular Board meeting and the agenda and
accompanying Board paper will be given to all Directors at least
3 days before the meetings in order that they have sufficient time
to review the papers. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors or Board
Committee members for information and records. Directors who
have conflicts of interest in a board resolution have abstained from

voting for that resolution.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Tao, Mr. YANG Zhifeng
and Mr. JIANG Guoliang. Mr. FENG, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, serves as the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include examining
independently the financial positions of the Company, overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system, the audit process and proposals of internal
management, communicating independently with, monitoring and

verifying the work of internal audit and external auditors.
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No meeting had been held by the Audit Committee during the year
ended December 31, 2018 as the shares of the Company were only
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 3 January 2019.
From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, two
Audit Committee meetings were held to review the annual financial
results and report and major internal audit issues, re-appointment
of external auditors and relevant scope of works and continuing
connected transactions. All members of the Audit Committee

attended the meetings.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function), risk management systems and processes and the
reappointment of the external auditor and fulfilled duties as required
aforesaid. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation
given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor. They also reviewed final
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit. There
are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and

the Stock Exchange.
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
FENG Tao (chairman), Mr. DONG Honghui and Mr. JIANG Guoliang,
the majority of them are independent non-executive Directors. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to recommend
the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, to review and approve the management’'s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior

management.
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No meeting had been held by the Remuneration Committee during
the year ended December 31, 2018 as the shares of the Company
were only listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 3
January 2019. From the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held on
26 March 2019 for considering and recommending to the Board
the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors and senior management and other related matters. All

members of the Remuneration Committee attended the meeting.

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the
Company, made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management

and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior
management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on
page 32 to page 35 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in the Auditor’s Report on page 166 to

page 169 of this annual report.
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. CAl Zhuhua (chairman), Mr. FENG Tao and Mr. JIANG
Guoliang, the majority of them are independent non-executive

Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, to make
recommendation to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or in the management, and to assess the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to

the Board for decision.
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No meeting had been held by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2018 as the shares of the Company were
only listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 3 January
2019. From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
one Nomination Committee meeting was held on 26 March 2019
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
make recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the retiring
Directors. All members of the Nomination Committee attended the

meeting.

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, considered the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment
required from the non-executive Director and fulfilled duties as

required aforesaid.

NOMINATION POLICY
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “BD Policy”)
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules with
effect from 26 March 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the BD Policy and will from
time to time review the BD Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the

effectiveness of the BD Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the

collective responsibility of Directors which include:

o to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Period, the joint company secretaries of the Company
are Mr. GU Chunbin and Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty. The primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. GU Chunbin, one of the joint company

secretaries of the Company.

AUDITOR

Financial statements contained in this report have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Service fees which shall be paid by the
Company to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the year amounted to
RMB1.7 million.

Service rendered
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Fees Payable

FriR M BR T ENEA
(RMB)

(ARX)

Audit service EAZ RIS 1,700,000
Non-audit services IEEZARTS —
Total et 1,700,000
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

is set out in the Auditor’s Report on page 102 to 104.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
Shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets and with the
support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such

systems on an annual basis.

The Group utilises an integrated risk management system to
minimise and protect against a range of strategic, business,
financial and legal risks. Through our risk management system,
we seek to manage and reduce risks, encourage effective and
reliable communication, maintain legal compliance and improve the

efficiency of our business and management.

Our risk management system is implemented on three levels. Its
implementation starts with the manager of each department who
is responsible for organising the daily work in accordance with the
relevant policies. The second level involves the active role of the
internal audit department which centralises our risk management
policies and supervises the individual departments through periodic
audits. The head of the internal audit department has approximately
seven years of experience in auditing and received a bachelor’s
degree in financing. Finally, the highest level involves decision-
making by the board of directors regarding certain risk management
decisions. The relevant personnel at these three levels are in
frequent communication in order to ensure accurate information is

shared between all parties.

In order to formulate and implement effective policies, our risk
management system emphasises continuous information gathering.
Our risk management system collects data on a variety of business,
financial and legal risks such as market demand, technological
trends and innovations, comparisons with our competitors, our
financial performance and results of operation, costs of services,
changes in intellectual property law, company laws and possible

legal disputes.
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The information gathered is used for risk assessment. Our risk
assessment procedures take into account our Company’s overall
risk philosophy and seek to accurately evaluate how a potential risk
may affect our objective in the strategic, business, compliance and
financial reporting areas. We seek to identify both internal risks,
such as employee ethics, our financial condition or product quality,
as well as external risks, such as economic and legal developments,
technology advances and environmental factors. Identified risks are
assessed on the basis of likelihood of occurrence and the degree of
influence it may have on our business. Risks with a high probability
of occurring are more closely examined in order to ensure accurate
results. We then determine what countermeasures should be
implemented in order to avoid, absorb or reduce such risks and any

negative consequences.

The Board is not aware of any significant internal control and risk
management weaknesses nor significant breach of limits or risk
management policies, and considers that the current monitoring
systems of the Company are effective and that the qualifications
and experience of the staff, performing) accounting and financial
reporting functions and the training programmes of the Company
as well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget
of the Company are adequate. The Company has complied with
the requirements under C.2.1 to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the CG Code

relating to risk management and internal control.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any two or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other
than a Director for election as a Director at the Company’s general
meeting (“Proposal”), he/she should lodge a written notice setting
out the Proposal and his/her contact details at the principal place of
business of the Company or the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. The Proposal should
include the biographical details of the proposed Director and a
written notice signed by the proposed Director confirming his/her
willingness to be elected, the accuracy and completeness of his/her

biographical details.
Shareholders’ inquires

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings, please
write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor

Investor Services Limited, at:

Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066

Fax: (852) 2262 7584

Website: www.tricorglobal.com
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Investor relations and communications

The Company has set up a website at www.gzwigang.com as a
channel to promote communication, publishing announcements,
financial information and other relevant information of the Company.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate

manner.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company have

been amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (“WG”)
(Stock Code: 1845) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to
as the “Group”) are pleased to present the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”) and express commitment
of the Group to corporate social responsibility. This is the first ESG
Report of the Group which discloses the management, policies,
performance, targets and feedbacks of the business in providing
services of the Group in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
relation to sustainable development. The Group would like to take
this opportunity to present the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) performance to all investors and stakeholders, and put

forward the commitments and contributions on social responsibility.

This ESG Report is prepared both in Chinese and English. In
case of inconsistency, the English version shall prevail. Electronic
version of this ESG Report is, with the Annual Report, available
for downloading from the website of HKEx at www.hkexnews.hk. If
you have any enquiries or suggestions regarding this ESG Report,

please feel free to contact us at gzwg@gzweigang.com.

Report Compilation Basis

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “Core” option of
the internationally recognized Global Reporting Initiative’'s (*GRI”)
Standards reporting guidelines, together with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”).

For details of the Group’s financial performance and corporate
governance issues, please refer to the previous sections of the
annual report of which this ESG Report forms part, so as to have
a comprehensive understanding on the environmental, social and

corporate governance performance of the Group.
Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report were
prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents and
other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or

misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

BARA®|E

ERETNRBBZEREAGRART(T4E] L
MR - 1845) R E B A & (T X AIA
EE)RAREHZE2018F 12 A31 B ILFE
(TREBMEDAORE (L REARS ([B% -
HEeREARE])  YTREAEEUMELER
EREE - LAAEENENRE HERER
ey BEREBEAEEBRPEAREME(
B DIREREHEHAIREERNEREE K
®oRB - BERERRE - AEBEEZLESRA
BREERBOHEEZWRER HekER(E
B HgRERDERR U EEMIEL AR
RER -

RIRE - HERERBRENPRRXNEL S
glo MAEXIRABEMER - BARXRA
o RIRF - HERELBBREERNFRNE
b 2N A A & P8 B 22 BT A8 S www . hkexnews.hk
THEH-m BETHARE e kEBHRE
EEEMEANER BDER MBS

(gzwg@gzweigang.com) ©
HRERBEE

BEEBBERARMKEEBEEAZASE
(IGRINZEE YR E TSI M 120 ER R(H B
EBRGABRARES EMRDME -+ LHR
HOCGRE B REBRBRERSIDN((EERX
FIIRIE - B REAMEESDRR -

ERARBYHRARDREAFENFE - B
SHFREIR - it 8 REA TS MR —
BRI TS - L2 E T RARMOES
HEREEEARS -

BB RIR

AIRE - HERERBEM2ROBIEREMT
RIBABRETBUE - WEPBER XX R E AR
B o AREERUERLSIRE  HERERR
EIWEE B EAERIARE AR

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %)

51



52

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -HERERB®RSE

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its
publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to
be reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist
of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that
actual results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and
conclusions made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the
accuracy of the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any
liability for and assume no responsibility to correct or update those
forward-looking statements in the event that any of the statements

does not materialize or turns out to be incorrect.
Contact

For more information on the Group’s sustainable development,
please refer to the Group’s official website and the annual report.
The Group values your views on this report. Should you have any
query or feedback on this ESG Report, please contact us via the

following channels:

Tel: 020-3221-1246
Fax: 020-3221-1223
Email: gzwg@gzweigang.com

Official website: www.gzweigang.com

CORE VALUE OF WG

We are a leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration
turnkey solution provider in the PRC focused on the research,
design, integration and commissioning of solid waste treatment
systems, particularly for hazardous waste incineration. During the
Reporting Period, we are primarily engaged in, and generated a
substantial portion of our revenue from, the design, integration and

commissioning of hazardous waste incineration systems in the PRC.

In 2011, our Group was engaged to provide integrated solutions for
the rotary kiln incineration system of the Shenzhen Hazardous Waste
Incineration Centre* GFRII T BB EEW R EEF L), Over the years,
owing to the increased recognition of our services by our customers,
our clientele has gradually expanded and currently includes the
subsidiaries and affiliates of global environmental service providers
such as SUEZ, as well as major centralized hazardous waste

treatment facility operators in the PRC.
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During the Reporting Period, our customers primarily consist of
hazardous waste treatment facility operators and other customers
with large solid waste output and environmental compliance needs.
The main services provided by our Group including, but not limited

to, the following:
Solid Waste Treatment Solutions

We provide solid waste treatment solutions through the design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste treatment systems,
which comprise a range of equipment and other components, on
a made-to-order basis pursuant to the technical specifications and

requirements of our customers.
Hazardous Waste Incineration Solutions

Hazardous waste is a type of solid waste exhibiting one or more of
the characteristics as being ignitable, corrosive, reactive, infective
or toxic, posing threats to public health or the environment. We
engage in the design, installation, integration and commission of
tailor-made rotary-kiln incineration systems based on customers’
technical specifications and requirements. The delivery of such
solutions is a highly intricate and integrated end-to-end process
which requires expertise and project experience in achieving
optimized environmental protection effect and commercial viability.
We provide hazardous waste incineration solutions mainly for

hazardous waste treatment facility operators in the PRC.
Thermal Desorption of Oil Sludge

We provide thermal desorption solutions for the treatment of oil
sludge, which is a type of hazardous waste mainly generated from
oil exploitation and extraction. During the Reporting Period, we
entered into a service contract with an oil service provider in the
PRC which has the relevant operating license to lease, and provide
operation and maintenance services for, an oil sludge treatment
facility designed and commissioned by us in Karamay, Xinjiang
(the”Karamay Project”). As at the Latest Practicable Date, the

Karamay Project was in trial operation.
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Cement Plant Parallel Kiln Co-treatment

We have developed and are in the process of commercializing
the cement plant parallel kiln co-treatment technology. Currently,
we had entered into a letter of intent and were in the process
of negotiating the commercial terms with a cement producer in
the PRC to invest in and operate such co-treatment project in

Guangdong Province.
Technical Upgrading and Maintenance Services

Apart from providing solutions for hazardous waste incineration
projects, we also derived our revenue during the Reporting Period
from providing technical upgrading and maintenance services to
existing hazardous waste incineration systems and certain cement

production facilities in the PRC.

We always keep the environment in mind when formulating
measures and planning activities in a bid to make positive impacts
on the environment in accordance to our own environmentally

friendly sustainable development strategy.
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Milestone of WG HHRNERE
Year F14 Events =4
1998 Our predecessor, Guangzhou Weigang E&ME, was established on 18 August 1998.
AT 5 BN B ER BN 1998 F8 A 18 HAKIL o
2008 Guangzhou Weigang E&ME successfully delivered our first hazardous waste incineration

solution for the design and commissioning of a rotary kiln incineration system at the Guangdong
HWCTDC in 2008.

2008 & - BM B M E RER R LAABR RET O LEERE R T E @EREYR
BEREMATR -

2009 Our major PRC operating subsidiary, Guangzhou Weigang, was established on 15 July 2009.
FfP9e 3 2 rh B A T B 8 BN 4B 10 2009 4F 7 A 15 HAK L ©
2013 Our Group successfully delivered our hazardous waste incineration solution for the design and

commissioning of a rotary kiln incineration system at the Shenzhen Hazardous Waste Incineration
Centre.

AREEFR A LASRY TRBREYNRET OO EEERERGR NN EREDRERERRTE
2015 Guangzhou Weigang was recognised as a “2015 Technology Innovative Small Giant Enterprise of
Guangzhou City™ (2015 F EMmEHLAIFTNE A ) by the Guangzhou Municipal Government.

BN T B R N 47 R 2015 F RN T RHR AT NE AL »

2016 Guangzhou Weigang was granted as a “High and New Technology Enterprise” (&¥#fiit

¥%E) by the Guangdong Provincial Government on 30 November 2016 for a period of three
years and the hazardous waste incineration systems designed by us were certified as “High and
New Technology Product of Guangdong Province™ (ERE S FITESR) by the Guangdong
Provincial Government in December 2016 for a period of three years.

R20164F 11 A30H - EREMNRTEMEB S RMEXEE] BERHA=F 12016512
A BEREBFRBRFIRAOCRENRERE RRBE ERESTRNERIES - AR =F -

2017 We entered into a service contract with an oil service provider in China for the leasing of, and the

provision of operation and maintenance services for, an oil sludge thermal desorption treatment
facility in Karamay, Xinjiang, China.

H P B —RA ARG IRE ST LIRS A K - & B 58 s RIS R0 R 2B MY BR IR 2R e - AR fit
B R EERT -

2018 Application of Initial Public Offering in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

REREEBERXHMERAAERERAFEE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

FhENS R

To establish a sound base for our Group’s continuous development
and success, we have always strived to understand our
stakeholders’ views. A myriad of channels are prepared for our
stakeholders to give their opinions on our sustainability performance
and future policies. We believe that by building lasting formal and
informal communication channels, we are able to move a step
forward to each of the stakeholders in building mutual benefits and
trust. This can help formulate business strategies that are more
fitting to our stakeholders’ needs and expectations, improve risk

anticipation and strengthen key relationships. Our key stakeholders

are identified as shareholders and investors, employees, suppliers

and business partners, government departments and regulatory

authorities, customers and the community.

Stakeholder Group
15 & E5

Concerns and expectations

BN HME

BR—EBNTHENERR - URAXEEN
FEZRENDEEREER - SFHENRES
BARZRE
RIRHER - BFAEE
BETRZAERNER  BATEELIRNE
B ERERER
HEEMEGEE - TARSEANRRENLE
BEABE - HMRERREREE BB - H#
EREEBRH RS MPAIREEREA - TP
MR SEERNE

AR PT A T 435 A48 B R AR AR S R R B
CEBIEAEIFEAMR

CBPRIEENERNEFR

Communication channel

Shareholders and investors

Return on investment; avoid operational
risks; long-term development of the
business

General meeting; corporate
communication; visiting activities;
announcements; regularly publish annual
report and ESG report

MRER R & & REO®R : EELRNE  FHREER BREARE: hEBM: K A5 EH
HIBFRMERE - g REARE
Employees Work-life balance; clear and feasible Employee meetings; employee activities;
system and process information; Intranet; performance appraisal and
promotion and development interviews; conferences
=1 ITEREFTE: ZERAEENEHN EESZ EEEH: NBE: RBRFAH

BARE - BTTEER

NEG B

Suppliers and business
partners

(B B T B

Clear and comprehensive procurement
information description; smooth
communication channels

FBENHLENEE BRRESR

Conferences, supplier management
system; site visits

B HERTERS  BS5ER

Government departments and
regulatory authorities

BT & BRI L B R

Conform with the requirements of the
environment and safety related laws and
regulations; tax accordingly to law; timely
update of policies and regulations
RERRERREHBERIERNENL
FOEMB - R BRI KA

Supervision and assessment; meeting in
relation; information disclosure

BERE  BHEE  AREE

Customers Products and services conform with Comprehensive feedback system; daily
requirements of related laws and operations, communications
regulations to guarantee the qualities
of products and services; smooth
communication channels

TR EmERBFEEHEBEERERANER . ZEOREEY  BEESRES
REEMERBES  BBEREGR

Community Protect the community’s environment; Community communication; charitable
support local economic development events

Zan REMEIRE  XHEMLHEER MHEBR AmEAEEY
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Materiality Assessment

Our Group continually strengthens communication and relationship
with investors. Designated senior management personnel keep
close contact with shareholders and investors through email,
teleconference, one-to-one meetings, or other forms, so as to
ensure shareholders and investors can get latest information of our
Group in a fair and timely manner, helping them make investment
decisions. Our Group will give a detailed and timely response to

inquiries from investors.

In accordance with the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide, our Group
entrusted an independent consultant to carry out materiality
assessment of ESG issues in 2018 to fully assess the ESG issues
that were crucial to our Group’s business development and were
of the utmost concern to stakeholders, which helped our Group
determine the ESG management objectives for the coming year

and the focus of the disclosure of this Report in order to actively

ERMML

AEEFEMEEEEENBBNARK FES
REBAESRPER  FFEGH —H—g@EK
Hip P A BRR R EERFETHER - AR
BREBREEATRRFOER T REESERA
SENRHFER  ABBRBEELRERE - &
SESHREENETHREFHFENDOE -

RIBECEEBRARE LB RERREED)
AEER018FLRABHLUMARERE HE R
EamRRREENNETE  U2EMGEEA
SEXBEREMEEYBRNERSMINER
BodHeRELRERE MR AREREET —
FENRE  HERRBEEBRARNEEDN
WEEH - WEREESE Ty EEEFK -

respond to the expectations and requirements of all parties.

A1 Emissions

A1 HEB

A2 Use of Resource
A2 EREA

A3 Environment and natural resources
A3 BERAARER

Greenhouse gas emissions
Exhaust emission

Energy and water saving
Use of natural resources

Environmental education
Legality and compliance in
environmental protection

= REEHE A ERA)BEIR B AR 7K RIBHE

BERHBERL RANBIRE RRITENEES R

B1 Employment B2 Health and safety B3 Development and training
B1 {Ef§ B2 @EHEZE B3 #EREII

Equal opportunity
Diversified team profile

Workplace safety
Work-life balance of employees

Employee career development
Employee on-job trainings

FERE TESMEE BEEXHR
BxSSZT BB TR AE T & B ERIE
B4 Labour standard B5 Supply chain management B6 Product responsibility
B4 & T %8| B5 ftFESEEE B6 Em&EE

Prevention of child labour and forced
labour

Legality and compliance in
employment

B LR EE T Reamlss T

Management system on suppliers
Procurement management

HIEEER R4

Legality and compliance of
operational practices

BERRTENGSEARN

EEHEOEES RN REEEE

B7 Anti-corruption B8 Community investment
B7 RES B8 #HEiRE

Anti-fraud Community volunteer activities
Anti-corruption Charitable donations

B LE F 5 HEEIES

ifla= vz HRERE
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GOVERNANCE ISSUE

Our Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practice. Since our establishment, we have always been
committed to improving corporate governance by adopting the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and applied the principles
of the Code during the Reporting Period. Meanwhile, our Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing and determining risks related
to ESG, and to ensure that our Group has set up appropriate and
effective risk management and internal monitoring systems for

aspects of environment, social and governance.

The establishment, operation and management of our companies
in the PRC are governed by the PRC Company Law ((FZEARH
FMEAFE)) . During the Reporting Period, our Board of Directors
directs the overall strategy and development of our Group’s
operations and business, and is responsible for monitoring and

reviewing corporate governance practices across our Group.

A ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Global warming and climate change have become major
environmental issues to the world. Our Group aims to minimize
energy consumption and carbon emissions and has been
exploring ways of adopting operational model which incurs

less adverse impact on the environment.

Our Group is committed to enhancing environmental
protection to minimize the impact of our activities on the
environment, and compliance with applicable environmental
laws. It is our Group’s policy to promote clean operation and
make the most efficient use of resources in our operations,
and minimize wastes and emission. Our Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards

environmental protection to the employees.

AN ¥
EREE

AEBHNERRKINEERERATR » BRI
MR—EBNREALEEIGKE  RA(ETR
A )M 8%+ PO pr i R B A ST RID(MsF A D) B9 <7
A - YRR HREMEERTRIFNRA - [
B BEFRREFEREEEARERE HEkE
AMER  WHEARAKERIAEIEMNIER
B odHeREaRREENARBEZERLR

BMEFENRERRY  EERERETER
(PEARKNMBERARERE - RIEHRM[ - &
FEREASENEREBRIELCERERE - I
BEESERRABRESENDEELRTR

A BRREUEHEARE

EHBRAERREELCEXNR/EHZWE S
MEAIREE B o 5% B LUK BEIRFE A
MR RER Y —ERREREREL
BROBEZEMNELRA

AEEBOMBRERE  SEELHR
BERMEANTZERERK  AWHETERLY
RRZER - AREHTRESREERE
BELRAMERERARBERER
PEREBR - AEBSEIRRE - LieEE
BRIRREM °
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Pursuant to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
((hEARFFMBEREREE)), the Environmental Protection
Administrative Department of the State Council is empowered
to formulate the environmental quality standards and pollutant
discharge standards of the PRC at the national level. Public
institutions and other producers and business operators
that discharge pollutants shall take measures to prevent
and control the environmental pollution and harm caused
by waste gas, waste water, residues, medical waste, dust,
malodorous gases, radioactive substances, noise, vibration,
optical radiation and electromagnetic radiation, etc. generated
during production, construction or other activities. The PRC
adopts the pollution discharge licence management system in
accordance with the law. Enterprises, public institutions and
other producers and operators that implement the pollution
discharge licence management shall discharge pollutants
according to the requirements of the pollution discharge
licence; and those that fail to obtain the pollution discharge

licence shall not discharge pollutants.

During the Reporting Period, the businesses of environmental
protection technology research and development,
environmental protection technology consulting, design of
environmental protection solutions which our PRC subsidiaries
currently engaged in, are not involved in businesses of
pollutants discharge, therefore our PRC subsidiaries have no

need to obtain relevant licences for pollutants discharge.

We have received 1SO14001 environmental management
system certification. During the Reporting Period, we had
not received any notice or warning in relation to pollution
in respect of our operation, nor had we been subject to
any fines, penalties or other legal actions by government
authorities in the PRC resulting from any non-compliance with
any environmental protection laws or regulations in the PRC
and, so far as our Board of Directors are aware after making
all reasonable enquiries, there was no threatened or pending
action by any PRC environmental government authorities in

respect thereof.

RE(PEARAMBRBREE) - BB
BERERETREE MG RNEPER
BEEREMDTRMPEBIRE - PrBUT R
MR EEBUMEMEEREE - &
EREE  PAELEERREEELME
PRELNER  BK REY BEE
WoME- BRRAE - BRHEMEARE
B R® RS ERNESTFEHRE
RIS RMEE o PEREARMPEST A &
BEGE  BITHSHAEENEEER
BUMAMEELZEERERRYISFTA
B ESRBROTRY - MABISHESRTA
EH - NEHEROSRY -

PR R - B PVER B 0K 2 AR
B FRRBMIE - BRRITEN - B
RERT RREOOER - THRISRME
PER - R B RIS R0 AL IR B
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A1

EMISSION

Our Group is principally engaged in the provision of
comprehensive hazardous waste incineration turnkey
solution. The daily operation of our Group does not
have significant impact to the environment and does not
generate hazardous waste and air emission including
NOx, SOx and other pollutants directly. Greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions are indirectly generated from
electricity consumed at our Group’s workplace with
minimal emissions. Our Group undertakes environmental
protection as part of our corporate responsibilities,
and it is fully aware of the importance of sustainable
environmental development in achieving sustainability in

our operations.

During the Reporting Period, our Group strictly complied
with the PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste ({F#E A
RAFBE g2 EEY))5 R RITYA)E)) which states that we
are responsible for the prevention and control of solid
waste pollution, and should take measures to prevent
or reduce the environmental pollution of solid waste.
Our Group also encourages environmental protection
and promotes environmental protection awareness to
all employees. Our Group has implemented a number
of measures such as reducing carbon emissions,
increasing energy efficiency and conserving water
resources in order to deliver our commitment to
environmental protection. Our Group has launched a
number of waste management programs, including
recycling of glass, paper and metal. Paper waste is our
major source of non-hazardous waste in the office. We
have promoted a paperless work environment to reduce
paper waste. Our Group did not find any records of
significant waste disposal disposed of at landfills during

the year.

Al

235 8]
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Our Group is committed to energy saving and
environmental protection. We try to keep the damage
to the environment at a minimal level by reducing
pollutants and hazardous wastes during operation. The
main sources of emission of our Group’s pollutants
include consumption of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”)
and emission of our Group’s self-used office vehicles.

During the Reporting Period, the units of LPG consumed
by our Group was 306,554 unit and the corresponding
CO2 emission amount was 943 tonnes. While for the
office vehicles, the gasoline consumption was around
31,400 litres and the diesel oil consumption was around
6,993 litres.

The following charts set out the categories and relevant

statistics of pollutants in 2018:

AEBEHNHBEERR - BBR
VELEBEPNSRAMREEE
Yo BENREHRFEEKNOBE -
AEERELSRDFRNERR
REeEREaBR(HRIEAHER])
MEALAEE AR B BERNE
e

R|EEB - REBRR(EABER
R EN A306,554 0 HHYE R
EHEHER 2 A 9430 - Mt A A&
WimE - AREAE4531,4002
Tt mERENR6,993DF o

ATERES 2018 Fi5 2 yiEfE &
TERA AR BUE ¢

Indicators (KPI A1.1) Unit Total
TE(BREXIERALI) B A%
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg approximate #J 9
REty Ny
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg approximate 47 1
ety N
Particulate Matter (PM) kg approximate #J 1
BOFHLTF N

GHG Emission

Our Group aims at reducing the energy and water
consumption thereby reducing the GHG emission. The
GHG emission is classified into direct and indirect
emission. Direct emission includes: combustion of fuels
in production process, generation of heat by LPG and
combustion of fuels by motor vehicles owned by our
Group. Indirect emission includes emissions due to
electricity purchased from power companies and water
consumption. Since our Group is principally engaged
in the provision of comprehensive hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solution which does not involved
significant combustion of fuels in operation, the majority

of GHG emission was indirect emission.

BEREHH

AEBEERDFEBEIRRK  #
AR EREBOHER - RERE
BN REENEEH N - BEHE
MERE: £EBREPRERE B
REChAmRMELENRERAE
BIE T EWRERE - HERERE
BRRENRABEEINHRER
AKE - ANAEETEHRERMN
ReREVMRERERBRRT
BOR RPN E 2 E B -
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During the Reporting Period, our Group had a total
of 988 tonnes GHG emission of CO2. The direct
and indirect emission generated by our Group were

summarized as follows:

RmEEE AEEH —|/biRa
ERBENBE RS8N - AEE
MER LEEEmnT

Indicators (KPI A1.2) Unit Total
TME (BB ERIERAL.2) B a5
Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of CO2e 988
BERBHRES WE—EALTIRE 2

Direct Emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO2e 943
BB (EBE 1) WE— SLiREE

Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of CO2e 45

s (FE 2)

W StiES

A2

Wastes

During the Reporting Period, our Group did not generate
any hazardous wastes due to our specific business
nature; and there is no specific statistics adopted
in calculation of non-hazardous wastes. Our Group
complies with the Administration Measures for Urban
Living Garbage (™ 4B SR E P L)) in urban

living garbage cleaning, collection and transportation.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on our
Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

Our Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of electricity, water, energy and
paper. During the Reporting Period, our Group has
implemented several policies to encourage employees
for conservation of respective resources. The following
table shows the figures of resource consumption in our

business operations:

A2

By

RBSHE AEEYEELRE
By RASKMNEBEMLE R
B BT R EEEYE I E KA
BBEUE - NEBMNE T A TE R
AR WE - BBy EmTamA
TEBLIREIRPEE) o

RBEHE AREYEEREE
EBAEATENHEBRRERR
B

BERER

AEERBRFEEHVNERIE
MAAKE - BERRARR - AR
RERE - RBSHE AEEHD
BERZEDBEESHEREEHE
RHBRE - TRBRINRERMNEL
FIFERERNE T -
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The Group Unit Total
AEE B &5t
Electricity consumption kWh approximately 47 521,000
AE= TR

Water consumption Tonnes approximately 47 76,900
RKkE 1]

LPG consumption Unit approximately #J 306,600
BibamRAE v

Paper consumption (Note) Package approximately %) 1,010
P4 E (M) 2)

Note: The Group adopts 80g A4 paper with 500 pieces in one
package

The main business of our Group is providing
comprehensive hazardous waste incineration
turnkey solution, which do not rely heavily on energy
consumption nor water resources and as well,
packaging materials. We ensure the operation and
facilities are in accordance with the environmental policy

and reduce the environmental impact.

Our Group adopts lighting system or electric appliances
with high energy efficiency. Our staff are encouraged to
turn off electronic appliances when those are idle. Our
Group also strives to maintain the air-conditioned room
temperature of offices at around 25 degree Celsius for
saving energy. Our Group is in the process of replacing
high fuel cost vehicle by hybrid vehicle so as to reduce
fuel consumption. In addition, we have installed video-
conference system to reduce business travels and

increase communication efficiency.

To promote the effective use of paper, our Group
has implemented the following suggestions to our

employees:

1 receive incoming faxes through e-fax system, and

make copies only when necessary

2 promote use of electronic communications such

as disseminating notices through the intranet

3 equip printers with used paper to encourage

employees to print on both sides

MR - AERERAEBORMALH - —BF
5003k

AEENIZXEBRAREGEAEE
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A FmEK25E - AEIE R &
SEEELNRAE NITERMAM
BRSO ER - SR IEE
o i HACLZEKBREER
LB EBEERRESBAK

% o

RIEEBRERMER  AEECY
BEEBATES

—

BRETEGEBEE - EH
FEE A HIEIOR

2 RECEAEFER - Hl2EE
N REXRS

3  RITHREREESRAAR
axEhE B R EmITE

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %3}

63



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

m g S T2 5 3 3R A
RE -HESkERARS
Our Group encourages staff to keep electronic copies AEEHFEEIREXENEFH
of documents, which greatly reduces storage space and B RKEEHEEFEEIHHE
also reduces paper consumption in the office. o RFIROPHAETNEREE -
A3 ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES A3 BRRARER
Our Group values environmental friendly operation and AREBERRRERLS 2RI Y
minimizes the impact on the environment and natural REBENAARERNEE - KEFH
resources. Our Group sets out the environment and TIREREREERE 29758
resources management procedures, which list out AEELPNRREE . 200 M
the environment protection measures during the daily S AREEEWRRDER WEHE
operations. For instance, our Group adopts the “reduce, BIRBE R - BRBRIEA
reuse and recycle” policy to reduce paper consumption. %Eﬁﬁ% °
3Rs Details
3R B3
Reduce Our Group encourages staff to read electronic file instead
AR of print out documents or print on both side to create a

paperless office at their best efforts
RNEE kB S TR EE F X EIAITEIS M - Sk EEITE] - &N
BEITEAEHR

Reuse
MEER

Our Group encourages staffs to collect waste paper, to use
these paper for draft print out

AEBTEE TREBERIEERITH

Recycle

TExRAE

Our Group encourages staff to collect used ink and toner
cartridge of printers and photocopiers and electronic wastes
for recycling at their best efforts
REEEN S TWREITEH RN E ARKERIHRIAR
BFEY  BRERNA

Our Group sets up measures to control

the waste

ZRE B B IR B KB IR B Y

water discharge. Waste water is produced mainly from
the water consumption. There are sewage treatment
facilities at our offices, where waste water is processed,
filtered and emitted through the system regulated by the

local environmental protection department in the PRC.

Our Group adopts the following environmental protection

policies:

o Preventing waste of resources and improving

efficiency on resources allocation;

o Staff education on resources reduction, put
up posters regarding save energy, increase
awareness on saving water, electricity reduce

water and energy consumption;

B o BEKEZ KRB AK - HMAY
WAERAGRKERRNM  EKE
R IE B & b IR (R EF PT A0 AR B 3 1T
BRI - R R BEAR

AREBEREUA T IRRBUK -

° FIERBER  IEmEREE
BE

. BETRERDEROE -
RELEIREETR RS EIKE
& R RKREEIRFER
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4

o Setting up solar energy system for heating

purpose;

o Using LED lighting system and electrical
appliance with energy efficiency label; and

. Conducting regular checkup of water pipe and
water system so as to prevent leakage and

conduct regular maintenance, if necessary.

B SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

B1

EMPLOYMENT
Employment Laws

Our Group is committed to maintaining a diverse
workforce that includes age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity, religion and equal
opportunities. During the Reporting Period, our Group
strictly complied with the PRC Labour Law ({(FrEE AR
ME4E)%)), the PRC Labour Contract Law ((FEE AR
HMBELBAEIE)) and the Implementing Regulations
of the PRC Employment Contracts Law ({FZE AR M
B EE REERIEN)) .

Our Group’s staff handbook contains polices in regards
to recruitment, promotion, discipline, working hours
and leave. The human resources department has
been responsible for ensuring all employees have
fully understood the contents of the handbook. The
management regularly reviews our Group’s remuneration
and benefits policies in reference to the market
standards and is committed to safeguarding the rights
and interests of the staff. Remuneration and benefits
have been adjusted on an annual basis in accordance
with the employees’ individual performance, contribution

and market conditions.
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HtERELSRE

We strictly complied with PRC laws, rules and
regulations in relation to human resources, including
the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({1 A RHME
& REE)), the Interim Regulations on the Collection
and Payment of Social Security Funds ((it&RE &%
S 1T6])) and the Regulations on the Administration
of Housing Accumulation Funds ((F B A & & & &
&% )). We contribute, on behalf of our employees,
to a number of social security funds, including
funds for basic pension insurance, unemployment
insurance, basic medical insurance, occupational injury
insurance, maternity leave insurance and housing
accumulation funds (collectively referred to as the “Five
Insurance and One Fund*”)(FEk —% ). Our Group's
remuneration to employees is largely based on common
industrial practice, wages of our employees, in any
circumstances, may not be lower than the local minimum

wage.

In addition to the above, our Group also provided travel
insurance to employees who required overseas business
travel which covers the compensation to the employees

who are injured due to accident during business trip.
Team Profile

Our Group actively recruits high caliber talents of
different nationalities, genders, ages and religions
in a fair and equitable manner through social media.
We believe that every employee is a valuable asset
of our Group. In order to retain talents and foster a
good working environment for the employees and
increase their sense of belongings to our Group, we
provide professional development opportunities, healthy
and safe working environment for all employees. In
the Reporting Period, our Group employs a total of
approximately 200 employees with the majority in the
PRC. Across our diversified business portfolio, the
employee’s gender, female employees accounted for
approximately 19.5% of total labour force and male

employees accounted for the remaining 80.5%.
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As for employees’ distribution by age for the reporting
period, aged 30 or below accounted for approximately
45.5%; aged 31 to 40 accounted for approximately
27.0%; aged 41 to 50 accounted for approximately
22.5%; and aged above 50 accounted for approximately
5.0%.

RBEHE EERFRED A
H 30K ATAME45.5% i 31 &
405% 49 (5 27.0% : 41 E505% #4114
22.5% + M50 L#IE5.0% °

GENDER 1431

Female 2%
19.5%

AGE &#

Aged 41 to 50

Senior
=RET
19%

41-505% Aged 30
22.5% or below
305RA T
45.5%
Male F1E Aged 31 to 40
80.5% 31-40%%
27.0%
OCCUPATION Bz EDUCATION #ERE
Directors =%
6%
Management Undergraduate
EEE Bt
1% 41.0%

Others
Hit
52.0%

Postgraduate
or above
EEA
7.0%

Our Group abides by equal employment ordinance and
prohibit discrimination against a person on the grounds
of race, colour, sex, religion, age, national origin or
disability. Female staff are entitled to leave for maternity
check-ups and pregnancy leave, and return to her pre-

leave position.

AEERTFEREGH  HIEE
MENER - Fe  E5 - RHE
M- Fik BRERIBAOER - X
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B2

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Our Group has established an internal system for labour
safety and sanitation, strictly abides by state standards
and provides relevant education to our employees since
employees working in safe and sanitary conditions is
what we must offer to them. We are subject to various
laws, administrative regulations, national standards
and industrial standards in the PRC which stipulate the
requirements to maintain safe working conditions and to

protect the occupational health of employees.

We have implemented safety measures on both our in-
house operation and project sites to ensure compliance
with applicable regulatory requirements and to minimize
the risk of injury of employees. We also conduct
periodic inspections to ensure that our operations are in
compliance with existing laws and regulations and are
safe for our employees. Furthermore, we require new
employees to receive work safety training pursuant to

our internal safety policy.

Xinjiang Wosen, our subsidiary in the PRC, holds a
work safety licence and a Qualification Certificate for
Enterprise in Construction Industry ((GEEEPEEEE
£)) (“Certificate for Construction”) and complies with
the Work Safety Law of the PRC ({(FZEARLMH LS
HEJL)) and Regulations of the Work Safety Licence
Regulation ({(&ZZ4EFTAIFEKGI)). Xinjlang Wosen is
permitted to participate in construction within the type
and grade stipulated in its Certificate for Construction.
During the Reporting Period, Xinjiang Wosen and other
subsidiaries of our Group in the PRC were not currently

engaged in construction business.

During the Reporting Period, we had not experienced
any severe accidents during our course of business,
nor had we been subject to any fines, penalties or other
legal actions by government authorities in the PRC
resulting from any non-compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations in PRC in relation to occupational
safety and health matters and, so far as our Board of
Directors is aware after making all reasonable enquiries,
there was no threatened or pending action by any PRC

government authorities in respect thereof.
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B3

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Our Group believes that developing our employees by
improving their knowledge and skills can enhance their
personal growth both intellectually and professionally.
To encourage and assist employees in developing
their potential, training resources is planned and
implemented to ensure our employees received the
relevant trainings and professional development, so
that our employee are better equipped and efficient
which are favorable to the long-term development of
our Group. Training programmes are classified into two
types according to the objective and purpose: internal
training and external training. In addition, our Group
organizes value-added activities regularly including
seminar and workshop, and supports staff training

programmes by granting time and reimbursement.

2018

B3

R RE

AEERRE RAREOAEEK
EMTEGSIER AREEIR
BETHMNBREBAZER - HEE
REREEBERER AEERE
BINER - X6 E R E S E
g mREEEIHEBEIRER
BRBUARFTEEREE EMT
ERE > BRARBEREER - F
HIFFEZEREENE D RME
MR IZ DI R SN EREE A o dE b - A&
EE SRR EES (RN E R
THEY)  UXHETETHAZH
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HOURS /)i

TOTAL TRAINING HOURS
#8551 B 2K

approximate #J 7,860

TRAINING HOURS PER EMPLOYEE
FaEEMNZR K

approximate #J 39

Aside from trainings, our Group promotes a sense of
team spirit and foster work-life balance by organizing
leisure activities for the staff. During the Reporting
Period, our Group organizes festival gathering,

recreational activities for our employees.
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B4

LABOUR STANDARDS

Our Group strives to build a healthy working
environment with equal opportunity to protect
employee’s rights and benefits. Our Group provides
equal opportunity to all employees. Our employees are
assessed by their performance and working experience
regardless of age, marital status, race, religious,
nationality or gender etc. The laws and regulations that
directly related to our Group, including but not limited to

the following:

1 Underage Workers Special Protection Provisions
2 Prohibition of Child Labour Provisions

3 Labour Law of the PRC

Specifically, our Group prohibits forced labour and
restricts the employment of child labour. We have
formulated labour rights and working condition
management rules, which lists out the following:
checking candidates identification during interview
process to prevent employing child labour; all labour
must voluntarily complete job application form to prevent
forced labour. The employees can early terminate
employment contract in accordance with the service
contract and can apply for sick leave with doctor’s
certificate. In case our Group discovers forced labour or
child labour, our Group would terminate such practices
and put forward the following remedies: report to local

authorities and record the situation.

During the Reporting Period, our Group has not violated
any of the above ordinance or regulations which lead to

investigation.
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B5

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are our important partner, through building
supplier’'s management system, our Group partnered
with suppliers that have good performance in their
corporate social responsibility, aiming to create a
sustainable development atmosphere together. Our
Group has set standard procedures for the selection
of suppliers of raw materials in accordance with the
ISO9001 standards. We also have a standard approval
form for selection of suppliers and a list of approved
suppliers were available from the internal records
for reference. There is also an assessment for the

management to review the supplier’s standards.

During the Reporting Period, our largest suppliers
were primarily contract manufacturers and equipment
and materials vendors. We have established on-
going business relationships and co-operations with
our largest suppliers during the Reporting Period for

approximately five years on average.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of
any information or arrangements which would lead to
cessation or termination of our relationships with any of

our largest suppliers during the Reporting Period.
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B6

HtERELSRE

Procurement

Since the equipment and materials used for our solid
waste treatment projects are tailor-made, we generally
place procurement orders in accordance with the
specific project design. Such equipment and materials
procured generally will not be kept in-house and will
be delivered to our customers’ sites directly for further
installation and integration. QOur inventory comprise
spare parts and other materials that were mainly used
for provision of technical upgrading and maintenance
services and we maintain a low level of such inventories.
We generally procure equipment and materials as
the components of our solution systems, and sub-
contracting services for installation and construction of
our projects. By outsourcing these services to the sub-
contractors, we are able to reduce the relevant staff
costs and risk exposures connected with providing such
sub-contracted services, which allow us to focus our

resources on our key business operations.
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading hazardous waste incineration turnkey
solution provider in the PRC, we provide our customers
with high-quality and customized hazardous waste
incineration turnkey solutions that include the design,
installation, integration and commission of the hazardous
waste incineration systems which are highly intricate
and integrated process. To provide tailor-made solutions
to our customers, we analyze waste composition and
formulate equipment configuration and system layout
based on customer specifications. We aim to achieve
optimized treatment effect of our solutions with stable
operating performance, compliant emission of pollutants

and controlled operating cost.

We place great emphasis on service quality. In
recognition of our quality assurance and related internal
control, we have obtained the ISO9001, ISO14001
and OHSAS18001 accreditations for our quality,
environmental, and occupational health and safety

management, respectively.
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We have dedicated quality control staffs who are
responsible for carrying out the quality control
procedures based on the ISO9001 standards. We
emphasize stringent quality control standards over
our services. We have implemented extensive quality
control measures at every major stage of our operational
process, from the design of solutions to the final
installation and integration of the solid waste treatment
systems, as well as the procurement process and any
after-sales activities. All of our suppliers must undergo
various inspections including site visits and evaluation,
as well as sample testing, before we approve them for

use.

Our internal guideline ensures that the equipment and
services we procure will meet the standards and quality
requirements set by us and our customers. We perform
inspections on the equipment after they are delivered by
the suppliers to our project site before installation. Any
sub-quality products identified during our inspections
are returned to our suppliers. We also have quality
control personnel conducting standard quality control
procedures and monitoring the production of the
relevant application-specific equipment at our vendors’

production facilities.

During the Reporting Period, no products were recalled
for safety and health reasons due to our specific

business nature.
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B7

HtERELSRE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Our Group is aware of the importance of honesty,
integrity and fairness in its operation and any practices
which are against law e.g. corruption, bribery, money
laundry are strictly forbidden. Bribery and facilitation
payment are prohibited within our Group. Our Group
requires employees to declare any conflict of interests
and encourages all employees to discharge their
duties with integrity and comply with the relevant
laws and regulations. Transactions involving money
require authorized signatories of the appropriate
levels depending on the amount involved. Checks and
balances have been installed in our Group for money
transaction activities and are considered effective and

adequate.

Our Group has established the Anti-fraud System* (/%
#BI2 ) which requires our directors and employees
to avoid the conflict between personal and financial
interest and their professional official duties in our
Group. Communications were made to the employees,
so they understand that using their positions in our
Group or using our Group’ s resources, properties
and information to pursue opportunities by exercising
positioning power to influence decisions or gain
access to valuable information when dealing with third
parties with his profession to achieve financial and
personal gain is strictly prohibited. In addition, our audit
committees supervise, from time to time, the anti-fraud
procedures to prevent frauds and corruptions from

happening.

During the Reporting Period, there was no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against our Group
or our employees. Our Group encourages staff to report
to their supervisor or directly to the management if they
discover any practices that violate or are against the

law.
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B8

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporation, our Group actively strives
to become a positive force in the community and
maintains close communication and interaction with the
community to contribute to community development. Our
Group stays proactive in fulfilling our responsibilities as

a corporate citizen.

During the Reporting Period, our Group did not involve
in any community investment as our Group had not

identified any suitable charity activities

In the future, our Group will actively encourage
employees to contribute their time and skills to
community volunteer works to benefit local communities
by giving them opportunities to learn more about social
and environmental issues and enhance the corporate
value of our Group. Our Group will also consider
from time to time to make donations to charities when

appropriate.
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Aspects Summary Details
=) AR I
Aspect A1: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[BHEAT: —RRHE Page 60-62
Emission Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, FHEZHE  F2M% 60628
3¢ discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste:
BEABRMORERBEN - mMKkRTHEEs  EEEER
EEREYMEH
a) The policies; and
B - &
b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEATENBBERZIERN
Aspect A2: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EM A2 : — R Page 62-64

Use of Resources

BREM

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BEREAER(BIEEER - K EEAREME) BB -

EHEZFHE  F2H%F62-64 A

Aspect A3:
BHEAS :
The Environment and

Natural Resources

General disclosure
— AR ER
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact

on the environment and natural resources.

For more details, please refer to
Page 64-65
EHEZFIE  F20HFE64-658

RERRAEIR BIREITAHRRERRAEREREATLENBR -
Aspect B1: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EMB1 : — R Page 65-67
Employment Following information on: BT ZHE  F205%565-67H
=% BERANTSENER
a) The policies; and
B - K&
b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BITHETABERYENBEBEARIER
Aspect B2: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EMB2 : — B HEE Page 68
Health and Safety Information on: ERELZHIE  E2HFE68E
RREEZE BRNATEHENER
a) The policies; and
B - K

b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.

BFHBETABEAZENEEERIES -
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Aspects Summary Details

EBm| AR #1185

Aspect B3: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EHEB3 : —RRHE Page 69

Development and

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

FHEZFE  H2H%60R

Training skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
R LI training activities.
AR EERIT IR E MMM L REEHIBER - fat
=
Aspect B4: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EF B4 : — R EE Page 70

Labour Standards
8 T

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

BEAMT IEE A E Taksa s Tay ¢

a) The policies; and
R ¢ K

b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BHETARERYENERERERY

EHEZFHE  H2HE70R

EH
Aspect B5: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
B B5 : —RRIBEE Page 71-72

Supply Chain Management

Policies on managing environmental and social risks

BHEZHE H2HE71-72R

HpEEER of the supply chain.

EIRHEROTE A B RBEE -
Aspect B6: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EHB6 : —RREE Page 72-73

Product Responsibility

EmAE

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress:
BRFMREEMNMBREHRERERZ S - BS  RELLE
EEURMBRITES
a) The policies; and
BE &
b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BTHBETABEATENBBERZIERN

FHEZFE  H28% 72738
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Aspects Summary Details
=) AR I
Aspect B7: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EEB7 : —RRHE Page 74
Anti-corruption Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money FHEZHE  F2KME4E
RES laundering:
BRI - 91K - MEFRARER
a) The policies; and
WE &
b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer.
BFHBETABEATENBREREIERN
B} o
Aspect B8: General Disclosure For more details, please refer to
[EHBS : —RRHEE Page 75

Community Investment

HEERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRNHRSERTRETASEMELEST EMBEREL
EBREHEEBERAEABOR -

FHEZFE  B2HE5A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgHE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May
2017 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Shares of
the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the 3 January 2019 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading comprehensive hazardous waste incineration
turnkey solution provider in China focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste treatment systems,

particularly for hazardous waste incineration.

A list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2018 and their particulars are set out in note 39 of the consolidated

financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided on page 8 of this annual report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year are provided in note 40 of the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided on pages
13 to 22 of this annual report. Details of the capital structure of the
Company is provided on page 22 of this annual report. Details of
the significant capital investment of the Group is provided on page

22 of this annual report.

In addition, information of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in environmental, social and governance
report of this annual report. The Company’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are provided in the section headed “Compliance with Laws

and Regulations” of this directors’ report.
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RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out on pages 105 to 229 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the
Company in general meeting may declare dividends in any currency
but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out
of the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve
or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies
or for paying off any loan capital or for equalizing dividends or for
any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied, and pending such application may, at the like
discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or
be invested in such investments (including in the repurchase by
the Company of its own securities or the giving of any financial
assistance for the acquisition of its own securities) as the Board
may from time to time think fit, and so that it shall not be necessary
to keep any investments constituting the reserve or reserves
separate or distinct from any other investments of the Company. The
Board may also without placing the same to reserve, carry forward
any profits which it may think prudent not to distribute by way of
dividend.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved that no final dividend was declared for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
31 May 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019, both days inclusive
and during which during which period no transfer of share will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Thursday,
30 May 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$200,000,000, divided into 4,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.05 each. Details of movements in the share capital of
the Company during the year 2018 are set out in note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year 2018 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 227 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of reserves available for
distribution of the Company was approximately HK$9,457,000.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its

subsidiaries made no external donations.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 3 January 2019 and the net proceeds raised from the Global
Offering were approximately HK$285.5 million. We intend to use
approximately HK$114.2 million for the continual utilization of the
pyrolysis technology for the treatment of various types of solid
waste by pyrolysis treatment systems; approximately HK$57.1
million for the establishment of a research and engineering centre
in Guangdong province; approximately HK$42.8 million for further
commercialisation of oil sludge thermal desorption technology;
approximately HK$42.90 million for cooperation with cement
producers in China to invest in and operate the business of cement
plant parallel kiln co-treatment solutions. Due to the fact that the
Company was listed on 3 January 2019, there were no proceeds
raised as at 31 December 2018. After the Listing Date, such
net proceeds will be applied in accordance with the proposed
application as disclosed in the prospectus dated 19 December
2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customers and the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 39.0% and 79.0% respectively of the

Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total amount of
purchases made by the Group from the its five largest suppliers
amounted to RMB114.1 million, and accounted for 32.0% of the
total purchases for the year. The amount of the purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to RMB31.0 million, and accounted for

8.7% of the total purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, to the knowledge of
the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates, or
Shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares
of the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.

FrEREFEAR

ANRAB A R2019F 1 A3 ARBE AT £ET0 -
mEEKEEMESHFTENIEFRELR285.5
BEBT - RFBREH 11428 8B TRRNBES
BANRRIERRSENASEEEEYEED
BANMBEM ST 1EBETRIEEERS
R TRIFEP L D428 B EBTHRHE
AP BT e — P E e 42900 B BB T
SRR BIKREEE A EIRE R LK D
ETTHREERRFTRER - BREARFRN
2m9¢1ﬁ35iﬁﬁ'FQMS¢¢2ﬂ31HW
SRSFIE - K ETMHHER - BEMBHRE
@E%&%E%ﬁmmimﬁwam%ha
ErEENEZEREER -

ITREFRHES

AEBHZARKEFRARBEE D AMEAREERE
£2018F 12 A31H It F F W A 439.0% &
79.0% ©

HE2018F12A31HILEFE  AEERER
AHERIFENHBEESEAARK 114188
TC 0 I FRIREAEES2.0% - FARRSEAEER
EEMRBRSEAARKII0EET
FE4REES. 7% ©

BREXHEEEN  BEEMAN MEEE H
ERBBARARBARRBESHIAEFES
ARBS% AL EITRNDEBE)RAFREAR
SELAHERRE,PHAEE

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B RRFIZEHREFER LN 7



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company

are set out in note 13 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following eight Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Zhuhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. DONG Honghui

Mr. DENG Zhaoshan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. REN Jingfeng

Mr. YANG Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YANG Zhifeng

Mr. JIANG Guoliang

Mr. FENG Tao
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises of eight Directors in total. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Directors” above. There are six senior
management in total, including Dr. WANG Zhicheng, Ms. HUANG
Ying, Mr. CUI Jinhong, Mr. LI Zhouxin, Mr. ZHENG Ziyuan and Mr.
GU Chunbin.

Information about the details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with all Directors
for a term of three years following each Director’'s respective
appointment date or until the third annual general meeting of
the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, or
which shall be terminated pursuant to relevant terms of respective

contracts or letters of appointment.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which was not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts and the Contractual Arrangements,
there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which none of the Directors of the
Company or its connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN BUSINESSES
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors,
confirming that other than business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short
position in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

EERBEITRAERRAAAR
HEEZERA - HERO R
EEENNERSRAR

RERERATAY  EFRARRARSTERA
BRARR REMEAE(ExA(EF MGG
BIYEXVE) BBy - HEBR D RERETHA
RIBCGE MG G HI)FEXVABE 7 X580 &b
HMEARARRERANERZ AR (BREERIE
(EZEARGIDHNZFERRXE SER
WiEmMOAR)  HARBKREZFERABGIDE
352 {FEA B B &P Pl ir 2R AR R R &
W EmMOAR - FRBGRETRIDVAME R
B MBS P s SR BN T

Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares ABROREBRRAPHNEFRE
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number the Company’s
Note of ordinary of underlying issued share
Name of Director Nature of interest it shares held shares held capital
PN
FEFERER FrEsEE BBRITRAN
EEpER EatE B R EE BHBEI
Mr. CAl Zhuhua Interest in controlled corporation 700,100,000 — 52.51%
BRELE REEB R ER
Interest of spouse 1 — 3,933,338 0.295%
[ £
Mr. DONG Honghui Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.295%
BUBEE ERBEAA
Mr. DENG Zhaoshan  Beneficial owner — 3,933,338 0.295%
Bk EEE EHHEA
Notes: Htat -

1. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG Ying. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
CAl is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG
Ying is interested.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at
Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executives
and their respective associates had any interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
(i) which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company, or (ii) which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at Latest Practicable Date, the
following person (other than the Directors and chief executives) had
interest or short positions in the shares of the Company which would
be required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company:

Long Position in Shares and Underlying Shares

FERRES

BEFAA REEERAITES U TAL
(BEFEHERHTRABBRINRAR BB HHESR
ARBCGES LB HEADFEXVEBE 2 %37 &
BT AR BB SR IBCRE 77 I B {5 191 ) 8 336 fi&
ARAB RGPl ERMORH IR MT

Name of Director Nature of interest Notes
EEgE EEME et
WeiGang Technology Beneficial owner 1
BRI E=mEAA
Weigang Green Interest in controlled corporation 1
G E REEBR R
Mr. CAl Interest in controlled corporation 1
BEE REZZER R
Interest of spouse 2
[
Ms. HUANG Interest of spouse 3
BERL fofdEs
Beneficial owner 3
EnBAA
Jade Fly Beneficial owner 4
oY E=mEAA
Mr. REN Interest in controlled corporation 4
Fh4E REE BRI ER
Ms. LIN Ying Interest of spouse 5
Lin Ying&Z £ fefEE e

RROREBERGHNGTRE
Approximately
percentage of
Number Number  the Company’s
of ordinary of underlying issued share
shares held shares held capital
RN
FEFEBER B EBRITRAN
=] R7EE BHABESE
700,100,000 — 52.51%
700,100,000 — 52.51%
700,100,000 — 52.51%
— 3,933,338 0.295%
700,100,000 — 52.51%
— 3,933,338 0.295%
299,900,000 — 22.49%
299,900,000 — 22.49%
299,900,000 — 22.49%
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Notes:

1. WeiGang Technology is wholly owned by Weigang Green which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. CAl. Mr. CAl and Weigang Green are
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by WeiGang Technology
under the SFO.

2. Mr. CAl is the spouse of Ms. HUANG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. CAl
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. HUANG is
interested.

3. Ms. HUANG is the spouse of Mr. CAl. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. HUANG
is deemed to interested in all the Shares in the Shares in which Mr. CAI
is interested.

4. Jade Fly is wholly owned by Mr. REN. Mr. REN is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Jade Fly under the SFO.

5. Ms. LIN Ying is the spouse of Mr. REN. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. LIN
Ying is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. REN is
interested.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate for the Reporting

Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors and senior management. The permitted indemnity

provisions are set out in such liability insurance.
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to incentivize the Directors, senior management, connected
persons and other grantees for their contribution to the Group and
to attract and retain suitable personnel to the Group, the Company
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 10 December 2018.
Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period
commencing on the 10 December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”) and
ending on the tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date. A summary of
the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is set out

as below.
Administration

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is administered by the committee
established by the management of the Company for the purpose of
stipulation, administration and implementation of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Committee”). The Committee shall be entitled
at any time during the term of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
make an offer to any Grantee as the Committee may in its absolute
discretion select to take up Options in respect of such number of

Shares as the Committee may determine at the subscription price.
Eligible Participants

Those eligible to participate in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Grantee”) include any individual, form of body corporate,
unincorporated association, firm, partnership, joint venture,
consortium, organization or trust (in each case whether or not
having a separate legal personality) who or which is granted a
right to subscribe for Shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme hereunder by the Company pursuant to the decision of the

Committee.
Exercise Price

The price per Share at which a Grantee under the may subscribe
for Shares on the exercise of an Option shall be determined by the
Board from time to time and shall be set out in an offer letter (the
“Offer Letter”) in such form as the Committee may from time to time

determine.
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Vesting Schedule

The vesting schedule shall be determined by the Board from time
to time and shall be set out in the Offer Letter. There shall be
no accelerated vesting of any options except that with the prior
approval of the Board vesting may be fully accelerated for a period
of not more than one year upon a change of control of the Company
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

Details of the Options Granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

As at the Latest Practicable Date, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 46,666,725 Shares at no consideration, representing
approximately 3.5% of the issued share capital of the Company
have been granted to a total of 35 eligible participants under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to the eligible participants of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out below:

(1)  Date of adoption : 10 December 2018
(2) Exercise Price : HK$0.23

(8) Exercisable period : from 3 January 2021 to 29 April 2027

BEEERX

BRI It F TR L HTINE L
o EABRIESTRIERE « RINAAT
BRI R E B AR AR HHAHH AE
HERDAEFENFARE - AT 2EMES
5—FRE -

R EIR DB 3 E AT R AERT 81 B IR R
&

REEERATEE  ARRDREE XA
BENBRETEZERERNSEIBEZEER
2 EF R RES 46,666,725 B I 17 B BB AX
o HHERARRRDBITIRAL3.5% -

95 B0 2 B 4 AR 2174 2018 48 12 A
1A RARES 182 5E BB EN S
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(1) H#BEH :2018F12A10H
(2) 17fF(E : 0.23%7C

(3) fTHEHARI : 2021 F 1 A3AE2027F 4 3
29H

Number of Number of Shares Number of Shares Number of Shares

Shares underlying the underlying the underlying the
underlying Options vested Options exercised Options lapsed
the Options during the during the during the
Grantee granted Reporting Period Reporting Period Reporting Period
RUBRE RESHREDT RBEHA REEHA
BN TRERGNBRE THEBRE B IR R Ok B
EEA RHOEE HEBENROEE HEANROEE BN RO EE
Directors
=
DONG Honghui 3,933,338 0 0 0
EAIRE
DENG Zhaoshan 3,933,338 0 0 0
Bk
Employees
=]
HUANG Ying 3,933,338 0 0 0
(wife of Mr. CAIl Zhuhua)
HE(BRERENET)
32 other employees 34,866,711 0 0 2,213,336

RHEMEE
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at the
date of this annual report, which was in line with the requirement

under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were first listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. Neither the Company nor
any member of the Group has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s shares during the period from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance of the Directors
and senior management and comparable market practices. The
Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share
based payments, pensions, and other social insurance benefits.
Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors
receive compensation according to their duties (including serving

as members or chairmen of the Board committees).
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Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and
duties and with reference to the market conditions, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the prevailing market conditions, subject
to the approval of the shareholders general meeting. Details of
remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 10 to

the Financial Statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. CAI, Weigang
Green and WeiGang Technology, has executed a deed of non-
competition on 10 December 2018 pursuant to which they have
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for the
Company itself and on behalf of the members of the Group) that,
during the period that the Non-Competition Deed remains effective,
he/it/she shall not, and shall procure that his/its/her close associates
(other than any member of the Company) shall not, directly or
indirectly, develop, acquire, participate in, hold any right or interest
or invest in or engage in, render any services for or otherwise
be involved in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activities of the Company
in the PRC or any other area in which the Company carries on
business. The Company shall seek opinion and decision from
the independent non-executive Directors who are responsible for
reviewing and determining whether to accept or decline such new
business opportunity provided by Controlling Shareholders or its
associates. The details of the Deed of Non-competition have been
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship

with Controlling Shareholders”.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures,
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and
integrity in all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and
operations are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations and to enhance the transparency and accountability of

the Board to all shareholders.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct

regarding Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, each Director
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code after the listing date. The Board has
also established written guidelines to regulate dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred
to in code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

AUDITORS

This financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and will not
be re-appointed. The Board, with the recommendation of the audit
committee of the Company, will propose to appoint a new auditor of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the AGM, subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As mentioned in the Prospectus, the Group has entered into a
project contract with Jiangsu Suquan Solid Waste Treatment Limited
(“Jiangsu Suquan Contract”) for the design, equipment procurement
and installation and testing of hazardous waste incineration facilities
for the Jiangsu Nanjing hazardous waste incineration project ()T
B R EREYNERSBEER). The Jiangsu Suquan Contract was
entered into between Guangzhou Weigang, an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of our Company, and Jiangsu Suquan on 25 June
2018.

The transaction contemplated under the Jiangsu Suquan Contract
was on-going as at the Latest Practicable Date. The aggregate tax-
inclusive consideration for the services is RMB43,420,000. Jiangsu
Suquan is an associate of Mr. REN in view of their relationship as
set forth below and thus, it will become a connected person of our
Company upon Listing. Given the Jiangsu Suquan Contract was
entered into prior to the Listing and the transaction contemplated
thereunder is one-off in nature, such transaction will not be
classified as a notifiable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules or connected transaction or continuing connected transaction

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as for the above, the Group did not enter into any other
connected transactions which should comply with the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For certain material related party transactions disclosed in note 25
to the Financial Statements which were also connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Company, the
Company had made disclosure as required under the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or

threatened against the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has allocated system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to maintain
well relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year, the Group has complied, to the
best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Company.

By order of the Board

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited

CAIl Zhuhua

Chairman

PRC

26 March 2019
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 105 to 229, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

BHRESER

MREASRERERMNEXHE - RREAR
AN BHRERNETRAEENEH - GLS
HRAERMETERGEAVBRREHAR AR
ETREN - HATSHELERIEHEBNE

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 8o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BEREEE

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers
for hazardous waste incineration solutions services
BREAEFABREYRBEEEMR T RRBEAET L&A
KA

We identified the recognition of revenue on contracts
with customers for hazardous waste incineration
solutions services as key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the
significant estimations made by the management in the
determining the stage of completion of contracts.

BB RATEPRERENRERERRT RRGAFILEH
MABR AERESER  RESEYHGRAREREME
HPHEEEEEATE  EEETANERERSREERED
EPNER

As set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has recognised revenue from
hazardous waste incineration solutions services
amounting to RMB444,771,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

BANER A B SRR M RS il - i E20184F 12 A31 A 1E

FE BEEECHRARECREVYREEER RS RRBEH
W AANER®E 444,771,000 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEMHFT N AHEERTBEETEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue on contracts with customers for hazardous
waste incineration solutions services included:

A MR R PR EREYRIER SRR BRG]
BRNBARETEF 21

. Obtaining an understanding of the revenue
business process and the key controls
over revenue recognition performed by the
management, including the estimation of the
total contract costs and recording of cost in
determining the stage of completion of contracts;

TR A RS IIR R E R E B A BERR AT 1T BY B SR 4T
H - BIEMEEETKE NRERIES LKA R K
N

o On a sample selection basis, agreeing the
contract sum to signed contracts;

EHMERAEEREC R NEER

o On a sample selection basis, agreeing the
estimated total contract costs to signed
contracts, visiting selected construction sites
and interviewing project managers for the
progress of the construction work and evaluating
the reasonableness of estimated total contract
costs prepared by management by performing
gross margin analysis and comparing the
actual outcome of completed projects against
management’s estimation of total contract costs;

BIRMERAREZ U R RA R ATIERTEL -
ERpTEL - WETHARKEDSAZETRNE
B ARGEBETEMNAN R E KA R BB
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRESHEE

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers
for hazardous waste incineration solutions services
(continued)

EREEFAEREYRBEEEERT FRBEAZT LS
KA (&)

The accounting policies and estimation uncertainty in
relation to revenue from hazardous waste incineration
solutions services are set out in Notes 3 and 4
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group recognised revenue from hazardous waste
incineration solutions services over time by using
the input method, which is measured by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
end of the reporting period, as measured based on
the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs. The estimated contract revenue is determined
in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contract. The estimated total contract costs are based
on contracted amount of suppliers’ contracts, and in
respect of amounts not contracted for, management
estimates by taking into consideration of historical
trends for the amounts incurred and adjusted for any

price fluctuation during the year, where applicable.

R B ERENREEERRN RRBH WA ST BR K
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HRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRI NMAHERBRIT ERETEE

Tracing, on a sample selection basis, the contract
costs incurred for work performed during the year

to supporting documents;

BHEEAEEBEFAMET TIZEL S NKARE
BRI

Arranging confirmations to selected customers
by agreeing the contract amount, the progress
billings issued to customers, and relevant balance
of trade and note receivables, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contracts based on the

confirmed information;

RAEREREPLHEREZBLHANSE REPHE
HE A KERFASERE 5 R UGR M E RS B ER
#BER - ARBEEEREN TG EBRSONTKA D
LEEY & BB T LART A

Performing alternative procedures for the
unreturned confirmation by tracing to the relevant
supporting documents, and assessing the
reasonableness of the percentage of completion
of the corresponding contract based on the

supporting documents; and

EBEERMEX AR A TEORRERTER
B DREEAXHEAEANNETES LHAR
(STEIEp

Recalculating the percentage of completion based
on the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the estimated

total contract costs.

RIBHZB AR TREEENASONME-EFTEAE K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEETSEE
Estimated impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets
ESERHAREHNEEN B BE

We identified the estimated impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to their significance to the consolidated statement
of financial position and the involvement of management
judgement in evaluating the expected credit losses
("ECL") of trade receivables and contract assets at the
end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had trade receivables and contract assets
with carrying amount of approximately RMB127,104,000
and RMB176,973,000 in Notes 19 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively,
amounting to approximately RMB304,077,000 in
aggregate.

BMKBEZERERERANEENTERERD ABERES
2 REAAEHGAUBRAREEEATERNITER
EHANE SRR FERENEENTBHEEBERIRE
BEHE - R2018F 12 A31H  EXEREES BN AA
R# 127,104,000 7t &2 A R # 176,973,000 7T K & 5 FE UL 5%
BRAVNEBE(RGAEMBHRERMT 19 RME21)EEHOABA
R 304,077,000 7T °

HARETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MRS M AHERBITERETER

Our audit procedures in relation to the estimated
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

included:

BMEMEZREFAR A HEENEIRENETEFE
&

o Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of assessing the ECL of trade receivables

and contract assets;

THREREFEEIREFBRANEENTRAERES
1BHYBIZ -

o Assessing management’ s basis and judgment,
including their identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables and contract assets and the basis
of expected loss rates applied individually (with
reference to historical observed default rates and
forward looking information), in determining the ECL
of trade receivables and contact assets as at 31
December 2018;

AAEEEEREEE S RUGRER S HEER20184F
12A31 HMAHEEBER 2 LXK HE - 2ER5
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRESHEE

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets (continued)
EBESENFARSHEEN A BE(E)

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and
contract assets based on credit risk of the respective
counterparty. Expected loss rates are assessed
individually based on each customer's credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed default rates

adjusted by forward looking estimates.

MR BRI T AMBKE  EEEEEERBEEHY
FHNEERRGEEESRUFARAGDEENEETES
BHEEEREEHE - AHBLAEIREZTFPEENESRARE
BRI MR A E L BEE QR M (EH B BIRFE -

As disclosed in Notes 19 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the impairment loss of the Group
on trade receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB3,148,000 and
RMB3,923,000, respectively.

AR A SRR E 19 R 21 FTiREE - SEEPN 20184 12
A31HNBZRUFERENEENREEED A AARE
3,148,000 7T & A R 3,923,000 7T ©

HRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRI NMAHERBRIT ERETEE

Checking the subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired trade receivables, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of the

current reporting period; and

BEFEREER S RUKENRREEBN - LEAR
EHERREREWESEB AR S YGRHERXME
K

Evaluating the appropriateness of the disclosures
in respect of the credit risk and impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract

assets in the consolidated financial statements.

AERAMBHRRTAREEZRUGKIBRENEENRE
BB RREMMENRERSRE °
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

R ET FEMBRREAENEE
(&)

. E%%ﬁﬁﬁf%%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@'\ﬁ%’I*ﬂ’ﬁﬂj
i o RBIERWBRITEE  EERS
FEESEXBREBNENTHEEN
HMA R EREERENFELLEENE
EBRRRE - MREMBA/TFEEANTHE
EE - RIA Y EERBEN RS T REEA
FIBHGAMBHRRTNBERE - BE
BRANEETR  MEMAEEERIFER
BER - ﬁfF‘iE’J,mmE%EAT?%ZEM&iE
IEFFES VBT RRE - A - RIKFIEK
ERAREERERE TR ELE -

s HESRAMBRERNERIWIN  E8
MAR  BREEE  URGaUBRERE
BATFRBMZXZMER -

s HMESAERNERAEBTINGEDE
BER  BENBRRE  UHGREME
BEERER -RMAEEEEETNS
M- EEBRT c KRB ERRES
HEME -

BREMEBIRS  HAERIREIBE T A EIMES
E - BRTH EXEFERSES - BREEME
BT AP ARl L P BB AR I B (A R ERPA -

BMEABEERRER  HARMEREEH
BYMERREERERER  WEEFEBEEAR
AR A EBPIBL IR PIA B R
HMEIE - UREERNERT - 1885 &5
i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Chan Men.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 March 2019

R ET FEMBRREAENEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeEaRkRAtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT AREFor
Revenue A 5 480,091 189,407
Cost of services PR 75 X 2 (355,428) (127,303)
Gross profit EF 124,663 62,104
Other income, gains and losses B - e K EE 8,110 2,372
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEEE(NRER) (716) (767)
Administrative expenses TR (27,854) (11,743)
Distribution and selling expenses DR EER (951) —
Other expenses HEMAR (29,251) ({14;474)
Share of results of an associate FEAGBSE & (b SE R 2E AR — (675)
Finance costs L& AR 7 (6,031) (438)
Profit before tax iz EbE 67,970 36,379
Income tax expense i F 8 (10,559) (6,620)
Profit for the year F R FE 57,411 29,759
Other comprehensive (expense) Hib2E (B X)) &
income
Items that may be reclassified BETE AIBEE T R 2 1B i
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AI[fHESREEN
financial assets AR EBERZE — 2,084
ltems that will not be reclassified to T E&&EHHDEEIBFMER :
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on equity instrument & AR BEFTELFAHM
at fair value through other 2EBEMRATARY
comprehensive income AR EEEE (604) —
Income tax relating to items that will EAE@EHFHEEIBZEHNIEER
not be reclassified to profit or loss BEANEH (370) —
(974) 2,084
Total comprehensive income for the FRZMEUREERE
year 56,437 31,843
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEaRAtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 20184 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARMTFT AREFr
Profit (loss) for the year AR &5 EGEERFAE(ERE):
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2SN 49,799 30,195
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 7,612 (436)
57,411 29,759
Total comprehensive income ATF&FEEFEAZE K
(expense) for the year (R )M :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARER A 48,825 32,279
Non-controlling interests Sy 7,612 (436)
56,437 31,843
Earnings per share B2 A
— Basic (RMB) — EX (AR¥T) 11 0.049 0.032
— Diluted (RMB) — BB(AR®T) 11 0.048 0.032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &R

At 31 December 2018 /2018 12 A 31 H

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT ARMFr
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 13 23,531 9,618
Intangible assets EEE 14 16,683 93
Investment in an associate REE SRR E 15 — 5,588
Available-for-sale investment AEfHERE 16 — 3,584
Equity instrument at fair value BRAREBEELA
through other comprehensive Hit 2 EW I RAT A
income 16 2,980 —
Deposits for acquisition of BEME  BELRBNIZS
property, plant and equipment 5,463 4,551
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITIFR 22 17,467 —
Deferred tax assets EER I E = 17 2,792 1,476
68,916 24,861
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE8 18 1,983 22
Trade and note receivables B 5 WA K R IR 19 142,835 57,783
Deposits, prepayments and e BENRER
other receivables H {th fE Y5k 20 29,146 23,181
Contract assets BHEE 21 176,973 69,372
Pledged bank deposits BRI RITIF K 22 26,445 8,888
Bank balances and cash RITHEB KRS 22 23,437 68,946
400,819 228,192
CURRENT LIABILITIES RE AR
Trade payables B S RN HIE 23 84,074 32,870
Other payables and accrued H bR R ERT A X
expenses 24 39,778 9,514
Contract liabilities SREE 21 72,885 67,779
Amounts due to shareholders FES AR R 5B 25(a) — 93,994
Amount due to a related party JE 1 BE S 75 3R 25(b) — 2,524
Income tax payable FEMFTISHE 3,807 675
Bank borrowings IRITER 26 10,000 1,000
210,544 208,356
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BB &

At 31 December 2018 7220184 12 A 31 H

PLRE: 2017
2018 2017 &F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR FT ARKTFT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 190,275 19,836
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBAR
LIABILITIES 259,191 44,697
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bank borrowings |ITERK 26 — 10,000
Obligation arising from a put option R AHAEE A S (F 27 99,901 —
99,901 10,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 159,290 34,697
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E
Share capital A& A 28 41,413 —
Reserves s 90,657 35,133
Equity attributable to owners of KAEVHER AELE
the Company 132,070 &5, 188
Non-controlling interests TR 27,220 (436)
TOTAL EQUITY R 159,290 34,697
The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 229 were E105 2229 B W& M5 KR 7L 20194 3 A 26
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 AEES i ERIBRERM WA TIEERERE
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: E:
Mr. Cai Zhuhua Mr. Dong Honghui
BIRFELRLE BEAELEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
3 E2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREZBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARE
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share option Other  Revaluation surplus  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
EE
Bx  RAEE BRERE  EbBE 00 EGBE  BBBE  EHAR M EBRES &
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB1000 RMB1000
AEEFT  AREFT ARETr ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETL
(Note 28) (Note (a)) (Note (b))
Wz 2) Wi () (Wit (b))
At 1 January 2017 RO17E1A1A 10,000 - - - - 4,240 38,159 52,399 - 52,399
Profit (loss) for the year EE ) - - - = = = 30,195 30,19 (436) 2759
Other comprehensive Emip2Eha
income for the year - - - - 2,084 - - 2,084 - 2,084
Total comprehensive income - ER2 AN (F%) 28
(expense) for the year - - - - 2,084 - 30,19 229 (436) 31,843
Transfer to statutory suplus~~~ EREERRS - - - - - 760 (760) = = =
Arising from the group Rl 1 it e B SR
reorganisation as detallin ([24)Ex
Note 1 (*Reorganisation’) (10,000 - - (39,545) - - - (49,545) - (49,545)
At 31 December 2017 RA17E12A31R = - - (39,545) 2,084 5,000 67,594 35,133 (436) 34,697
Proft for the year EmilE - - - - - - 49,799 49,799 7612 57411
Other comprehensive expense  EMEBRARR
for the year, net of income (MBHER)
tax - - - - (o74) - - (o74) - (o74)
Total comprehensive (expense)  ER2A(FR UikeE
income for the year - - - - (974) - 49,799 48,825 1612 56,437
Transfer to statutory suplus~~~ EREARE% - - - = = 8211 (8.211) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares to pre- B RABRENREZES
IPO investors, net of share LRR(NBROE N
Issue cost (Note (c)) KWELw) 841 16,281 - - = = = 17122 = 17122
lssue of ordinary shares by~ BEEHATLETEAR
loan capitalsation ()
(Note () 40,572 7302 - - - - - 47874 - 47874
Capital contrbuton from a FERRRTE T )
non-controlling shareholder
(Note (¢) - - ) - B00) (664 TS 18E08 944
Capital contrbution fiom a FERRREEH )
non-conirolling shareholder
(Note 1) - - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Recogniion of obligation Be MR NRE
aising fiom a put option i)
(Nete (2) - - () - - Ty ()
Recognition of equity-setled  BRREERNRNAZRS
share based payment xet )
(Note (38)) - - 2,160 - - - - 2,160 - 2,160
Acquistion of adaftional YEMBRRNE R
interest of a Subsiciary W)
(Note (g) - - - (436 - - - (436 6 -
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A318 H413 23,583 2,160 (60.425) 1,110 121 101,018 182,070 21220 169,290
: Less than RMB1,000 T 2RARET,0007T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Other reserve included:

(i) the consideration of RMB35,317,000 and RMB2,524,000 for
acquiring 70% and 5% equity interests in Guangzhou Weigang
Environmental Protection Technology Limited (“Guangzhou
Weigang”) by the Group from Mr. Cai Zhuhua (“Mr. Cai”) and
Ms. Huang Ying (“Ms. Huang”) on 5 August 2017;

(i) an amount of RMB11,704,000 representing the difference of
the net liabilities of Jade Far Investment Limited (“Jade Far”)
which mainly comprised of a current account of RMB12,213,000
with Mr. Ren Yunan (“Mr. Ren”) and the nominal value of
1,750 shares issued by the Company for the acquisition of
25% interests in Guangzhou Weigang by the Group through
the acquisition of the entire interest in Jade Far from Jade Fly
Investment Limited (“Jade Fly”) on 8 September 2017;

(iiiy ~ the transfer of the share capital of RMB10,000,000 of
Guangzhou Weigang to other reserve upon completion of the
Reorganisation; and

(iv) (1) the difference between the capital contribution from the non-
controlling interests, the proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-
attribution of statutory surplus reserve and accumulated profits
of Guangzhou Weigang to non-controlling interests; and (2) the
recognition of obligation arising from a put option granted to the
non-controlling interests of Guangzhou Weigang as detailed in
note (e) as below.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after tax as
per statutory financial statements determined under the PRC laws and
regulations for the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve reach
50% of their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributing dividends to equity owners of the subsidiaries. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital
of the respective subsidiaries.

On 13 February 2018, the Company has allotted and issued 16,155,353
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to two pre-IPO investors for a total
consideration of HK$16,991,957 (equivalent to RMB13,706,000).

On 9 April 2018, the Company has allotted and issued 4,708,647
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to another pre-IPO investor for a total
consideration of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to RMB4,016,000).

Bt

Hitpf# e

(i) AEENR2017FE8 B RBEKRELLE
(M5 ) RERLT(THRLE DREMNE
BRENEARDA(EMAES ] 70% &
5% MR A 2w 2 1 B A R ¥ 35,317,000 7T &
AR 2,524,000 7T

(i)  ARK11,704,000 THERNEREEGR AR
(IABEDHNFEEEZE TEZRIEHERen
Yunanft E((EXEEDHEREKER AR
12,213,0007C © & R 2017469 A8H KA 2
AEBBEARREARABD(ARDR
7N B ) 2 B4 2k DA LR B P BB N 4% 25% 1Y
M  MAASEEEITA 1,750 ARG K E
&

(i) BEHZTKE EZEMNEBTREAARE
10,000,000 7L & & Aib S : &

(iv)  (MIFREEERTE BERMNEBEES
ERREEREH D KRN EBNETE RS
FERRETE T IR R 2 RrEH
Ko (2) HERR IR T M 48 JE R IR 25 BV R
HIEAMEAE AT XHE () °

REBERFEARKMBE(THEDERZOMRENRBR
BB EIZAR - P EIKTE A RAR A ER T
BERPAZMOBRRAMB(RBEHEEEERET)
TEE10% FRAERSFHE  BEERBEIEE
& ) 50% © [A)R% fq6 Y B8 A\ A 7R 2 R Y B 8 )
A AD KRS RETT AT ARFEEA ABE
BREARMFENER  BERAAEBRERAERE
FYEE A B BINEAS o

MN2018F 2R 138 ' AARIAMEBERAHAEE
AT & & AR 3 317 16,155,353 R & R E 1 0.05
TR LR - BEER 16,991,957 BT (HER
AR# 13,706,000 7T) °

MN2018F4 A9  RRARMB—BERAFREE
A% & & AL 2% & 317 4,708,647 B & IR T {8 0.05 78
TEHE R - A Y{E 55,000,000 8T (HHERAR
#4,016,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

On 26 January 2018, Jade Fly has agreed to subscribe for
1,499,497,901 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company at the subscription price in the sum equivalent to the amount
of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent to RMB14,356,000) which are to be
satisfied by capitalising the loan amount of HK$17,691,182.

On 26 January 2018, WeiGang Technology Limited (“WeiGang
Technology”) has agreed to subscribe for 3,500,495,099 shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at the subscription
price in the sum equivalent to the amount of HK$41,307,518 (equivalent
to RMB33,518,000) which are to be satisfied by capitalising the loan
amount of HK$41,307,518.

On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang, WEIGANG HOLDINGS (HONG
KONG) LIMITED (“Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong)”), Jade Road
Investment Limited (“Jade Road”), Jade Fly, WeiGang Technology and
Orient Landscape Group Environmental Protection Co., Ltd (“Orient
Landscape”), an independent third party, entered into investment
agreements whereby Orient Landscape agreed, among others, to
subscribe for the registered capital of RMB40,000,000 in Guangzhou
Weigang, for 10% of the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang, at a
consideration of RMB94,444,444. Upon completion of the subscription
on 11 April 2018, an amount representing the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang at
the date of the completion of the subscription is transferred to non-
controlling interests. The difference between the capital contribution
from the non-controlling interests, the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-
attribution of its statutory surplus reserve and accumulated profits is
recognised in other reserve.

On the same date, an amount representing the present value
amounting to RMB94,444,444 of the amount that the Group could
be required to pay to Orient Landscape pursuant to the put option
over the 10% equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient
Landscape, with a corresponding debit in other reserve, is recognised
in obligation arising from a put option, as detailed in Note 27.

On 15 July 2018, Weierneng Environmental (Suzhou) Limited
(“Weierneng Environmental”) was established by Shenzhen Xinnengji
Technology Limited (“Shenzhen Xinnengji’) and an independent third
party, Party D and a capital injection amounting to RMB1,000,000 and
RMB 1,000,000 has been paid by the Group and Party D, respectively.

On 14 September 2018, Guangzhou Weigang acquired the remaining
27.14% equity interest in Shenzhen Xinnengji from Party A at
consideration of RMB1 and Shenzhen Xinnengji became a wholly
owned subsidiary of Guangzhou Weigang. The amount of non-
controlling interest of RMB436,000 was transferred to other reserve.

(d)

MN2018F 1 A26H * ARERERBEARAIKRA
#11,499,497,901 ik & A% T E0.018 7T &9 fx 7 -
RBEETER17691,182B T(HE R AR
14,356,000 70) * #5LA#5 17,691,182 B T E R E A
=opaEv-2n

2018451 A26H - BRI AR D A(# B
BH# 1) B R ERE AR R AR A H 3,500,495,099
BERBECOIETHNRG REELAEAR
41,307,518 % 7t (18 & M A R # 33,518,0007T )
H LA 41,307,518 BT ERE MMM A XA -

20184 A48 - BM#GEE  #BEZEREE)
BRAB([HAERRES)])  NEREFRRQ
RAI(TAREE D - AR - #BRRRR S BREBIRR
BRAR(RAEMW] - RBNLE=7)I &AW
& Bt RABEMRE(EHEE)REEMES
AR # 40,000,000 7T #9 +E ffl & 28 (BN 47 10% &)
BeHE) - HEAARK 94,444,444 7T - REER 2018
FA4R11BARHKE  —EHERTRAEE BEMN
WEMESEEFEREDEN S EER T IFERE
o IR EE  BIEEMNEBEEFENE
HEREFHHELEERBERRZATIEZHEN
ZFERH bR o

AA - BFRSEEASENRARRTBMNRIFH
BEARE 94,444,444 7 GRFR 77 BIMEF A B B M
HAE10% REHRBHHENEMFEERER) B
R EENEERER - SEAME27

R2018%F7 4158 * BB RREEGMN)ER
AR(TERERR D BRYIFEBRRZAR AR
(TR FHeEm DR —BBLE=FT AR &
SEHET 55 B AR 1,000,000 kAR
1,000,000 TIEAEE °

R2018F9 8148 BM@EBUARBEA THY
BERHWE T IRIIF BT 27.14% K IR AN 42
&= ORYIFEE R BEMESN 2 ENB AR - 3
PRk HE R A R 436,000 7T B8 = H % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z£2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

PLRE: 2017
2018 £ 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFr
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before tax 5 B FE 67,970 36,379
Adjustments for: FAEIFEE :
Share of results of an associate FEAGESE & (b S B AR — 675
Gain on deregistration of investment in R B ERE 2 WE
an associate (Note 6) (Ki#t6) (97) —
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE
equipment 1,726 397
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE 413 34
Bank interest income ERITH B U A (375) (128)
Finance costs LRI N 6,031 438
Impairment loss, net of reversal B (B &R 716 767
Net foreign exchange gains HNPE Uk 2 F BB (3,054) (112)
Share based payment expenses AR BEEOZHRAZ 2,160 —
Operating cash flows before LEESPIRNKLERSNE
movements in working capital 75,490 38,450
Increase in inventories FE LN (1,961) (15)
Increase in trade and note receivables B 5 MW SR8 I e UK ZE AR N (84,878) (28,024)
Increase in deposits, prepayments B TR R E MR K GRIE
and other receivables 0 (1,497) (15,208)
Increase in contract assets BHEELM (109,679) (36,920)
Increase in trade payables B 5 ME T FRIEE N 51,204 22,876
Increase in other payables and accrued H b JE 5 R TE K FEET RS2 48 0
expenses 5,906 5,854
Increase in contract liabilities EHAEEM 5,106 53,190
Cash generated (used in) from operations #& 4 (FTH )33 < (60,309) 40,203
Income tax paid 2R ATS (9,113) (8,383)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REED(FA) ERSFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (69,422) 31,820
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z£2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

PLRE: 2017
2018 £ 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFr
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of and deposits paid for BEME  BEEEBEREMiZS
property, plant and equipment (7,443) (13,695)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (4,303) —
Repayment of advances to third party BRMAE=FEHBR — 1,800
Interest received 2 HFE 375 128
Dividends received from an associate BUEEE AR E — 1,328
Settlement of consideration payable for WEE— XML E, HBARZ
acquisition of an associate/a subsidiary EREELEE — (3,600)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREE HFRITFR 500 8,388
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABBKIFRITIER (35,524) (17,276)
Return of investment upon deregistration — #E$HEE & D EZHIEE O R
of an associate (Note 15) (HtaE15) 5,636 —
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEZBHFTARESTE
ACTIVITIES (40,759) (22,927)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Repayment to shareholders EES TN (43,152) —
Advance from shareholders AR 25K — 46,464
Repayment to related parties [m) B BSE 75 38 3K (2,433) (3,000)
Interest paid B FLE (574) (438)
Issue costs paid BT (2,335) (2,036)
New bank borrowings raised EEERFIBITER - 11,000
Repayment of bank borrowings ERIRITER — =
Capital injection from pre-IPO investors BRARABEEMREEFE 17,722 =
Capital contribution from a non-controlling &M 4 8 JEIE A AR R A
shareholder of Guangzhou Weigang (Btat27)
(Note 27) 94,444 —
Capital injection by a non-controlling R TE
shareholder 1,000 ==
NET CASH FROM FINANCING REIEBESFER
ACTIVITIES 64,672 51,990
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH B&RESZEWORL)RINEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (45,509) 60,883
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNRERASEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 68,946 8,063
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented BITEBEES
by bank balances and cash 23,437 68,946
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GENERAL

Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 18 May 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands.
The immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company are WeiGang Technology and
Weigang Green Technology Limited (“Weigang Green”),
respectively, both of which were incorporated in British Virgin
Island (“BVI”) and are wholly owned by Mr. Cai, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group, who is also the chairman
and executive director of the Company. The shares of the
Company had been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 3
January 2019.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008 Cayman Islands and the address of
principal place of business of the Company is Unit 3507, 35/F,
AlA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion
of the reorganisation, the main operating activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) were carried out by Guangzhou Weigang and
its subsidiaries (including Xinjiang Wosen Environmental
Protection Technology Limited (“Xinjiang Wosen”), Shenzhen
Xinnengji, Chaozhou Xinnengji Technology Limited
(“Chaozhou Xinnengji”) and Guangdong Lvhuan Taian
Environmental Protection Limited (“Guangdong Lvhuan”)),
which were established in the PRC. Guangzhou Weigang
was owned by Mr. Cai and Ms. Huang, the spouse of Mr.
Cai, at 70% and 30%, respectively and controlled collectively
by them. On 8 November 2016, Ms. Huang and Jade Road,
an investment holding company wholly owned by Mr. Ren,
entered into an equity interest transfer agreement pursuant
to which Jade Road agreed to purchase, and Ms. Huang
agreed to sell 25% equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang
held by Ms. Huang to Jade Road at a consideration of
RMB12,100,000. Ms. Huang and Jade Road became a 5%
and 25% shareholder of Guangzhou Weigang, respectively,

upon completion of the transfer on 26 December 2016.
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GENERAL (continued)

Pursuant to the reorganisation as fully explained in the
section “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure”
to the prospectus of the Company date 19 December
2018 (“Prospectus”), the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 5
August 2017. The Company and its operating subsidiaries
namely, Guangzhou Weigang and its subsidiaries have
been under the common control of Mr. Cai before and
after the Reorganisation, or since their respective dates of
incorporation/establishment, where there is a shorter period.

In preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange(the “Listing”),
the companies comprising the Group underwent the
Reorganisation involving steps which include the interspersing
of certain investment holding companies between Mr. Cai, Mr.

Ren and Guangzhou Weigang.

The Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries
resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity, accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared as if the Company had always been the
holding company of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standard Board

(“IASB”) for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment

Transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to |IAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2014

— 2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

In addition, the Group has early applied IFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” and the related Amendments
which is effective for annual period on or after 1 January
2018, throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments
to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for

financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9. i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated profits and
other components of equity, without restating comparative

information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under

IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are

disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of

initial application, 1 January 2018.

Non-current assets

Available-for-sale investment

Equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive

income

Note
s
FRBEE
At HERE (a)
BARBEGTELFA
Hih 2 EREH
RATE (a)

P& P 3 5T % 4248 BT KB PR Bt 75 3 5 2
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(%)
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=20 =23
IR AT E

TRHFAR2018F1A1B(BEXRERA
H (B B B RS B ) E 95k R(BIE &
FHERNE R T e EENDERE -

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at
31 December
2017

FRIR
2017 5
128310
ERNERE
RMB’000
AREFT

3,584

Reclassification

BN R
RMB’000
ARETT

(3,584)

3,584

Carrying
amounts
under
IFRS 9 at

1 January
2018
20185
1818
(L3
HEAER)
F9% T HREE
RMB’000
AEEFT

3,684
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

(continued)
Note:

(a) The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income for the fair value change of its equity investment
previously classified as available-for-sale investment, of
which RMB3,584,000 related to the unlisted equity investment
previously measured at fair value under IAS 39. This investment
is not held for trading and not expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of IFRS
9, RMB3,584,000 was reclassified from available-for-sale
investment to equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The fair value gains of RMB2,084,000
relating to this investment previously carried at fair value as at 1
January 2018 continued to accumulate in revaluation reserve.

All other financial assets classified as loans and receivables
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost under IAS

39 continued to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group’s existing financial assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort in accordance with
the requirement of IFRS 9. The results of the assessment and

the impact thereof are detailed below.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial recognition of IFRS 9

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and
contract assets. To measure the ECL, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the historical observed default rates
adjusted by forward looking estimates. The contract assets
related to unbilled work in progress have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. The Group has therefore estimated the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables and the contract
assets on the same basis. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets. As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company
considered the additional ECL allowance on trade receivables
and contract assets is not significant based on internal credit

rating on individual assessment.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost
mainly comprise of note receivables, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances, are measured
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had been no

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For note receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, the Group only transacts with reputable banks
with high credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these banks based on assessment by the
management of the Group. No ECL allowance is recognised

as the amount involved is insignificant.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial recognition of IFRS 9

(continued)

For other receivables, the management of the Group makes
periodic collective as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. No ECL allowance is

recognised as the amount involved is insignificant.

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective:
IFRS 16
PR B 753k &5 22 Bl )28 16 5%
IFRS 17
(IR B 75 3R A RI DS 17 5%
IFRIC 23

BRI B ERBEEEF 2352 E
Amendments to IFRS 3

PR B 753k &5 2 Bl 3B 35 (2R AX)
Amendments to IFRS 9

R B 53k 5 2 Bl )3 9 5 (2 /T AX)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS28

PR B 53R 5 22 Bl D38 10 5% &
CEIBR & 5H2ERI ) 28 55 (1B 7T 4N)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

CEIRR &t 2RI DS 1 5% RK R & 5t 81)
EXLACCHEN)

Amendments to IAS 19

CEIRR &R 1958 (BRI AN)

Amendments to IAS 28

CEIRR g5t DS 28 5% (fERT A8)

Amendments to IFRSs

CEIFR B 75 3R 5 E RMERT A
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Leases'

HE'

Insurance Contract®

REEH°

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Fris BB M T

Definition of Business®

EBmESR"

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

ABAMEZIRAIEIEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

BREERABENRSIAERRZHANEEREITE®

Definition of Material®

BEAMHESE®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

FTEIBET « MRS

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
REEARIRAEEEPHRAT

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 — 2017 Cycle'
(EBRIIEIRE LR Y2015 FE 2017 FRAM 2 FEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first

annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Except for IFRS 16 described below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, IFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
IFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should
be accounted as a sale. IFRS 16 also includes requirements
relating to subleases and lease modifications. Distinctions of
operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases

of low value assets.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents other operating lease payments as operating cash
flows. Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows
in accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

(continued)
IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB7,435,000 as disclosed
in Note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
The combination of straight-line depreciation of the right-of-
use asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge to the profit or
loss in the initial year of the lease, and decreasing expenses
during the latter part of the lease term, but there is no impact
on the total expenses recognised over the lease term. Based
on the facts and circumstances as at 31 December 2018, the
directors of the Company do not expect the application of
IFRS 16 will have material impact on the financial performance
of the Group.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB517,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not
payment relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received

would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as

indicated above.

2.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EAHTREEI(ERYHREE
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al)#)

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective BB ERAE KB FTET RIS T BR B 75
(continued) WERERNE)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) (EIBRB BRI DFE16 5 FHE (&)
The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply AEBEHE R EACRB ST ERINE 17
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as KRBERBRERELZEESF4TERE
leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 “Determining whether ErLH AR sHELR SR ABEES
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this BRI TRER A A TE FCBIR B i s s 2
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as BIYE 165 + BT ERCHE g 28])
containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Therefore, F1THREBERAEREREZESE 497
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or RELNTEZRF AR EHENESNER
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of UEZER o fhAN - REEBUE R ARERT A
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect A PE R BIBR B TS 3 5 2 A D 16 R E
the modified retrospective approach for the application of I % A F R B F P R YR E A 2
IFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of FIRE MALEYLEER -

initial application to opening retained profits without restating

comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEGHBE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

FEMBHRRDIBREER S ENEES
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in

IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EZSTBE )

(continued)

Basis of consolidation meEE%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial RAEVERREBREARF REZEEEM

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
(i) has power over the investee;

(i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

AN
MTEE\EE’JEM&#E% HBIATER - Al
AR A BSR4

(i) FAIEEREHRITEES
(ii) %T&;ﬁ,A&Q%%ZT“

involvement with the investee; and o B sk iR
(iii)  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. (i) AHBEHRTEENZERRT
ZElHREeFE o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the

non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of

fied B S S BB R it = TH R i 2 —
BREZERRHBRES  AEESEHR
BIEHREHR -

EAREEERSGHE A R IR - BIZH
BRBAGAEAR  BEEARBEXREHZN
BRRWZGIEASLE - ABME - FAK
BRHEHNBRARANBARAXEAEHE

SEHEE R AR BRERAME
HWRER  BEAEEHEHZHEA
ARLE -

BELEMEEBAZRERBERARF
BEEANRFEZERER - HBARNZEK
SRS J%EA$"T%E}\&3H P

subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and = AfF E e BRI s HIR B AL A
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non- £ o

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial VER - BHEWE A A8 ERERIELD
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in B SHeBRAAEBSTHEER -
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses EBEAEEXEARHENRINAESE
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of NARIHEEREE  #m - WA - FxX
the Group are eliminated on consolidation. RBeREHNE IR E R -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and

the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESEE®)
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) ROt (E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 “Income Taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2

“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9/IAS 39 would be accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the statements of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified

impairment loss.
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over these policies.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESTBE S
(continued)
Investments in associates (continued) REBELENRE(E)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purpose is prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially

recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position

BECENXEREERABRRESSA
EHAREMBERER KAEREE
o B XM SRR KA BN EE R
REER THRUR S REFERN S
BERmE - RRERE - RBERENKR
BIa AR AR 4R & B TS AR 3K A R
RERAR  UBERLAKEEZBEDLE
PHEGEEEREMEEKE - BELE

at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s BRERREMEZERRINNEEFEES
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income TTFAR - RIEZSEHSENAEEM

of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes result in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal

of the associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that

are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group

uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfied a performance obligation

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to customers.

Control of the goods or services may be transferred over
time or at a point of time. Control of the goods or services is

transferred over time if:

. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;

or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If control of the services transfer over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress toward complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or

services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.
The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources: 1) provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services, 2) provision of pyrolysis solid waste treatment
solutions services, 3) oil sludge thermal desorption treatment
services, 4) provision of technical upgrading services, and 5)

provision of maintenance services.

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions
services, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions

services and iii) technical upgrading services
Recognition

Provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions
services and pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions
services represent the services on design, integration and
commissioning of solid waste treatment systems which
comprise a range of equipment and other components, on a
made-to-order basis pursuant to the technical specification
and requirement of the customers. Provision of technical
upgrading services represent the upgrading services provided
for existing hazardous waste incineration systems and certain
cement production facilities. Since the Group’s performance
creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs, revenue from these services therefore
are recognised over time using input methods, i.e. based
on the stage of completion of the contract, and the stage
of completion of the contract is measured based on the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to

date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

For warranty embedded to the contracts, the customer does
not have the option to purchase a warranty separately, the
Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with IAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
unless the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the contracting work complies

with the agreed-upon specifications.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of i) hazardous waste incineration solutions
services, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions

services and iii) technical upgrading services (continued)
Contract assets/liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade and
note receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the progress payment exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the input method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment

services

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services
represent the service provided for an oil service provider
which has the relevant operating licence, to lease and
provide operation and maintenance services for, an oil sludge
treatment facility designed and commissioned by the Group
in Karamay, Xinjiang, by charging a leasing and operation
fee based on the actual treatment volume of oil sludge for an

initial term of three years.
Provision of maintenance services

The Group provides maintenance services, including repair
and maintenance services to customers. Income is recognised
over the contract period when the relevant services are
provided by the Group and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEEHBE®)
(continued)
Research and development costs B 3% R A

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the year in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit

or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in

which they become receivable.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

year in which they are incurred.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling

them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in

the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount

already paid.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve. For share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or

loss.
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B Rk MR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESEE®)
(continued)
Share-based payments (continued) DRGBHBERNZSE)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(continued)
Share options granted to directors and employees (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred to accumulated profits.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

KREEEURGBEBHZNXE (&)

RTEERERERIE(E)

TTEERBAAERY - St AT IO BB AR A R e FE AR A
SRBERERMEE - EXFEB AR
FERE RO M - SN E TR B B R AT
& EANBEREREERNSESER
ERFHAE -

BIE

P TR X R BN ER FE AN B TR SR TR IR 2
A -

BN IBNIRERNERB A B E
B E At F R SR AT B R U 2 )
ARTE AT HI B R IE B B - BRI
MBEGSBREMEMEE R ERA2 R
BAIAEAR - REBEREHHRIBRETS
BEREHARCEMAEECBEMAT R

s
=
>t

BEERARGEUBHRRPEERBER
FRE{E 5T B R A AT R A A AR B
ENEREZRER - EEHAEAE KB
PRE R E R ZHER - R ARATAE
ER 1S & SR T M 8 LA HE 35 7T 80 P 9 ] 40
BER - AEEREEE—RIZAA A
TR ZREMER  MEREZEELS N
R -ERZ (EBEHBRINZEERA
& MAEBXZREIZEERBEANEIRT
FEGHNE AT THRIABMELREA
BEKAE - 1IN MEBENTHER
ELERERE AT SRABMEMAETH

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %R

139



140

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEEHBE®)
(continued)
Property, plant and equipment M BERSE

Property, plant and equipment including facility held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes other than properties
under construction as described below are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable before 1
January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial asset and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”").

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESEE®)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MITARE)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and note receivables, other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:
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bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

[ ]
—

ERARAIBEWESETHEER -

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %R

145



146

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

year.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEGSTTEERE)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MITARE)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation

reserve.

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are

initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair

value.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets;

and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

At the date of initial application/initial recognition, the
Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity

instruments as at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEESEE®)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MITARE)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (continued)

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gains and

losses” line item in profit or loss.
Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9
(including trade and note receivables, other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances) and contract
assets. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date

to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are

assessed individually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEGSTTEERE)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MITARE)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment

grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate

that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking

information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and note receivables,
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence of credit-

impairment includes observable data about the following

events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (accounting policy applicable after
1 January 2018) (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to shareholders, amount due to a related party,
amounts due to subsidiaries, bank borrowings and obligation
arising from a put option) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Obligation arising from a put option on shares of a subsidiary

written to investors

Put option written to investors, which will be settled other
than by exchange of fixed amount of cash for a fixed number
of shares in a subsidiary is treated as derivative and is
recognised at fair value upon initial recognition. Any changes
of fair value in subsequent reporting dates are recognised in

profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares in a subsidiary is established even if the obligation
is conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the subsidiary. The liability for the share
redemption amount is initially recognised and measured at
present value of the estimated repurchase price with the
corresponding debit to the other reserve. In subsequent years,
the remeasurement of the present value of the estimated
gross obligation under the written put option to the investors

is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated

profits.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Recognition of revenue on contracts with customers for

hazardous waste incineration solution services

The Group recognised contract revenue using the input
method and contract costs are recognised on actual incurred
basis. The input method is measured by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the

estimated contract costs.

The estimated contract revenue is determined in accordance

with the terms set out in the relevant contract.

The estimated total contract costs are based on contracted
amount of suppliers’ contracts, and in respect of amounts
not contracted for, management’s estimates for the amounts
to be incurred taking into consideration historical trends for
the amounts incurred and adjusted for any price fluctuation
during the year, where applicable. Significant assumptions
are required in estimating the total contract costs which affect
the contract revenue recognised to date based on the input

method.

Management review the contract with customers for
foreseeable losses whenever there is an indication that
the estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
contract costs. The actual outcome in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
each of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the

amounts recorded to date.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and contract

assets

The management estimates the amount of loss allowance for
ECL on trade receivables that are measured at amortised cost
and contract assets based on the credit risk of the respective
counterparty. The Group uses a lifetime ECL model and
estimates the expected loss rate for the trade receivables and
the contract assets individually based on each customer’s
credit risk characteristics and the historical observed default
rates adjusted by forward looking estimates. The assessment
of the credit risk of the trade receivables and contract assets
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty as details
in Notes 2 and 19. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or more than expected, a material impairment
loss or a material reversal of impairment loss may arise,

accordingly.

As at 31 December 2018, the total carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets of the Group amounted to
RMB304,077,000 (31 December 2017:RMB118,845,000), net
of allowance for impairment of RMB7,071,000 (31 December
2017: RMB6,167,000).

et P EERZZEERRE)

A TRERRZEEZRR(E)
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et kA EERA=(RAHE2 R 19
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the provision of comprehensive solid waste
incineration turnkey solutions focused on the research, design,
integration and commissioning of solid waste systems by the
Group to external customers in the PRC. The Group’s revenue
is derived from providing i) hazardous waste incineration
solutions, ii) pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions, iii) oil
sludge thermal desorption treatment services, iv) technical
upgrading services, and v) maintenance services in the PRC.
For the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), review the
financial performance of the Group as a whole prepared
based on the same accounting policies set out in Note 3.
Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of

this single segment is presented.
Revenue from major services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

major services:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

WA R 7D HE R
WASEAEE [ EA NP R FiREEE
REBBEYMRFOHE Rt SHEHA
ANGEEEEI R EEEERE R
R BERRERRENAAREE - A5H
AR B PR B AR ¢ i) B EEY)
RBEEBMFTR ) EEREEEEY
BERRTE i) BRAB M EERS
iv) BT A R AR TS ¢ Rev) RS - BLER
AEARKBTEME - NABAITES
(BDE B & REE)RIBHEIFTEAER
BETECR - UAEBEEARRERMEER
B At AEERB—HEZEESE - A
R EGZE — D B2REMBILIBEE
Bk T

EERBUA

TREIAREREETERBHBAZ
DT

PLRE: 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARBTFr
Recognised over time BERF BT RR

Hazardous waste incineration solutions /B EEMRER & R 5 444,771 176,141
Pyrolysis solid waste treatment solutions 4 2 fiR [E B2 BE Y iR B fROR )7 52 4,064 —

Oil sludge thermal desorption treatment 5 & 20 Bt B2 I AR %5
services 10,745 —
Technical upgrading services BT 7+ 4% AR 7% 11,092 11,445
Maintenance services HEERRTS 9,419 1,821
480,091 189,407
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018
and 2017.

WARDBER &)

REFENIBERTBEINEENRZE
%

TRIRNR20184F Kk 2017F12A31H
PRERBR (RO RBEN)BAETHORS
(B -

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKTFr
Provision of hazardous waste RIEBREYMRERE RS R
incineration solutions 410,874 281,414
Provision of pyrolysis solid waste RHEANBEREYEER
treatment solutions HR 23,802 4,256
Provision of technical upgrading R AR
services 991 1,723
Provision of maintenance services R MRS 149 121
Total i 435,816 287,514

Based on the information available to the Group at the end
of reporting period, the directors of the Company expect
the transaction price allocated to the above unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) contracts as of 31 December 2017 and
2018 will be recognised as revenue during the years ended/
ending 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2020 in respect
of provision of hazardous waste incineration solutions, during
the years ended/ending 31 December 2018 to 31 December
2019 in respect of provision of pyrolysis solid waste treatment
solutions, during the years ended/ending 31 December 2018
to 31 December 2019 in respect of technical upgrading
services and during the years ended/ending 31 December
2018 to 31 December 2019 in respect of provision of

maintenance services.

ERAEERNRERRESHER - KA
B EEEAEH E2017F K20185F 12 A
31BHBE Ll REBIT (KA KREIT)E
AR BEEE D RIREZE2018F 12 A
S1EIEFEZE#HE2020F12 8318 1k
FEAAGREEREYRERSEAT
RiE)  HE20184 1231 HZE2019
F12A31 B IEFEHEIREEARE
EEEEMEERATRME) » BE2018
F12A31BIEFEEZBE2019F 12 A
1B IEFEAHEGEMARKRSE ™S )
ME E2018F12A31ALFREEHE
2019 12 A31 B L FE AR (iR 4
RIS S )R ABWA
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers (continued)

Provision of oil sludge thermal desorption treatment services
typically have a 3-year non-cancellable term in which the
Group charges fee based on the actual treatment volume of
oil sludge. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has provided the services. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is

not disclosed.
Major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as

follows:

Customer A (Note i) BEAHE)

Customer B ®FB
Customer C BEC
Customer D ZFED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WAR D BER &)

REFENIBERTENEEINRZE
(&)

He 8 2B B BT 2 AR 75 0 1 T JRiH 6 HR
—RA3IF  HHEAKEREERBIER
EERE - AKEREEANITREN L E
RAEEFRERBOHKESER - HIKE
PR S R DB 15K AR - R
BOEEZEFRETANNRSE -

EREF

RIEEFEEARNEEBRKRASIE10% AL
P AMT

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARHTFT
187,162 135,139
N/A (Note ii)
TER (K Ei) 29,302
N/A (Note ii)
TER (K Ei) 19,110
N/A (Note iii)
72,155 ER (K72 i)

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B HRRRIFIZERERF G R A 7



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHBERE)
(continued)
Major customers (continued) IREF (&)
Notes: et
(i) Customer A represented groups of subsidiaries under common (i) BEEAEXR—BEARES O —EHEA
control of an entity. Revenue from subsidiaries under Customer A WA Z 20184 22017 F 12 A 318 1k
A during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 FEASAREBBIA10% A ENES AT
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as MEBARZEANT
below:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
N/A (Note ii)
Subsidiary A FEARA TBERMWFI) 77,863
N/A (Note ii)
Subsidiary B NG TERHIEI) 32,056
(i) Contributed less than 10% of the Group's total revenue for the (i) REZE2018F 12 A31 B ILFEMLAKE A
year ended 31 December 2018. AR EEBITB 10% ©
(i) No revenue attributed from the respective customer for the year iy AREZE2017F12A31BIEFEHERES
ended 31 December 2017. BEFEHWA -
Geographical information hEER
The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially AREBEFEAFBRAEE NEBALT
all of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial EEMERBEE (TR T AU RIELE
instruments and deferred tax assets, are located in the PRC, MIBEE)AURFE - BARSE AU AZK
and revenue of the Group is generated from customers BRABEHER -

located in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HMWA - RERESE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TFTT ARKFr
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 375 128
Government grants (Note a) BT FEBY (K7t a) 722 2,132
Indemnity compensation (Note b) BEBENZD) 3,758 —
Other income H AU A 4,855 2,260
Net foreign exchange gains HINE W 2V RE 3,158 112
Gain on deregistration of investment — FEIHEFE D ¥R E 2 W
in an associate (Note 15) (BtaE15) 97 —
Other gains and losses H bz & &5 18 3,255 112
8,110 2,372
Notes: et -
(a)  Government grants represented immediate financial support (a) BUNHBAEHBNGE THERMERE -
granted by the local governments. There were no specific BT AR E 1M - BEeRNIREIEER
conditions attached to the grants and the amounts were EREER T HER o

recognised in profit or loss upon the receipt of relevant cash.

(b)  Indemnity compensation represented the compensation paid (o) EBEREEUFIREERABGNNGER
by a counterparty for its default of contract in relation to a BEYOREREHEBEANEIANEE 56
hazardous waste incineration project in Suzhou which was AERERBE2016F12A31HIEFERK
terminated during the year ended 31 December 2016. 1k
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERAE
2018 2017
2018 & 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARHTFT
Interest on bank borrowings AT RFE 574 438
Interest on obligation arising from R HAREFTE £ B ERF S
a put option (Note 27) (Hiez27) 5,457 —
Total aat 6,031 438
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. M/BmMX
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFr
The income tax expense (credit) FrS iR (R e 4F :
comprises:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"): REIR RS (T REMER]) :
— Current tax — BN EAR 1A 12,737 7,258
— Overprovision in prior year —BEFEEERE (492) —
12,245 7,258
Deferred tax (Note 17) RIETRIE (K1 7E 17) (1,686) (638)
10,559 6,620

The Company and its subsidiaries, namely WeiGang

Environment Limited (“WeiGang Environment”) and Jade

Far, were incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and BVI,

respectively. All these entities did not have tax assessable

profit in Cayman Islands, BVI or other jurisdiction in both

years.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been recognised

in the consolidated financial statements in both years as the

Group does not have income which arose in, or derived from

Hong Kong.

ARARIREMERR (BEBREER A
(EERFEDERNE)DFINFERSE R
REHRREBEMAL - RREFE
BEZSERERENS  RBEBE
EREMANEEER I BERRATAE

MR AKEYESEFENKRA - BtR
ZEFE  REAMBRRPLKRERE
BREHEME -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”)
effective on 1 January 2008, Guangzhou Weigang obtained a
“High and New Technology Enterprise” (the “HNTE”) in 2016
which Guangzhou Weigang was entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15% from 2016 to 2018 and eligible for renewal every

three years.

The applicable tax rate of other PRC subsidiaries of the
Company was 25% (2017: 25%) during the year ended 31

FrigwiB s (&)

RIE2008F 1 A1 HEBAKEEMBH
E) BMMEER2016 EERE Bl SH
Bfr % | W E2016F E2018EB=E
X 15% KBBEBIE - G=FA[EH -

REBZ2018F12A31H IEFE» AR
AIEMPEKNERRNEBREA25%

December 2018.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(2017 £ : 25%) °

FRMEHHA AR TN 5I77 R EAR
& N E A 2 RS R

A8

BRI B

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T
Profit before tax 75 A A1) E 67,970 36,379
Tax at applicable income tax rate of  LA25% (2017 £ : 25% ) H 3@ B AT
25% (2017: 25%) SEHBETENRIE 16,992 9,095
Tax effect due to preferential tax rate FEEEMN RMEEMNH ST E (8,394) (4,730)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] %4 B sz B9 B 16 52 2
for tax purposes 6,441 1,962
Tax effect of income not taxable for HERTMBMANT G2
tax purpose (789) —
Tax effect of share of results of FEIGEE S BN ERENT B E
an associate — 169
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised KR Z HEEENTH S L 28 124
Utilisation of tax loss previously not BB REROTIEEE
recognised (148) =
Tax effect of super-deduction on MEHNBRAEREOFBH T E
research and development expenses (3,079) —
Overprovision in prior year B E B (492) —
Income tax expense for the year FRMEFREAS 10,559 6,620
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FRFHE
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT ARMFT
Profit for the year has been arrived at 0B 7 & B HERAE :
after charging:
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEESHE)
emoluments)
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEFH (K 10) 1,527 1,029
Other staff: HMET :
— Salaries and other benefits — FHreHEHE MR 23,317 11,845
— Bonus — JEAL 2,397 2,051
— Contributions to retirement benefits — R#E M FT 245K
scheme 2,261 846
— Share-based payment expenses — AR AERO ST 1,954 =
Total staff costs 488 TR 31,456 15,771
Auditors’ remuneration AT AT 1,810 49
Research and development costs WEEA AR (GTAE M)
(included in other expenses)* 16,799 8,150
Listing expenses (included in other TR (GEAEMFSR)
expenses) 12,270 6,323
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEITE
equipment 1,726 397
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 413 34
(Reversal of allowance for) allowance ‘& 5 & kI8 K fE W Z 1R (E
for impairment of trade and note e (B ERE)
receivables (1,174) 584
Allowance for impairment of contract & X EERERE
assets 2,073 —
Impairment (reversed) loss on advance E2REREREEH LG EN
to a supplier (BEE)RERE (183) 183
Minimum lease payments in respect of A5 SKEBENK
office premises 2,528 1,970

* Amount included staff costs of RMB7,238,000 (2017:
RMB5,590,000), and material and other related costs of
RMB9,561,000 (2017: RMB2,560,000) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

* ZABEREHE2018F12A31B IEEE

M8 TARAARY7,238,00070(2017 £ -
A R 5,590,000 7T ) JA K2 71 ¥ 2 H 4 48 B8
B 7R A R #9,561,0007(2017 4 « AR
2,560,0007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors

Mr. Cai, Mr. Dong Honghui (“Mr. Dong”) and Mr. Deng
Zhaoshan (“Mr. Deng”) are appointed as directors of the
Company on 18 May 2017, 27 April 2018 and 27 April 2018,
respectively. Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the

directors of the Company (including emoluments for services

as employees/directors of the group entities prior to becoming

the directors of the Company) by entities comprising the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

10.

ESkESENE
=

BAgAE BABEE([ELREDUREIK
SRE(HEE]D)HRIR2017F5 A 18
B 201844 H278 X% 201844 A27 8
BEZERARTEE - REIE2018F &
201712 A31 HIEFE - iRBAEEE
FRE B S EME kB A A R ES 2 B
¢ (BEERARNRRESEASEER
Mg 8 E AR MRS M B A Bl & ) &9
BTN TX -

BZE20184F 12531 HILFEE

Retirement
Salaries Share-based benefits
and other payment scheme
allowances Bonus expenses contributions
Hem DR R ER RAER
Hiti2 R HX X TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT ARBTT ARBFT
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Cai (Note i) BRAE(NEI) 359 50 — 32 441
Mr. Dong (Note ii) EREWEI) 359 50 103 32 544
Mr. Deng (Note iii) S (it iii) 357 50 103 32 542
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Ren Jingfeng (Note iv) EREREHF) - - - - -
Mr. Yang Zhigiang (Note v) W (Hiitv) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
Mr. Yang Zhifeng (Note vi) BEELE (Hiitvi) - - - - -
Mr. Feng Tao (Note vii) BB E (et vii) - - - - -
Mr. Jiang Guoliang (Note viii) B R %&£ (#1:2 viii) - — — — -
1,075 150 206 96 1,527
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

10. EEREEMES(H)

(continued)
Directors (continued) BEE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BFE2017F 12531 HILFEE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
allowances Bonus contributions Total
Hen RIRTEA
H = 8h TEAL FHEIER &&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Cai (Note i) 8o (f1ati) 271 18 31 320
Mr. Dong (Note ii) ES=0 0l 3 273 53 31 357
Mr. Deng (Note iii) B 5T (et iii) 268 53 31 352
812 124 93 1,029
Notes: HigF -
(i) Mr. Cai served as the chairman and executive director of () £ S5E A B 20094 7 A 15 B BN #4E8 AK L

Guangzhou Weigang since its establishment on 15 July 2009
and was appointed as chairman of the Group and executive
director of the Company on 18 May 2017.

(ii) Mr. Dong was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 27 April 2018. Prior to being a director, he was an
employee of the Group.

(iiiy ~ Mr. Deng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 27 April 2018. Prior to being a director, he was an
employee of the Group.

(iv)  Mr. Ren Jingfeng was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 27 April 2018.

(v) Mr. Yang Zhigiang was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 8 November 2018.

(vi)  Mr. Yang Zhifeng was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 3 January 2019.

(vii)  Mr. Feng Tao was appointed as an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company
with effect from 3 January 2019.

(viii)  Mr. Jiang Guoliang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 3 January 2019.

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

—HEAZEEESERRATES IR
20175 A 18AREEATSEEETRR
AARHITES -

BREBA2018F4A27TEREZEAARR
AIITES - WATHARAEEES -

HAELEBH2018F4 A27THREZTAARR
AIMITES - LATH AR EEES -

ERERLN2018F4 27 HEZERK
NEHFEITES ©

HBEREEN2018F 11 ASAEZRERAE
RAHFERMITESE o

BEESEEETARARNBE L IENITE
EREZEZEEKE - B201941A3HRE
AR o

BB EER AR RANB Y IERITES
FEZZEEKE ' B2019F 1 A3HEA
B o

BERCHEEZTARARNB Y INITE
EREZEZEEKE - H2019F 1 A3HRE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Directors (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management affairs of

the Group.

The bonus payments are determined with reference to the
operating results and individual performance during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Details of share-based payment transaction are set out in
Note 38.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
three directors (2017: two directors), whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures above for the year ended 31
December 2018. The emoluments of the remaining two (2017:

three) individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018, are

10. EEREEME (2

B

EEHTEEMS AR ERAREE R
EBRERBMES

AT THEREREZE 2018 F £ 2017
FI2A31HIEFEMEREEEERME
ARIEMERTE o

AR D RER AR 5RO FFBE R T
38 °

==

HZE2018F 12 A31HILFE  AEEHR
EEEFMATHRIBE=2EE(2017
FMEES)  FEZHMESEHN EXXH
BEERFR - HE2018F 1231 HIEFE
HHEMA(20174F : =&)AL ZBE IR

as follows: T&
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFIT
Salaries and other benefits FremHE tmEF 1,289 1,202
Bonus {EAT 60 84

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIFT B 50

contributions 38 31
Share-based payment expense LARG(D R AR MR 190 —
1,577 1,317

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals including

directors of the Company, were within the following band:

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 838 1,000,000 77T

AARNELREHFMAL(RIEES) M
SER T

2017

2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
5 5
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Employees (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals including directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Each of the directors of the
Company did not waive or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

10.

11.

EEkEEME @)

EE(E)

RE E 20184 & 2017F 12 A31 8 Ik F
B AREVERARARAETZSHHA
T(BRES)INEMFH - EAKS
B N8R AN & B o N BR 18 O SR D Sk B Bk
o PN B E20184F % 2017F 12 431 H
IEFE  AARSEFHENEXR BN
ZE(EMIE -

BREF

ARRBEA ANEIG T REAR #5828
AHEDER TSR :

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFIT
Earnings &R
Earnings for the purpose of calculating fIAsHE &M EA & #5851 & 7
basic and diluted per share (profit for (A2 T#HHB AELFEAFE)
the year attributable to the owners of
the Company) 49,799 30,195
Number of shares RHO#E
Number of shares for the purpose of AN ESREAZFNBRHEE
calculating basic earnings per share 1,013,854,480 943,906,118
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EEBEELTRBRNOTE
shares:
Share options B iE 29,274,881 12,431,809
Number of shares for the purpose of LT ESREERMNNBOHEBE
calculating diluted earnings per share 1,043,129,361 956,337,927

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %3}

169



170

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

11.

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share has been determined on the
assumption that the Reorganisation, share consolidation
and the bonus element of the shares issued for the loan
capitalisation as detailed in the section headed “History,
Reorganisation and Group Structure” to the Prospectus had

been effective on 1 January 2017.

In addition, the computation of diluted earnings per share
during the year ended 31 December 2018 does not assume
the exercise of put option by the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary as the exercise of the put option would result
in an increase of earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018. The computation of diluted earnings per
share during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
has adjusted to reflect the effect of the exercise of all dilutive

share options.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since
its incorporation, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the year ended 31 December 2018.

11.

12.

BRERNE)

AU ESRERZT A EBEKRSE TR
BERERIES  SHEKEEEH]—5
Fistiisssl - RDEFFREEREREE
BATIRGOBAMB D 2017 1 A1 B &
R R % T °

LS - RTIE R A B S B H &= 2018
F12A3MBIEFERNTGRAFIG M - K
STEHZE2018F12A3MBIEEENS
PG 2 28 28 ) B 1B 5 P BB 2 A1 O SRR AR AR R
WARITEREEE - 5T EHZE2018F &
201712 A1 HILFEMNSREERF
B BEE AR ARBRITER A EEAR
RERFE o

8=

ARA A B AL A SR i R S~ 3 B R AR
B BEHZE2018F 12 A31 BIEEEARIN
EEZTIRTMALE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - BERRZE

0il sludge Furniture
Leasehold  treatment Motor and Construction
improvement facility ~ Computers vehicles fixtures in progress Total
HEXE MEEERE B Ef GEREREE  HRIE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
ANEEFT  AEEFT  AEEFT  AGETT  ARETT  AREFr  AREFT
(Note) (Note)
(#) (W)
COoST %
At 1 January 2017 R2017T51R 18 = = 281 302 379 = 962
Additions WE 1,152 - 333 786 282 6,812 9,365
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 318 1,152 = 614 1,088 661 6,812 10,327
Additions AE 124 460 958 368 142 13,587 15,639
Transfer from construction in REERIENEE
progress = 20,399 = = = (20,399) =
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H 1,276 20,859 1,672 1,456 803 = 25,966
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H = = 92 78 142 = 312
Provided for the year FRNAE 38 = 127 76 156 - 397
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A318 38 = 219 154 298 = 709
Provided for the year EREfE 283 656 352 238 197 = 1726
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 321 656 571 392 495 — 2,435
CARRYING VALUES Rl
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 318 1,114 = 395 934 363 6,812 9,618
At 31 December 2018 ®2018512 8318 955 20,203 1,001 1,064 308 - 23,531
Note: Amount represented the costs incurred for the construction of Hiat - BRAEEREEEREREMEE R (G A

a thermal desorption of oil sludge treatment facility, which is

to provide oil sludge thermal desorption treatment service to

customers. The operating income is charged according to the

tons of oil sludge being processed.

TP R A B 2B Y BE B AR 7 ) P EE AR RO PR
AN o HRE A THAR B P BE B 1O JE MR 2R 4 ER

A -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. Y% - BERRE#)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other Lit¥x  BERFKEEB(EEIER
than construction in progress, after taking into account their SNIEZ BEIE AT FRISBREBER A TYIER
estimated residual value, are depreciated on a straight-line FRIREGEITE :

basis at the following useful life:

Leasehold improvement 5 years HERE 54
Oil sludge treatment facility 10 years e R 10 4F
Computers 3 years ESH 3F
Motor vehicles 3-5 years BTy BEGEE
Furniture and fixtures 3 years FREHEERE 3F
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BFEE
Patents
=7
RMB’000
ARKFir
(Note)
(Hiat)
COST (B
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 R2017F1 1B &20174 12 A31H 150
Additions (Notes i & ii) NE (Fati R ii) 17,003
At 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 318 17,153
AMORTISATION 5
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1/81H 23
Provided for the year FARE 34
At 31 December 2017 720174 12 A 318 57
Provided for the year FREHE 413
At 31 December 2018 720184 12 B 31 H 470
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F 12 831 H 93
At 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A 31 H 16,683
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

()

(if)

On 20 July 2018, Guangzhou Weigang entered into an
agreement with Dr. Wang Zhicheng (“Dr. Wang”), a senior
management of the Company, for assigning to Guangzhou
Weigang all its technology knowhow relating to pyrolysis
treatment, a method of a solid waste anaerobic catalytic thermal
cracking at a consideration of RMB1,000,000 with estimated
useful lives of 10 years; and

On 20 July 2018, Guangzhou Weigang entered into an
agreement with a third party for assigning its technology
knowhow to Guangzhou Weigang at a consideration of
RMB16,000,000, including an organic carbon ecological slow
release fertiliser and preparation method, a waste battery
anaerobic catalytic thermal cracking system and method and a
domestic waste fluidised bed anaerobic cracking device with
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

The other intangible assets have finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the licence period.

14.

BEEE@®)

Bt -

(i)

(if)

R201847 208 « BMBEBEARA S
REREELEREL(EBL DL —H %
& NmBEMNEEEREMAEEREaN®
BE(—BEBRESECRRETE)D
BT - REAR AR 1,000,000 7T K&
FTAIERAFHAI0F : &

201847 A20H - BMMAEBE —ZBE L
BE=FFIN— D - AREMNESERE
BT (R EA R ERREREE R E
HE s —EBEEEMESELCRAINZSMN
TR R —EEFEN R R B R AR
E) KREAARY 16,000,000t & &HA]
ERFHA10F

HitvEREEARBRAERFHY - YRE
A OEE S -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

15.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. REFERLENRE

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT AREFT

Cost of investment in an associate OB 1 3 M 3% B B R — 4,900
Share of results of an associate, net  E{hEtEDENELE - 1K DU

of dividend received [iE4SA — 639

— 5,539

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting

period is as follow:

Name of associate

BetxsR

Yunfu Yishida Waste Heat
Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.* (“Yishida")

LT AL ERAEE
BRRR(HtEE])

Principal activities

FEEE

Provision of project
management service
for a waste heat power
generation project

HAREERAIER R
B R EE RS

Place and date of
establishment and
operation

R REENMBHAN ALY

PRC, 1 August 2008

FE - 200848 A 1H

Note 1: Yishida was deregistered by way of member ‘s resolution on
18 January 2018. On 12 February 2018, Guangzhou Weigang
received RMB5,636,000 from Yishida as return of investment,

the carrying amount of the investment in associate on 12
February 2018 of RMB5,539,000 was derecognised and a gain
from the deregistration amounting to RMB97,000 has been

recognised in profit and loss.

The above associate is accounted for using equity method in

the consolidated financial statements.

*

The English names are for identification purpose only.

%‘H’ 7/

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

At 31 December

M12A31H

N/A 49%
(Note 1)

THER 49%
(hit1)

REMRAREBR L EENFBTENT

Proportion of
voting interest
held by the Group
At 31 December

FEEREMAREENE ARERERAENH

R12A31H

2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 £ 20174 2018 2017

N/A 49%
(Note 1)

TEH 49%
(hit1)

Kat1 - SHER2018F1 A 18 HARERFER

R BT R2018F2H128 © &
M4 5 5t =15 A R 5,636,000 7T
ERREBR  R2018F2 128 KB
EhENRENREMEARS5,539,000

TE AR I EFERR

97,000 7L E R B
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

15. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15. REBELENRE®)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BREAAEEBEANERTEERESHNT
associate is set out below. The summarised financial X o XA EY A Al B 75 A R S A R IR B R
information below represents amounts shown in the B TSRS B ViR RUAV B B A B A5 SRR AP BT
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with RN o
IFRSs.
Yishida: Stz
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Current assets MENE E N/A i A 11,506
Non-current assets EmENE E N/ATEA —
Current liabilities mEAE N/AR~E A 202
Net assets BEFE N/A RE A 11,304
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT AREFT
Revenue WA N/A RiE A —
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREZERASRE
expense for the year N/A RE A (1,377)
Dividend received from Yishida FAE S EMBERRE
during the year N/ARiE R 1,328
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

15.

16.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
of the carrying amount of the interest in Yishida recognised in

the consolidated financial statements.

15.

REELENRE®E)

KRG MR N ER AN 5t E s 1
RREE R L SR i 7 B R RO TR

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFTT AREFT

Net assets of Yishida SitENEEFE N/A R E A 11,304

Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ A&EEFH S EREGRE

interest in Yishida RN N/ATEMA 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBBA S EEZNEEE

interest in Yishida N/A RE A 5,539

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT/EQUITY
INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI

Available-for-sale investment as at 31 December 2017 which
has been reclassified as equity instrument at FVTOCI upon
the initial application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 comprises:

16.

AHHERE RAAEEFEY
FFARMEEKRENRATA

f£20184F 1 A1 A & X FE FACER 81 7% =R
EXERNEE 95k 1% - 2017 F 12 A 31 HEYA]
HEERESEFHERRARBENEN
FFAEMEERENRATLA @ 81F :

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ABR®TFT

Unlisted investment: K EHEE :
— Equity securities — RAFH 2,980 3,584
2,980 3,584

The above unlisted equity investment represents investment
in 3% equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated
in the PRC engaged in oil sludge treatment facility operator.
The investment is measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, details of fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 31(c).

Mr. Cai also holds 10% equity interest in the investee as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

iR TR B FE R B A B SR AR
UHFLEEE(—RUERREIERENE
) EITHI3% RAFZSFHIRE - RERW
HHR ZBREBEAAREBEE DB
B2 BHERKIES31(c) °

MN20184 K 2017912 H31 8 » &% 4
IR B L R #EH 10% HIRR AN S -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e |RM A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

17. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised

and movements thereon during the year ended 31 December

2018 and 2017.

Allowance for
impairment of
trade and note
receivables and
contract assets
and impairment
loss on advance

17. EERIE

TXEHBERE E20184F & 2017F 12 A
MBI FERERNETERLEHRBEE KA

SEER

Changes in fair
value of equity
instrument at

Unrealised profit
of inter company

to a supplier Tax loss FVTOCI transaction Total
ERRKIER
EREEUR
RHEEN RARER
HERER FrEXEA
AnfEEELY A2 EkE
BIEEN HRAIR ARBREZ
HEGRRERES REBRE  ZAAEESE RERRFA ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT ANEEFT ANREFI ANEETFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1A1H 838 — — — 838
Credit to profit or loss FTARR 115 523 = = 638
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31R 953 523 - — 1,476
Credit to profit or loss FTARR 77 1,175 = 434 1,686
Charge to other comprehensive R EM2EREME
income = = (370) = (370)
At 31 December 2018 #2018% 128318 1,030 1,698 (370) 434 2,792

MENGAMBRRRME - EEBEET
BERAEENRAE - RUBREDITH

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax BEERIRAERIAT
balances for financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHF T ARETF T
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE 2,792 1,476
2,792 1,476

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %3} 177



178

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

17.

18.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profit earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB135,504,000 and RMB77,439,000 as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 respectively as the Group is able to control the
timing of reversal of temporary difference and it is probable
that temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB6,915,000 and RMB2,590,000 available for
offset against future profits for the consecutive five years and
will expire on 2022 and 2023. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of RMB6,796,000 and RMB2,094,000 of
such losses as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of nil due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

INVENTORIES

17.

18.

IEFERLIE ()

BB B EERE) - 82008 F 1
A1BR  sPBEfEARMSEFEMS
KBRS A AMTENR o BN FE20184F
K2017F12A31B & EH Al AARK
135,504,000 7 &2 A & # 77,439,000 7T #9
FEBARMGHE ERERE - MR
iR G M MR P EHRER B BE -
JR B 2 7N 5% (3] B2 S5 i) ey 2= BB A 8 B B
# - T B 7ER] TR R &A% 2R 52 s = FE AT A
TEgRm -

R20184%F Kk 2017F 12 A31H » A& H
w5 FR By B TE &5 18 s A R 6,915,000
TR AR 25900007t A EEAF
HH R 2R ADE - 1§ R 2022 4F K& 2023 F
[ % o 20184 K 2017412 A431H »
Bz E AR 6,796,000 & A R
2,094,000 THIIEB R ERBELEHIBEE ©
20184 & 2017F 128318 AR F
REAE RO - AR AETHE
HRTEBBRERELEREAE -

As at As at

31 December

31 December

PLRE: 2017

2018 F R2017 F

12H31H 12 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARMFr

Spare parts and other materials B R E MR 1,983 22
1,983 22
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19. TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

As at

31 December

19. ESRUREARERRE

As at

31 December

2018 2017

2018 &F R 2017 &F

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFT

Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 130,252 53,795
Less: allowance for impairment B ORE R (3,148) (4,322)
127,104 49,473

Note receivables e E I 15,731 8,310
Total trade and note receivables B I RERFIEREREEERE 142,835 57,783

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 0 to 42 days to

its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for impairment at the end of the reporting period
presented based on payment schedule or invoice date stated

in the contracts.

AEERZESEFPETOE42 BHNEER
fE]
T H A E F WA O AR IR S £ prat
MR E2RA S HEPRRIBEZAR 2
BB ) B ERER DT ©

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB¥TFTT ARKFr

0-90 days 0Z90H 96,892 30,522
91-180 days 912180 H 19,213 17,380
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 6,759 648
Over 365 days 365 A E 4,240 923
127,104 49,473
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19. TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

19. ESBURAERERRE @)

£ 8 BB SR E ) B 5 8 YR IR O R ik 40

impaired: TS ¢
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARHTFT
0-90 days 0&E90H 30,522
91-180 days 91 & 180 H 17,380
181-365 days 1812365 H 648
Over 365 days 365 H A E 923
49,473

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivable balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB49,473,000 which are past due at the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as the Group considers such balances have been
substantially settled subsequent to the end of the respective
reporting period or there were no historical default of
payments by the respective customers. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

Note receivables are bank acceptance notes and the average
aging is with 30 to 90 days based on the issuance date,
which management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary as there is no significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully recoverable. As at
31 December 2018, all the amounts of note receivable were
endorsed to settle trade payables and not derecognised
until the maturity date of the notes. As at 31 December 2017,
an amount of RMB5,530,000 was endorsed to settle trade
payables and an amount of RMB1,000,000 was discounted to
bank, which were not derecognised until the maturity date of

the endorsed and discounted notes.

FFAREEE 5 REWGRIB G B 2017
F12AMHEKREFNEREABAAR
# 49,473,000 7T * 5% 3B RN 5 HA )
H - AEEWARF I EDREBEREE -
AASEERABRAEHABY ERSRE
HREGEHESERE P BE I &R KD
8% o RE B W E X FHE R TT B (K

o
Aam °

EWREEARITELER - BERET
HEIMFIIERR A30E0H F BEER
A BN ERAEEEEREHRZFEHR
R AP AR - A 4 2 R (A
- M2018F 12 A31H - EBEEFTAEE
WEBHRIBAEEEZENRIE  EE
SHREEI A WAL IEFER - 2017 F 12
HA31B - 28& £ AK#%5,530,000 7T
WRIBAEEEZENRIE  M—FEAR
1,000,000 T HYFRIE B BEIR T 8R1T © B
EHERAEERE AW ARKIETER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

19.

TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The management of the Group considers the note receivables
are issued by the banks with high credit rating and the
probability of default is low.

Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade

19.

BEZRWHRAREBRRE @)

AEEERERS  ZERUAZEHAES
=5 B R FE QR M BRIEARTT T A
AT e

I RKFBEREREZED

receivables:

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARBFr
Balance at the beginning of the year — FE#4&5#&: 4,322 3,738

Impairment losses (reversed) (B[R E®RRAERIE
recognised (1,174) 584
Balance at the end of year FREER 3,148 4,322

Included in the balance of allowance for impairment are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of RMB3,148,000 and RMB4,322,000 as at 31
December 2018 and 2017, respectively, with reference to the
historical experience of these receivables, the collection of
these receivables may not be recoverable. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, RMB3,680,000 impairment loss
brought forward from 31 December 2017 was reversed as the
balances were fully settled by respective debtors, additional
RMB2,506,000 impairment loss was recognised for individually
impaired trade receivables. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

MR 20184 K% 2017 12 A 31 B » R {EEE
HERRP BIEB SRS B A AR 3,148,000
TR AR 4,322,000 ST EBIREZ 5 FE
WA - RIRZ S EBGRIBRNBE &5
HoygmikE - 8 E2018F 12831 H
IEFEAEEEREEE AR 3,680,000 7T
BEE - REABEGEEATEEEEH
ek - FEINREEIE AR 2,506,000 TE
HERIDREE S EWRTKIE T AR o A
SEWENRZSERITE TR o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

19.

TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been assessed individually based on each customer’s credit
risk characteristics and the historical observed default rates
adjusted by forward looking estimates. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore estimated
the expected loss rates for the trade receivables and the

contract assets on the same basis.

The expected loss rates, which ranged from 0.1% to 19.5%
for those not credit-impaired trade receivables and contract
assets and was 100% for those credit-impaired trade
receivables and contract assets, are estimated based on
the exposure to default of each customer, payment history
of the customer, the existing relationship with the customer
and study on corporate default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody’s and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the macroeconomic factors affecting
the industry and the impact that may result in customer
ability to make payments) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL mode for trade receivables over 90 days past due based
on the good repayment records for those customers and

continuous business with the Group.

19.

BEERBRARBRRE @)

FER2018F 1 A1 B HAKEI R B %5 3 &
ERHDHE IR E - A& B AR B3R
HEEADFIRE AN EEREES
B ZARNEKAREFERBEHEESE
R - ESRWARBERBEPZENE
5 [ B A 0 2 A R B M ST R B Y R S B
REBHFFETE UG - BRNEED K
LHEREEAZETR  BEANEANRRNE
SRYGRIEE A NS R RS - B
b AEEERFE-EEHE H EKRFRIE
RERNEEMTEHEERE -

TEHIEEE CREBREERERNE 5 EKR
BRENEENGETEEENT0I%E
19.5% + HIREERENE 5 EKFKIER
EHEEMNMGEEEER100%) HERE
BEENER BPELMNRGDH - B2E
FrBREBERBEBREETAEE(BER
i M AZAE R ) ¥ A B1IE 40 K B U B 0 B
FHEITET - WRHER T H TS ERK A
2 A M A SRR AR (fln - 2T
ERFEZFNRENNRBLCERER)E
TR - AEBEIEEMN A ZAEMEE R
RETE RS B EARFE E ATAR R &R HTEOR 5
Mo AEBENRZERF W RIFERTDHE
REAEENIFEXELERKEBHREERSR
R T E 5 EUREIEA HI 90 A LA EREX
HE o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. & AAREREERRE
RECEIVABLES

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
72018 &£ 2017 F
128318 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AEREFT
Advance to suppliers A i FE R R HE O B R 18,965 18,842

Less: impairment loss on advance Ji - B[R FERS (E B RE 7E
to a supplier KR (EE 18 — (183)
18,965 18,659
Deferred issue costs BERERATRR AN 6,321 2,036
Deposits for tender bidding KiEEe 1,000 510
Other deposits HEfize 871 377
Value-added tax receivables FE W E T 504 384
Staff advances BET#K 715 889
Others Hitb 770 326
29,146 23,181

21. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 21. EHEE A

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARBFr
Contract assets ABHEE 176,973 69,372
Contract liabilities AHEE 72,885 67,779
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

21.

CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 21. SHEE BE®W
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, contract assets include R 2018 4F K 2017F12A31H &4 &
retention receivables of RMB9,209,000 and RMB9,427,000, ERBIEERERE S AR 209,0007T
respectively, were held by customers under contracts as M ARY9Q,427,0007T - ZERKIRE S
set out below. The Group generally provide their customers BT - AEE—RAEFTFIEE
with one to two years warranty period. Upon the expiration of —ZEMFERISHE o RRB HAE R 2 -
retention period, if the relevant hazardous wastage processing ERECREYRERE mESNYE
plant has met the requirements in the contract, the customers ko BEBETRERBIIRERKE I
provides a final inspection and acceptance certificate and FE - BREHORTEMNHRASHREE -
pay the retention within the term specified in the contract.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the allowance for R20184F K 20176128318 AN E
impairment of contract assets is RMB3,923,000 and ERERED AR AR 3,923,000 7T &
RMB1,845,000, respectively. AR® 1,845,000 7T °
The changes in contract assets and liabilities are due to i) BRHEERBENEHIHR)EAEGHT
adjustments arising from changes in the measure of progress BREEHESRELHMEENAR « X
of contracting work, or ii) reclassification to trade receivables A EEBEEEGREERERENSER
when the Group has unconditional right to the consideration. H 5 FEWRIE o
Contract liabilities represent the progress payment exceeds BHEBEEIREEANBRIEBERALR
the revenue recognised to date under the input method and BRAEEROWRA » ITRAEEBITE
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs its AHEERERBBA -
obligations under the contracts.
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARKFir
Hazardous waste incineration solutions 12 B8 4716 iR B ff AR 75 52 72,645 67,231
Technical upgrading services AT 4% AR 75 240 509
Maintenance services HERTS — 39
72,885 67,779
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 21. SHEE BEW
All the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as EHMEAHNABRER T —FERRAK
revenue in the following year. A e
The following table shows amount of the revenue recognized TR P TR P AN T T aR A LA B 58 1T B
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities BITHREARERHERBEEE -

in prior periods.

Hazardous waste Technical
incineration solutions upgrading services Maintenance services
BRENRERERRLR B i 7t AR 14 5 IR 7%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

2018 F 2017 % 2018 F 20174 2018 F 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR |ANERTT |AREFT |ARETT |ARETRT |ARKTT

Revenue recognized that st ASHIE B ELHE RN
was included in the BHRBA
contract liability balance
at the beginning of the

year 49,383 14,449 509 140 39 —

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the contract 20184 1 A 1 B £ (B KR B 7% ) &5 2%

assets are subject to ECL assessment same as the trade and AINE ISR - ANEBEEXBHEEHE

note receivables as detailed in Note 19. HETARIR - B 19 FTaf it M) B 5 e U 3
AR FEW IR —B

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the lifetime ECL HZEZ2018F12A31ALEFE ARK

allowance for contract assets amounting to RMB2,073,000 2,073,000 (=T —tF : T)MAENE

(2017: nil) is recognised in profit or loss. EREFEPEBEEEEREDNER
FHER °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

22,

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank balances
held by the Group with maturity of three months or less and
carry interest at market rate of 0.01% to 1.35% per annum as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2017 represents
the bank guarantee amounting to 10% of the contract price
with one of the customers amounting to RMB8,388,000 and
the bank guarantee amounting to RMB500,000 with one of
the customers for bidding. The pledged bank deposits will
be released when the performance obligation is met or the
customer cancelled the requirement for the bank guarantee
and the bidding result is confirmed. Pledged bank deposits of
the Group carrying interest at market rate of 0.35% per annum
as at 31 December 2017.

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 represents
the bank guarantee with several customers for performance
obligation fulfilment. The pledged bank deposits will be
released when the performance obligation is met, the
customer cancelled the requirement for the bank guarantee
or the bank guarantee is due. Pledged bank deposits of the
Group carrying interest at market rate of 0.35% to 2.415% per

annum as at 31 December 2018.

22.

RITERRRS NS EFRITER

MR2018 4% K 2017F 12 A31H » R1T 4
MREREBEAEEFENHRTBA=
& B I AFF 0.01% = 1.35% Hy i 35 K| &
T EMIR S MIRITAE o

2017 F 12 A31H M E JFRTF K
BRECHER BRI ZANERA
R ¥ 8,388,000 7T 19 10% HY SR 1T & 1R & 5t
FIZE—FZ B A K 500,000 7T HY
IBITER - ERIBPRITTEFBERBITREL
2% BPEUHIRITHERERREZRER
R AR - R2017412A318 -
AEENERKFRITFERETSHNEESF
0.35%FE °

2018 F 12 A 31 HME W B RITERNK
RIBTER HPBEETEFPBITRAOE
%o BEEMRTERBERITRAORY
P EUBRIT IR E SRR IRIT IR B BB
R - 2018412 A31H » A& EH
BHERRITERIRM SN ETF0.35% =
2.415% 5T 2 °

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B HRRRIFIZERERF G R A 7



5 %
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EZENRIE
The table below sets forth, as at the end of reporting periods TREVN AR ERRNE FENZIE
indicated, the aging analysis of the trade payables: BREC AT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 F ® 2017 &
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TFTT AREFIT
0-90 days 0Z90H 80,692 30,729
91-180 days 912 180 H 952 824
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 2,271 16
Over 365 days 365 B E 159 1,301
84,074 32,870
There is no specific credit period granted on purchase of AARTESREENMERGER TEE
goods and services. WIEEH -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 24, HWENRERETTER

24.

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

R2018 4 2017 F

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT ARKFr

Other tax payables H b 1R 3,127 3,565

Accrued staff costs et B TR 4,250 3,663

Accrued listing expenses FEET ETRX 5,852 1,635

Accrued issue costs FERTEEITRN AN 1,950 —

Accrued audit fees EErEZE A 1,700 =
Payables for construction of oil sludge 27 i e Bz 3 5% is Y fE 1~ ZUE

treatment facility 9,108 —

Payables for acquiring of intangible Ut B A 71 ) PE A RNTE

assets 12,700 ==

Others Hiftb 1,091 651

39,778 9,514
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND 25. FEfYIRERFNIA N FEATRARE 5 7R IR
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY
Details of amounts due to shareholders and amount due to a JFE A<F % 3R FRTE A K BB A< BA B 5 SRR R B a0
related party are as follows: T
As at As at
31 December 31 December
PLORE: 2017
R2018 F 2017 F
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARETFr
Non-trade nature FEZMUE
(a) Amounts due to shareholders (a) FETREE
Mr. Cai oL ivla s
— Consideration payables upon — BARKEMHEE
Reorganisation (Notes i & ii) (Bt K ii) — 35,317
— Fund advances (Note ii) — BoERHaEii) — 46,464
Mr. Ren fESE4E
— Fund advances (Note ii) — BEBR(MEii) — 12,213
— 93,994
(b) Amount due to a related party (b) FETEHE
Ms. Huang =L
— Consideration payables — BARKEMNEE
upon Reorganisation (Note i) (Hati) — 2,524
The amounts of non-trade nature is unsecured, interest-free EFHARIEBIESHIEE  BER - THE
and repayable on demand. NBEREBERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

25.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY (continued)

Trade nature

On 25 June 2018, Guangzhou Weigang entered into a contract

for a

hazardous waste incineration solutions project with

Jiangsu Suquan Solid Waste Treatment Limited, an associate

of Mr.

Ren. The contract sum is at RMB43,420,000. During the

year ended 31 December 2018, a deposit of RMB10,941,000
is received and recognised as contract liabilities.

Notes:

(0]

(if)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Cai, Mr. Ren and
Ms. Huang made advances to the Group for its working capital
requirement in respect of its operation, consideration payables
for acquisition of an associate/a subsidiary and consideration

payables for Reorganisation.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the consideration for the
acquisition of 70% and 5% equity interest in Guangzhou
Weigang by the Group from Mr. Cai and Ms. Huang amounting
to RMB35,317,000 and RMB2,524,000, respectively, was
included in their respective current accounts with the Group, as
at 31 December 2017.

On 26 January 2018, amounts due to Mr. Cai and Mr. Ren
of RMB36,734,000 and RMB11,140,000, respectively, are
assigned, novated and capitalised, as detailed in Note 37(c)
and RMB43,152,000 are settled in cash during the year ended
31 December 2018.

25. FEIRERFRIA N BT BAME D =R (4)

BEaMHE

M20184F 6 A25 B + FE M 47 B (F 5k A&
W E AN L& EBEMEE R A A
ERENRIEREE R REE RN —
MEK - BHLERARYA3,420,000
T RELE2018F 12 A31HILFE ' B
WE AR 10,941,000 THIR S I E #H
BN IERERREHNEE -

(i)

(if)

REZE2017F 12 A31 BIEFE « 2584 -
ErRERFELLIRAEEZE - WEKEG
WA R REA B0 B A R SAERE By ¥
EBmMRAEEFEHBRABRETALEES
3k o

BIEEHE - N2017412 5318 - ALEK
BREEREFELTREMNESBT70% R 5%
R E S Bl A AR 35,317,000 7T & A
R#2,524,0007T ' BEFF ARESHERE
EMAERERR ©

R2018%1H268 « & 5 % 4 & E
S5 A B FUIE A R 36,734,000 & A R
¥11,140,000C E D Al EE - B R
RER G RH E37(c)) - EARK
43,152,0007T 7 # £ 2018 F 12 A31H Ik
FRUNBSLEEH -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITER
PLRE: 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TFTT ARKFr
Analysed: DR
Unsecured bank borrowing carried VA TE F & 51 B g IR R 1T
interest at fixed rate R 10,000 10,000
Advance from bank on discounted note #t—F A& K %58 RAERE U
receivable with recourse repayable ARIR =R M A ERTTIR LA EA SR
within one year — 1,000
10,000 11,000
Carrying amounts repayable (Note): FEEBHNREE R L)
— Within one year - —FR 10,000 1,000
— More than one year, but not — —FHE BTHBBARME
exceeding two years — 10,000
10,000 11,000
Less: Amounts due within one year B mEBBEBET—FANHNERE
shown under current liabilities 10,000 1,000
Amounts shown under non-current FERBEBETHEE
liabilities — 10,000
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set Hiet - BIEARE D ERE R BZTEATEEER B
out in the borrowing agreement. As at 31 December 2018 and Hl o 20184 R 2017 124318 » K17
2017, no bank borrowings contain any repayment on demand fEFIB TS ERBEGK
clause.
The bank borrowing is guaranteed by the personal guarantees RITER BB ENREZ LR G E AR
provided by Mr. Cai and Ms. Huang. A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 26. RITEMRE)
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEEIRITIERAEBRF R (TRERETLF
interest rate) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows: )R ¢
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AR FT
Effective interest rate on fixed rates of & B &R
— Unsecured bank borrowing — EIIRIRITE R 6.175% 6.175%
— Advance from bank on discounted — FEUELIRZEFAREEITER
note receivable N/A R iE A 5.5%
All of the borrowings are denominated in RMB which is the FTEEFEAARE (BEEEEEEHNI)
same as the functional currency of the corresponding group BEEM)EE -
entities.
27. OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION 27. REHEEENTE
On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang increased its registered 2018448 - E/M# B A HF M
capital from RMB10,000,000 to RMB400,000,000. &R H AR 10,000,0007TiE = AR
400,000,000 T °
On 4 April 2018, Guangzhou Weigang, Weigang Holdings R2018F 4 A48 « BINKERS - #EBIER
(Hong Kong), Jade Road, Jade Fly, WeiGang Technology and (BH) A AR - BRI RBIE
Orient Landscape, an independent third party, entered into =FRAEMETLEERE  BUHESIERE
investment agreements whereby Orient Landscape agreed, MEE (P BE) AARKE 94,444,444 7T
among others, to subscribe for the registered capital of O ¥ {E R I8 B 4 78 A R 5 40,000,000 7T
RMB40,000,000 in Guangzhou Weigang, representing 10% of B REM & A - B E R E M #E10% &) iR
the equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang, at a consideration ¥ R2018F 4811 H  ZHEEEH
of RMB94,444,444. On 11 April 2018, the consideration was A o
fully settled.
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B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

27.

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION

(continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the investment agreement, the
following special rights were granted to Orient Landscape, all
of which shall automatically terminate immediately upon the
Listing save for the Profit Compensation Right as mentioned

below:
Information Right

Guangzhou Weigang shall provide Orient Landscape with
audited annual reports and unaudited monthly financial
statements of Guangzhou Weigang and the Company within
90 days (in the case of annual report) or 21 days (in the case
of monthly financial statements) after the end of the relevant

reporting period.
Tag-along Right

If Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong) and/or Jade Road intends
sell their equity interests in Guangzhou Weigang to any third
party, Orient Landscape is entitled to participate in such sale

to such third party under the same terms and conditions.
Liquidation Right

Orient Landscape shall be entitled to receive not less than
an amount equal to 120% of the Subscription Price plus
any declared but unpaid dividends in preference to other
shareholders of Guangzhou Weigang in the event of any

liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Guangzhou Weigang.
Put Option

If the Listing does not take place on or before 3 April 2020,
Orient Landscape is entitled to require Weigang Holdings
(Hong Kong) and Jade Road to purchase all of the equity
interest in Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient Landscape at
a price equal to the sum of (i) the Subscription Price plus an
interest of 8% per annum and (ii) any declared but unpaid

dividends.

27.

RnRELENE @)

REBERBEHZEK  ROBENERIA TR
RURER - BRI XBREMFBRHERN - 2
BRI ERERE E TR BERILE ¢

AtsE

BN B BAEMRB®REBERK0R (B
FEHREMS)H 21 B(BLAEHBEHKRM
=) ARIRTT B EM 4B R AR ER
REZFERE MREEZAERBERE

i

MBI (BB ) RSN BT S HE
BMNgSNRAEREFTME=
R B ERERGR RIET2HEAE
=HHHE °

EERE
HEMNESEE BEsER  IRATE
MEEEBEREMNESEBBRRESTD
RREE 120% HWFKIE © B3 INEMAE IR
BRIFHRE -

oL

il LR #E 2020 4 A3 B sk 2 AT #AT
AR 7 EMERERESER(FE) RA
B BE B R 7 BTSN g 80 2 S AR AR
- ERENUATEENERN : ()RE
BIN8%MES : F(i)IMEZTIRERS
HRIRRE. -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

27. OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION 27. REHMEEENTE@)
(continued)
Director Nomination Right EERERE
Orient Landscape is entitled, within 28 days of the investment RITBMAERNIEE B EN28 BRREE
agreement, to nominate a director of Guangzhou Weigang INEBH —RESEERMNESHNEES
as deputy chairman of the board of directors of Guangzhou & FHAE=FIRAFBNTBEEMNE
Weigang for a term of three years or such shorter period BIRRZ B AIERMEREER - RYIZEH
ending on the date on which Orient Landscape ceases to 1% B RIRER NRER T BE M BT
be a shareholder of Guangzhou Weigang. After the initial ZEKBEMNESES - AIIEREHEMN
term, WeiGang Technology shall use reasonable endeavours REMBREES —RHREZNESAIE
to procure an Orient Landscape’s nominee to become a EEMESNEFRT o

director of Guangzhou Weigang provided at any time, Orient
Landscape shall only have one director nominated by it

holding directorship at Guangzhou Weigang.

Profit Compensation Right FlEwmERE

WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly undertake with Orient BRI RARRE B REAE - HE
Landscape if the net profit of Guangzhou Weigang for the I 478 B = 2018 FF 2 20194F 12 A31H
years ending 31 December 2018 and 2019 in aggregate IEEFEE /AR E £([20184F & 20194
(“Profit for 2018 & 2019”) is less than RMB200 million (“Target FBEDIPRARK2008 &8 ZF
Profit”), Orient Landscape is entitled to either (i) require B BIRSEMERE() BRI R
WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly to transfer such number of ANRUATHEEZREAT A GTERNZ
shares of the Company calculated under the following formula ZHEWMARRRD :

at nil consideration:

10% x (Target profit — Profit for 2018 & 2019)
RMBO0.85

Number of shares =

10% x (BEAE — 2018 F K& 2019 E7H)

BIABE = — ==
AR®0.857T
or (ii) require WeiGang Technology and Jade Fly to pay a sum sk (i) ER @ ARHE RARSZAREL TR
calculated under the following formula: Rt B L -

Sum = 10% x (Target Profit — Profit for 2018 & 2019)
S = 10% x (BZF)H — 2018 F K% 2019 FFH)

Subject to compliance with any applicable Listing Rules and 1F 38 57 {r] 3 B _E T 4R Bl ) K2 AT BE (A1 B 32
undertakings restricting share transfer which may be given Fr X2 A1) B2 85 7 1E Hi B9 PR 1 AR 1 8 2 A
to the Stock Exchange and any underwriters, the above MERT @ EafEEEE FhgsEIMNAE
compensation shall be completed within 30 days after the B019FEMKLEXFE RS T2 H H
Listing or the date of issue of the audited annual report of (ABEE "2%E) 12 30 HATAK °

Guangzhou Weigang for 2019, whichever is later.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %3} 193



194

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

27.

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT OPTION

(continued)

Upon completion of the subscription on 11 April 2018, an
amount representing the proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of Guangzhou Weigang at the
date of the completion of the subscription is transferred
to non-controlling interests. The difference between the
capital contribution from the non-controlling interests, the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Guangzhou Weigang and the re-attribution of its statutory
surplus reserve and accumulated profits is recognised in
other reserve. On the same date, an amount representing the
present value amounting to RMB94,444,444 of the amount
that the Group could be required to pay to Orient Landscape
pursuant to the put option over the 10% equity interest in
Guangzhou Weigang held by Orient Landscape, with a
corresponding debit in equity, is recognised as obligation
arising from a put option under non-current liabilities, and
the corresponding interest of 8% per annum during the year
amounting to RMB5,457,000 is recognised in obligation

arising from a put option and profit or loss.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the Target Profit of Guangzhou Weigang as detailed above
can be met and the fair value of the profit compensation right
at the date of completion of the subscription and as at 31

December 2018 is insignificant.

27.

RLHEEENEE®)

MR2018F4 B 11 AERRER - —£48
EREMESRRIETK A BEEFERN
AR B A0 38 & b 0 /O & B8 15 B2 48 SR 1 iR i
oo FERERTE RN ER BN
BEEFEREEEE LAARELEER
B 1 15 B 25T IR ) B2 3 5 R T A L b
BRER - RA - —Z2HERAEERE
IR 5 BAMFTIE E MBS 10% BRAE R A
ok Bk T A 2B AT T R 5 B MR AI R I
HIRER SRR (AR 94,444 444 71 )& [A]
HEREREBERERAIERB ARG TH
ROLHEENET  URIEENS%F
NE B (AR 5,457,000 7T ) 72 R0 2 4
EENEFERIBETER -

BEoN c RRREERA - Ll EMNEBR
BEFBENER  ARRABTKBHE
2018 12 A 31 BB EEN A 1B
(ERIZZNE N
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Details of the movement of share capital of the Company are RABIRABH BT
as follows:
Number of  Nominal value
shares per share Share capital Share capital
R #E SREE B& BR&
HK$ HK$ RMB'000
BT AT AEETFL
Authorised EE
At 18 May 2017 (date of incorporation) 1201745 F 18 F
(Note i) (EMAKSL B E) (472 38,000,000 0.01 380,000 335
At 31 December 2017 R2017%E12 8311 38,000,000 0.01 380,000 335
— Increase in authorised share capital ~ — JAERRAE N
(Note iii) (Hizii) 19,962,000,000 0.01 199,620,000 168,285
— Share consolidation (Note iii) — A HH i) (16,000,000,000) 0.04 = =
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H 4,000,000,000 005 200,000,000 168,620
Issued and fully paid EERTRAR
At 18 May 2017 (date of incorporation) — H 2017454188
(Note i) (GRS BE) (Aai) 5,250 0.01 525 =¢
Issued during the period (Note i) BRI 1,750 0.01 17.5 —*
At 31 December 2017 20174612 A 31H 7,000 0.01 70 —
Issued during the year FERET
— Capitalisation of loan (Note i) — BERER(HEi) 4,999,993,000 0.01 49,999,930 40,572
— Share consolidation (Note iii) — RIAEH (i) (4,000,000,000) 0.04 — -
— Pre-IPO investors (Note iv) - BRDRBRERRES
(Hiiziv) 20,864,000 0.05 1,043,200 841
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 128318 1,020,864,000 0.05 51,043,200 41,413

* Less than RMB 1,000

* TEARM 1,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

28. SHA

Notes:

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

RE CAPITAL (continued)

The Company was incorporated on 18 May 2017 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the date of its incorporation, 5,250
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 were allotted and issued by the
Company. On 8 September 2017, an additional of 1,750 shares
were allotted and issued by the Company upon Reorganisation.

As detailed in Note 37(c), on 26 January 2018, Jade Fly has
agreed to subscribe for 1,499,497,901 shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company at the subscription price in
the sum equivalent to the amount of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent
to RMB14,356,000) which are to be satisfied by capitalising the
loan amount of HK$17,691,182.

On 26 January 2018, WeiGang Technology has agreed to
subscribe for 3,500,495,099 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at the subscription price in the
sum equivalent to the amount of HK$41,307,518 (equivalent to
RMB33,518,000) which are to be satisfied by capitalising the
loan amount of HK$41,307,518.

On 26 January 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company has been increased to HK$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each, and on
the same date, the Company consolidate every five shares of
a par value of HK$0.01 each in the authorised (whether issued
or unissued) share capital of the Company into one share
of a par value of HK$0.05 each. Immediately after the share
consolidation, (i) WeiGang Technology held 700,100,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.05 each; (ii) Jade Fly held 299,900,000
Shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each; and (iii) the number
of authorised shares had been changed from 20,000,000,000
shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each to 4,000,000,000 shares
of a par value of HK$0.05 each.

On 13 February 2018, the Company has allotted and issued
16,155,353 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to two pre-IPO
investors for a total consideration of HK$16,991,957 (equivalent
to RMB13,706,000).

On 9 April 2018, the Company has allotted and issued 4,708,647
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each to another pre-IPO investor
for a total consideration of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,016,000).

28. RA(4)

0)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

ARATR2017F5 A 18 ML - #iA
YA TE BR 7K 7% 380,000 8 7T + 4 /% 38,000,000
B% & R E E0.01 8 T AR 7 o IR AR Z
HE - ARBIRHRFITEE0OIEITH
5250 R Z AR - M20174F9A8H * AR
AEEAREINCEE BT 1,750 BRAR 1D ©

A Bff #E37(c) AT & it - 20184 1 A 26
H: ARERBEURBEREARDARAE
#11,499,497,901 ik & % H 1E0.01 7% 7T &)
B &EMAER17,601,1828 T(H &
AR % 14,356,0007T ) + #5315 1B 1§ B K
17,691,182 BT EAME M #EATE o

M201841H26H  # BB ERE MK
B (B 7R B A R 7] B& A& 1 3,500,495,099
REREECOIEBITHRG - @BHEER
41,307,518 7t (A5 & 1 A R #5 33,518,000
TL) v BB E R 41,307,518 BT E AL
EfTER -

R2018%F1H268 & A A M & T
f% 7K # A0 Z 200,000,000 T D B
20,000,000,000f% & fx ™ 1E0.017& 7T &)
R AA: ARAKEERE(ERE
BOIRART)PERREREMEO.01%
THRMHEHR—REREEO005E T
Mk - RERNDE G - () BB R
4 700,100,000 fx &F i H 180.05 % 7T i iR
% 5 (i) 78 TR #%5 4 299,900,000 % & P& B
0.05BTLHRE S ¢ R (i) AERANEKE E#)
20,000,000,000 fi% & A% [ {8 0.01 7 7T &9 iR
1% & /5 4,000,000,000 % & X E{E 0.05 8
TTHIRRAD ©

R20184F2HA13H + &N X 7 WA 4 ¥ &
16,991,957 /% 7T (# & R A R # 13,706,000
T)AMEERARBENREERE RE
7716,155,353 IR F AR E H0.05 /5 T K & A
A% o

R2018F4H9H - K A 7l K & ¥ &
5,000,000 7T(# & M A R ¥ 4,016,000
T)AS—BERARABEEMNREERER
174,708,647 REMREE0.05 B LA E R
ﬂﬁ o
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29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualify employees in Hong Kong. The asset of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by

employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
as determined by respective local government authority to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions under the

scheme.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect
of the retirement benefits scheme for the year ended 31

December 2018 are disclosed in Note 9 and Note 10.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of business. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
disclosed in Note 26, amounts due to shareholders, amount
due to a related party, obligation arising from a put option, net
of bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners

of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the issue of

new shares and raising of new debts.

29.

30.

RAKERGE

AEBEREBEBRAAAEREBHEITRN
HRERFE - ZAtEMNEERAREE
EDRANR  AXTAMEGHNESRE -
ANEB R IER T E KA 5% [ %=t &l 1F
K - MEB AR FRMHR -

AEEMBARNTEER STEBNFE
WOBERERRABANEBNKE - 187
MEARTEARKENGEIEL —F/A
BB Ho BT HEE RE B 7 BN B AN 2 5 7E EE 1 A9
HH - UABAREES - A5EHRER
RAEFIEH &I M HE — RIS —AE AT 8l T AV

FEHR

AREBREE2018F 12 A31 BIEFEER
RAREFFEIE L MRS B ER M T
9 KFIFE10 ©

BB b 1

AEENBRAERFRBENERNER
EFHERAMTSELD » W ARKRE
B RRFERR - ARBERERBEAKEE
EFEMER -

AREBNERNRB BTN 26 WHEAYIRTT
B3R B ARGRIE - FE 15 BE B 75 508
RnREENEE(NRBITEHRER
BIURARRHEE AEGEE(EPEE
PR E) ©
RRAREFRIBEERKARAREEE AR
BRHER  HEBEZEANRE - REX
REAEENEE  AEESBBEITHR
NP e R E AR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

31.

= |
(a) £WMIEMER

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARHTFT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including E R &R EIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BERERECEED) — 136,832
Financial assets at amortised cost IZ# K AN ENESREE 211,207 —
AFS investment A ERE — 3,584
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BRARBEFEWF A A
FEKENRARTE 2,980 —
214,187 140,416
Financial liabilities SREE
Liabilities measured at amortised R K AT 2
cost M E 226,376 142,674

MN20184 K 20175 12 B 31 B ik#k
AT EZEHMEENARERK
EURBEBBERENAESEEYD)

Financial assets at amortised cost and loans and
receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) as

at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively are as

198

follows: SR -
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥FTT AEEFT
Bank balances and cash RITERREES 23,437 68,946
Pledged bank deposits DARERITIER 43,912 8,888
Trade and note receivables H 5 W SR TE & e I E R 142,835 57,783
Other receivables H b fiE U 5118 1,023 1,215
211,207 136,832

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B HRRRIFIZERERF G R A 7



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and note receivables, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, AFS investment/
equity instrument at FVTOCI, trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to shareholders, amount due to
a related party, bank borrowings and obligation arising
from a put option. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings in Note 26 and
obligation arising from a put option in Note 27. The
Group currently does not have any fair value interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arises.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of market rate, i.e. the benchmark
saving rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China on
variable-rate bank balances and pledged bank deposits
in Note 22.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in liquidity risk management

section of this Note.

31.

EMITEE)

(b)

MEAKREE B BERBE

AEEFTESHITAREESEK
FRIB R FEWN R IR - H M fE W GRIE
EﬁﬁﬁﬁEM‘ﬁ e kIR
& AEBERE RAREER
BV AREMEERZHRATL
A EH9EMNRE  HEMEMK
18 - PETIRERGRIE - FE AT R B 5 K
B RAOBRERROAEELENT
FoZEZeMmIT A ZFBRERIE

FEBRSE o

HZEeRTAEEENEREER
RER - BERK - EERBR LR

Btk o TXEIN MR EZE

RBRHEE - RRAIEEEENRE
ZZE R 0 LATER X A R £
BUEE A
Ve

$E@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ1ﬁ‘£2ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁimuﬁﬁ
TEXBEEN QA BENXRER K
WEEZW)?ME’JW/‘EHH%EEE’JE
F-AEBEBRNYLEHEEFMDA
BEMERHIRER - BEEERA
FEREZ BEREAN KRR o

7 85 5 71 B Y R 22 AT L 0% B R
THHEREERRITERZ TSN
K(ANPBEARRITAMBIFRESE
ME)RBERNRSREN KR

G o
AA

AMAEEFAERSREENFE
B 0 FE8 B A A SE R B L B
4 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31. sRIA#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHEREEBEZRBEGE)

(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FIE Rz (E)
Sensitivity analysis B E T
Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits RITER KRS URBERBETE
are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the directors RARMABRESINT - RARARA
of the Company consider that the exposure of cash RIEFERMZRRTHEBKRE ER
flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank RITFREENR ST E N EE R
balances and pledged bank deposits is insignificant. WIEER o
No sensitive analysis is presented for the bank BARIRITERIREEMNEGTE © K
borrowings because the bank borrowings are bearing W4 2 SRITE A BRE 5T ©

fixed-interest rate.

Currency risk BrmEpE
The Group’s bank balances and cash, other payables, AREBWMRITESRLIRE - EfbfE
amounts due to shareholders and amount due to a TFRIE  FE - AR 3R 3K IE DA K2 FE 1<) 8
related party are denominated in US$ and HK$, which Bt H RIEHAE T KRB TEIE &
exposed the Group to foreign currency risk. 155 7K 5% [ T B SN DEE LB o
The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency RMBEER - REBEINESHER
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EEEEREYaENEREES?
the end of the reporting date is as below: R
PLRE: 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
Assets BE
us$ e —* 2,943
HK$ BT 2,453 40,995
Liabilities a8\
uss$ £ — 2,943
HK$ BT 8,234 95,387
* Less than RMB 1,000 * TEARKE 1,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates and
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusted their transaction at
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes bank balances and
cash, other payables, amounts due to shareholders
and amount due to a related party. A 5% increase
or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in foreign currency rates.

If 5% weakening/strengthening of US$ and HK$ against
RMB, the Group’s post tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 would increase/decrease by
RMB216,000 and increase/decrease by RMB2,040,000,
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to foreign currencies rates of US$ and HK$ on
its bank balances and cash, other payables, amounts
due to shareholders and amount due to a related party
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and note receivables, contract assets, bank balances

and pledged bank deposits.

The carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets and contract assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position best

represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

31.

EMITEE)

(b)

BHRBREERRERBERE)

EHmpg (&)

T ) BURKE 2 AT 9 B R SN [
FEREE - BEBENUIMNETER
ﬁ‘i’i’ii‘iﬁ‘bﬁi‘%{lﬁﬁ * 6 LA 5% B HNEE
[ERZEHNFERIERHFHE - X
F§* DT BRRITEHRIAS A
e FRIR - FE AN BRIR SRR A R FE A
BB IR - MEZEIEAB RS
BEE SR 51 [ =< R B By - BRI 5% EY 1%
W RREEEHINEERNSE
A REE B (E YRS ©

METRBTRAAREEERT®
EF5% - BIEZ= 2018 F K 2017 &
12 A31 BIEFE - AL BT
& 5 Bl A A A R % 216,000
TR R A R ¥ 2,040,000
T BEFERHRAEERN 20184
&2017%12)%3152%&«7 & R

R$ - HAvERIE - BARER
I,EL‘A&E%HE% Bt 5 SRIBE R 3= T &
P TTHNE [ = @B o

1= B3 R el B AT A

AEENEERRIZRAEZE
WHREREKREE AHEE R
TTRHBEEEERRITER

REMBARRAREEEERS
MEERA @’ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ@?
BERRAEEEBRNRAEERR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the directors of the Company review the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting periods to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are limited because the counterparties are

reputable financial institutions in the PRC.

The Group’s concentration by geographical locations is
mainly in the PRC, which accounted for all of the trade
and note receivables as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 54% and
71% of the total trade and note receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer as at 31 December
2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 67%
and 72% of the total trade and note receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
December 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Since the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade and note receivables and contract assets, as

detailed in Notes 19 and 21, respectively.

31.

EMITEE)

(b)

BHRBREERRERBERE)

= BB R R EF 1 (E)

REEERRRERE  NARE
FCRREBFEREEEERE
EEEHLREMEREF - AR
RERRERE N @ a R ER - it
S ARBEENZRERRRE
B IR R & 5 E % A U B &5
AR mE 1 AT U 1@ 28 4F 38 99 B0
BEER - BRIt ARAFEERAA
SENEERBRE XIERE o

HREFIAREERFZPEE
W& BT - BURTTAERR M E HIHR
TEFNEERRER -

AEBEZRWEE S 2EFREER
EKEK¢MﬁW'%mm¢&
201712 A31BHE S B IEA
RIEWEIEH) 2 5B

R2018F K 2017F 12 A31H » &
SEHREZERUGRIERERREE

D %IJE54%&71%FEEE$E@
BARPXNmMEREESFEE -

R2018F K 2017F 12 A31H » &
SERE ZEWFIERERERE

D EIJE67%)§272%FEEE$E@
AR NMEEEESERE

B 20184 1 A 1 B B4 B FR B 7% 3
HERNFEIFE - AEEEAH L
TR BB B R 3R A
OSRFTAMEMTBHERERE &
Ala#ERE S RUEGRIEREKE
BARE KA ER @ &8
EERE  FEIRERKFE19R
21 o
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The management of the Group considers pledged bank
deposits and bank balances that are deposited with
state-owned banks or financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating
issuers during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating Description

AMERTFR RE

EMITEE)
(b) HBEMBREEEERERE)

EEm B R B 7S (F)

AEBEEERR  FHRNREAIR
TERATRARENESMEEBENE
HIFRITERRBITIERBEEE
EREREE - EREE2018F &
2017 12A31 B EEEREE
WMBEITAN - ARAIEZRBENDN
A RENET] 2B o

REB B NS E R R TR (G
BIEATER

Other financial
assets/other items
HitemEE
HiEH

Trade receivables/
contract assets

B EWRE,
EREE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

12-month ECL

EEFEHEHEE 12@ANRBEER
B8 - TEEE g
B

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

12-month ECL

EEFEREHEE 12@ANRBEER
B - YEEE &1
B

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

9N HF 7 HEARREBER - B EE A A RIE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle in full

ERAE B AR BRE R BZERN

Doubtful There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or externally

it EERR B FEBAZ I ELE R E R )10 1
FRRE A B 1E AN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

B8 BNEEAFEERENEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEHEREE
BR - WEEER
fi=1

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

EEFEHEREE
BREREERE
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Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

BEFEREREE
B - REREE
B

Lifetime ECL —
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BEFEREREE
EBEERHREERE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Internal
credit rating Description

ABERTR AR

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect

g8 BREHARRREMHERBENZE  AXEER

3 48 B e 130 £ 7T

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s trade and note receivables and contract assets,
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and other

receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

2018
2018
Notes
it
Trade receivables 19
Z 5 EWGRIE
Note receivables 19
EREE
Contract assets 21
BREE

External
credit
rating
SR
EEFR

N/A
&R

Low risk
1K =B

N/A
TNE R

Internal
credit
rating
AR
EHTR

(Note 2)
(HiaE2)

N/A
NEA

(Note 2)
(Hrat2)

Trade receivables/
contract assets

B EWRE
EREE

Amount is written

FORE MY

EMITEE)
(b) HBEMBREEBEERERE)

= BB R R EF 1 (E)

Other financial
assets/other items
HitemEE
HiEH

Amount is written
off off

A2 MH

TR P A B 5 0 ORI
WEEURANEE - RIS -
BRI R RE A B R
smEHmG - AREREEEE
GEAE

BE KA EN T E T A

12-month
or Gross carrying
lifetime ECL amount
128 A B EFES
RHEEEE HEREE
RMB’000
AREF T
Lifetime ECL 130,252
EEFENENEE
BB
12-month ECL 15,731
128 AMEHBEE
BB
Lifetime ECL 180,896
EEFENENEE
BB
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

External Internal
credit credit
2018 rating rating
IhER Ak
2018 & FEFR FEIR
Notes
Hiet
Bank balances 22 Low risk N/A
RITHE SR 1K =Bz TEA
Pledged bank deposits 22 Low risk N/A
EHEIRIRITER 1K =B TEA
Other receivables 20 N/A (Note 1)
H b fE YR IE TERA (Hiat 1)
Notes:
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the

Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
The other receivables with no fixed payment terms
amounting to RMB1,023,000 as at 31 December 2018.

2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items based on internal
credit rating on individual assessment of each customer.

31.

SRMIAE)
(b) HHEREEBEZRBEGE)
=B fg R Al B ()
B NG E % F T A ()
12-month
or Gross carrying
lifetime ECL amount
1218 A RBEEFES
EHEEREE REREE
RMB’000
ARBETFT
12-month ECL 23,145
12{@AMBHEE
g
12-month ECL 43,912
12{@AMBHEE
|
12-month ECL 1,023
12@AMBHEE
&
Hiat -

1. RABEERREENENME @ &
SEEAAPERTEEERRKRE
CEVRERE—BEARBLA - R
20184 12 A 31 A + W&ERE F 13
#) H i fE U RE B A R % 1,023,000
=0

2. HESEBFIARENEEMNS @ R
ECERM B IREERIDFE I - A%
E RS A ERETERED
EREBRENEBRES AEERER
F&BBILFENABEEFRET
ZEHEMEREEEE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects

of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables include

both interest and principal cash flows.

31.

ST EE)

(b)

BHRBREERRERBERE)

TE R

EEERYMERRE  AREEE
NEFERERRENRETERD
RERHESNAS KRS FEY
K URRERSRERBNTZE

TRADLRBEZTEERGR - AK
BB ABEMNSRTEAOSMFS -
% FRBIRIRA SR B 7] 4% B R A
EREERMARSRENZER
HHERRERERE - TR
MERASHSRE

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than 6 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months  4-6 months to 1 year 1-2years  cash flows amounts
mE REXY, 68 A ABRRE
THRE 3N 4Z6f8AR Ef 1528 i £ BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFE  AREFL  AREFZ  AREFZ  AREFZ  ARETR
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31A
Non-derivative financial ELxA
liabilities B
Trade payables B3R - 84,074 - - - 84,074 84,074
Other payables AtbERFE - 32,401 - - - 32,401 32,401
Obligation arising from a put ~ ZEEEEEME
option 8% - - - 110,160 110,160 99,901
Fixed rate bank borrowings ~ E8 BT 6.175% 10,113 - - - 10,113 10,000
126,588 - — 110160 236748 226376
At 31 December 2017 R2017512831A
Non-derivative financial FiTEeR
liabilities B
Trade payables BHRE3E — 32,870 — — = 32,870 32,870
Other payables AtbEHZE - 2,086 = - = 2,286 2,086
Amounts due to shareholders R REFE - 93,994 - - - 93,994 93,994
Amount due to a related party  EFERAFA - 2,524 - - - 2,524 2,524
Fixed rate bank borrowings T8 BT 6.175% 154 154 309 10,113 10,730 10,000
Other bank borrowing EhRITER 5.50% 1,000 - - = 1,000 1,000
132,828 154 309 10,113 143,404 142,674
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of its financial asset, which is

measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques

and inputs to the model.

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that is

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Group owns 3% equity interest in a PRC private
company that is classified as an AFS investment/
equity investment at FVTOCI and is measured at fair
value at each reporting date. The fair value of the
investment as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 amounts
to RMB2,980,000 and RMBS3,584,000, respectively,
measured using a valuation technique with significant
unobservable inputs and hence was classified as Level

3 of the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 13.

31.

SRITEE)

(c)

EMIANAAEEFE

AHERHAEBASENEETEE
TREEZAABENER - JINA
MEE2HREWRAA(EEFE °

HERAABER  AEEEAAA
MIZAIBR IR o 58 — R AR
BAAR AEBESZRBE=748
BEREEMETHRE - EEEBES
BERINEGEMBETSIE HIFTE
B ERM MR AR -

BEEMEEURAEETEZL
REEHEEN R EE

REBRFELEQAHEAEHRI%
BARZEDEAAIEEERE
BEARBEFELTALMEEK
mEORATHR - W FHEB
AR BEFE - R2018%F K& 2017
F12A31B BREWAAEBES
Bl & A R #2980,0007T & AR
3,584,000 7T * FRAMERKMEE -
ERSRERNBEEERE AR
B AR BRI R B 7 3R 5 2E BN D 13
KOERARBESRZIE= A -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(c)

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that
is measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair

value of the Group’s financial asset is determined.

SRITEE)
(c) ERMIBENAREENERE)

BEREMEEURA R EBETEZX
RFHEHEEN A AEEE)

TREAEENTEEAEE R
BEZ AR BEOER -

Financial assets

tREE

Private equity investment
classified as equity
instrument at FVTOC
-3% equity investment in
a PRC private company
engaged in oil sludge
treatment facility

operator
LERBEENEAEALE
ﬁiﬂﬁkﬁﬂ%@%

BNRATA-3%HRE
QEEA%?E&%E@E&%
BENHELERH

Private equity investment
classified as AFS -3%
equity investment in a
PRC private company
engaged in oil sludge
treatment facility

operator

PERTELENLERER
B-3%MBRERENES
HERERFEELNPE

% A*/‘\

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

208

Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable

Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value

RT3 B H# RAEE EERMR TIRRBAHE

NMfEE E& BREAUE ARAEENBEE

31/12/2018 Level 3 Market approach — The fair value  If the market multiples increased/
is primarily affected by market decreased by 10% with all other
multiples. Market multiples variable held constant, other
is determined based on the comprehensive income for the year

RMB2,980,000 enterprise value to earnings before  ended 31 December 2018 would
interest, tax, depreciation and have been RMB257,000 higher
amortisation of the comparable and lower, respectively.
companies.

2018% 124318 £=ER sk — AABEZIERMEREY EMAEMZERHAZNERT TR
2 mERBRIRECEBERESR a%zinu/mm% 'HE018F
MERBARRGFEH HERE 12831 BEERMEMZENRER
HAMME HER © ARER R TRAR 257,007 °

AR%2,980,000T

31/12/2017 Level 3 Market approach — The fair value  If the market multiples increased/
is primarily affected by market decreased by 10% with all other
multiples. Market multiples variable held constant, other
is determined based on the comprehensive income for the year

RMB3,584,000 enterprise value to earnings before  ended 31 December 2017 would
interest, tax, depreciation and have been RMB345,000 higher
amortisation of the comparable and lower, respectively.
companies.

20174128318 F=ER mi5E — AABEIRRTEREY AEMAEMEERHTRZNERT wE
£ ERYNRECEBEETE  FHEN/ R 10% BE017F

WEATRTEE  FERBEA

AR 35840007 MlEZLER -

LEFE

12 A31 B FERE M2 ERE S
ARIEF R TRARE 345,000 ©

REZE 2018 K% 20174 12 A31 H

— MR =R T EE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31. €T HE#E)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) &RMIANAREETEE)
(continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes AR EEGEFGEBEE
The management of the Company is responsible to AARMEREEBERESENM
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and BERMRA R BESENEAEE -
inputs for fair value measurements.
In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses EEF—EHEENAABER &
market-observable data to the extent it is available. SEFERAMS ] BREE - W
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group FE—RABBEITA AEEE
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the EBE=F8EREHEMETHE
valuation. The management works closely with the B BEREEHRSERIIBGHEMEE
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate BEE - HIFI A EGERNEER
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The BMABE - TEEEBERAAATESTS
management reports the findings to the board of MEBHAEE UTHMEBEEEAARE
directors of the Company to explain the cause of BEREBHREA -
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs BERARANEBEESEEARBENG
used in determining the fair value of various assets are (EESTIWSEWN 1€ S0k - R SR N &4
disclosed above. =
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RABEGEEH K
AFS investment
AHEERE
RMB’000
ARETFT
1 January 2017 20171 H1H 1,500
Total gains Wz 4a 58
— in other comprehensive income (Note i) — REMEEmKRE (L) 2,084
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H 3,684
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31. €T AW

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c)
(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

ERMIANAAEBETEAE)

RAABEBAGEERE(F)

BE=RAREBEFEHR(E)

(continued)
Equity
instrument at
FVTOCI
RAREETE
Wit A2
Wz RAT R
RMB’000
AREFT
1 January 2018 20181 H1H 3,584
Total losses BB 4%

— in other comprehensive expense (Note ii) — REMEERAS (AaFi) (604)
31 December 2018 2018412831 H 2,980
Notes: Kz -

(i) Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of (i) FAREMEERAZKRE AR

RMB2,084,000 gain relating to unlisted equity securities
classified as AFS investment held at 31 December 2017
and is reported as changes of ‘revaluation reserve’.

(i) Included in other comprehensive expense is an amount
of RMB604,000 loss relating to unlisted equity securities
classified as an equity instrument at FVTOCI held at
31 December 2018 and is reported as changes of
‘revaluation reserve’.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The management estimates the fair values of its financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using discounted cash flows analysis. Management
of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their respective fair value.

2,084,0007C * 4 20174 12 A 31
BRAZIE EMBRARSFE D BAA
HHERE W27 AIE-HFHEIZ

29 -

(i) FARMEEMAXZRKEARE
604,0007T * AR 20184 12 431 H
RAZELMRABFHED ERIEA
A BEEFELF AR MEEK SR
ATLA WENRIEMHERFHIZE
&) o

FEEREEZMEETURAE
B BN zHEERTHMEEH L
RIEE

EEERAMRRSRED TG
HIZBHERATENESREERS
MEEAAEE AEEEEER
B eREERERABNGEAH
T ¥R 2% LA # 85 AX R A R B0 R TH {5 £
HEZBNAABERS -

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B HRRRIFIZERERF G R A 7



5 %

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

32.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’ liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

32. MEEBHFRELRBEZHIR

TRAVBEEHELENAEHRFEE
B BRASHIFRSED - EEDE
EMBEREBREREC KRR S
MEREEARBGARERERTHE
BERRERSMELZRSRENER -

Amount due Accrued Amounts Obligation
Bank  toa related issue dueto arising from
borrowings party costs  shareholders  a put option Total
Ef Ef ARHE
BITER BELE  EHEORE RR7E ELENER fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFT  ARETR
(Note 26) (Note 25) (Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 27)
(Wi26) (Wit 25) (Hiit24) (Wit 25) (Hit27)
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H — 3,000 — 1,000 — 4,000
Financing cash flows BERSRE 10,562 (3,000) (2,036) 46,464 = 51,990
Settlement of acquisition of an EEWE-—FEENRTE
associate included in investing (GTAREEETE)
cash flows — — — (1,000) — (1,000)
Interest expenses FER% 438 - - - - 438
Non-cash transactions ¥RER5
— Arising from acquisition of 75%  — REMEBEMERE75%
equity interest in Guangzhou i
Weigang - 2,524 - 35,317 - 37,841
— Arising from the acquisition — REMERMER25%
of 25% equity interest in IR (Hri37(0)
Guangzhou Weigang
(Note 37(b)) - - - 12,013 - 12,013
— Deferred issue costs (Note 20)  — ERETRA(H20) - = 2,036 = = 2,036
At 31 December 2017 12017512 A 316 11,000 2,524 — 93,994 — 107,518
Financing cash flows RERLTE (574) (2.433) (2,3%) (43,152) - (48,494)
Interest expenses F8RHE 574 — — 5,457 6,031
Non-cash transactions #RERH
— Loans assignment, novation and  — E3&%  FHf K
capitalisation (Note 37(c)) ERb(lits7c) - = = (47,874) = (47,874)
— Initial recognition of obligation ~ — FAHEE LM
arising from a put option BN
(Note 27) (tor) — — — 94,444 94,444
— Set off with discounted note BEEHBENER
receivable (1,000 — — — — (1,000)
— Deferred issue costs (Note 20)  — ERBEGRA(M#20) - = 4,285 = = 4,285
Net foreign exchange gains ANE Yz FE = (91) = (2,968) = (3,059)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 10,000 — 1,950 — 99,901 111,851
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

33. OPERATING LEASES 33. BXHE
The Group as lessee AEBERHEAEA
Leasing agreements HEG=
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHTFTT AREFr
Minimum lease payments under EERE TR AL
operating leases in respect of office M RIEHER
premises 2,528 1,970
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has REWE MR - ANE BT A HE = =1
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- EAHNTHRRFEAEFREDHIBR
cancellable operating leases fall due as follows: LU
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMHTFTT AREFir
Within one year —F R 2,576 2,451
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZENF(BEEREMSF) 4,859 6,283
7,435 8,734
Operating leases payments represent rentals payables by the SR ERIEAER G ES TR AL E
Group for certain of its office premises. As at 31 December tE S - B20184F K 2017 F 12 A 31
2018 and 2017, leases are negotiated for terms of one to four H ZEHEREHES A —2UE
years and one to five years, respectively. E—ZFA%F o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

36.

EXEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARETFT
Commitments in respect of the MUED X
acquisition of property, plant and B & 5%
equipment Y HE
— contracted for but not provided — BEIHERE
in the consolidated financial RE M BmEATR
statements 1 B 4,557 6,478
35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS EEEKH
The Group did not pledge any assets other than the pledged B B £ 22 3% 2 M) 7R 2018 F 2 2017 FF 12
bank deposits disclosed in Note 22 as at 31 December 2018 A31 BB EMRITERIN - AEEL &
and 2017. BEREMEE -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND B R R P RAER
BALANCES
(i) Amounts due to shareholders and amount due to a (i) FENRRREREMRERSRE

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

related party

Details of balances with shareholders and a related
party are set out in Note 25.

Guarantees in support of the bank borrowing

Details of guarantees in support of the bank borrowing
of the Group provided by a shareholder and a related
party are set out in Note 26.

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details of their
emoluments are disclosed in Note 10. The emoluments
of the directors of the Company are determined
with regard to individual’'s performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark
in the industry and prevailing market condition.

Purchase of patents

Details of patents purchased from a related party, Dr.
Wang is set out in Note 14.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BN R B 2 AR IR ER I
25 e

RITERER

—HRBRR LB A EE R
TTE IR 2 ERFFIEH NI TE 26

TEREEASHH
AEBET2EEARBRARAZ
BHTES HENMEAFEER
MiEE10 - RAREZME 2R E
ARE  AEBRBREFGE
TEHFWEERRITTREE °

BEEA

ERERBEBLT IELREFEMNNH
BENPEE 14 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
consideration payable for acquisition of an associate/a
subsidiary amounting to RMB1,400,000 was offset with

advance to third party.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an
amount due to a shareholder, Mr. Ren, amounting to
RMB12,213,000 was arising from the acquisition of 25%
equity interest in Guangzhou Weigang as part of the

Reorganisation.

On 26 January 2018, a deed of loan assignment and
novation and loan capitalisation has been entered
amongst Mr. Cai, WeiGang Technology, Weigang
Holdings (Hong Kong), Mr. Ren, Jade Fly, Jade Road

and the Company. The details are as follows:

(i Mr. Cai has assigned a loan amounting to
HK$45,270,000 (equivalent to RMB36,734,000)
due from Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong) to
his wholly owned entity, namely, WeiGang

Technology.

(i)  The Company has agreed to undertake the loan
amounting to HK$45,270,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,734,000) due to WeiGang Technology from
Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong).

(iii) WeiGang Technology has assigned part of
the loan due from the Company amounting to
HK$3,962,482 to Jade Fly. After such assignment,
the loan owed by the Company to WeiGang
Technology was HK$41,307,518 (equivalent to
RMB33,518,000).

(iv)  WeiGang Technology has agreed to subscribe
for 3,500,495,099 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at the subscription
price in the sum equivalent to the amount of
HK$41,307,518 (equivalent to RMB33,518,000)
which was satisfied by capitalising the loan
amount of HK$41,307,518 (equivalent to
RMB33,518,000).

37.

ERFRERS

(a)

HE2017F12A31HLEFE - I
B—REEQRWERRZEN
H{B AR 1,400,000 THE=H B
FRETHEE o

B £2017F12H31H Ik F E -
ENBREREEENREBEBARE
12,213,000 7T T3 A U B8 B M 4 %
5% REWEREHEN —EH ) M E
A o

R20184F 1 H26 A @ £h A4 - #iE
B - B ER(ES) - £hE -
AN - AR EAR B F] M B E
HEFRERENMCEE - FEW
T~

() BEAEMEZEHRBERH
BRI E R E R AR
7 ) B 345,270,0007% JT (48
ER AR 36,734,0007T) °

(i) ARFERBEAE#EBZER
(BR)ERESRENER
45,270,000 % 7T (& R A K
# 36,734,000 7T ) °

(i) #ABBREE KL ERAR
Al B 303,962,482 T & %
AFIREBRENERE
41,307,518 B T(HHE R AR
33,518,000 7T) °

(iv) #BREERERREER
% 541,307,518 Jo(#H & 1
A R #33,518,0007T )) R
7N A &) J& 78 5 3,500,495,099
B AR E (5 0.01 /B TTHI B D -
ZREEERBENLER
41,307,518 B m(HHE R AR
# 33,518,000 7T ) BX1S °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (continued)

38.

(c) (continued)

(v)  Mr. Ren has assigned a loan amounting to
HK$13,728,700 (equivalent to RMB11,140,000)
due from Jade Road to his wholly owned entity,
namely, Jade Fly.

(vi) The Company has agreed to undertake the
loan amounting to HK$13,728,700 (equivalent
to RMB11,140,000) due to Jade Fly from Jade
Road. Following the assignment of the loan to
Jade Fly in step (iii) above, the total amount owed
by the Company to Jade Fly is HK$17,691,182
(equivalent to RMB14,356,000).

(vi) Jade Fly has agreed to subscribe for
1,499,497,901 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at the subscription
price in the sum equivalent to the amount of
HK$17,691,182 (equivalent to RMB14,356,000)
which was satisfied by capitalising the loan
amount of HK$17,691,182 (equivalent to
RMB14,356,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

On 30 April 2017, the shareholders of Guangzhou Weigang
have passed the shareholders resolution to implement an
employee incentive scheme to grant share options to the
employees of Guangzhou Weigang. On the same date, share
options are granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou Weigang.
The number of shares awarded shall equal to 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing. If the
Listing does not complete by 31 December 2018, Guangzhou
Weigang or the Company is entitled to amend, terminate or
cancel the employee incentive scheme. The total exercise
price of the share options was fixed at RMB8,750,000.

37.

38.

BEXFBEXRZ#E)
(c) (#&)
vy, EELEBEREZEHEER
BAREZREKRAEKEX
13,728,700 T(HE R AR
#11,140,0007T) °

i

\r
l

(vi) ARFEREBARERNEENR
R H) B 713,728,700 7% JT (18
BN AR 11,140,0007T ) °
% | SCEE (i) P P m 2R TR 8
EENE - ARRIFTRARD
425K I8 £ 17,691,182 7% JT (48
ERARE 14,356,0007T) °

(viii AREREZERREE(BER
17,691,182 B T(HE R AR
14,356,000 7T )) R A A
7] B% 2 #1,499,497,901 %
BEREECONB TH D
ZREBERBERNLER
17,691,182 B L(HE R AR
#5 14,356,000 7T ) BU{5 ©

URHORERNIZNRS

201754 A308 © E M A S H AR R i@
BT ETEEMEEREMNESEER
HERENRFARZER - BR - AEMNE
355 E B EARKE - SBEIRGEE
JERANA R LRGN BB 3.5% © fis &
M &R 2018 F 12 A31 HAIEA + BIE
MBI AR R B BRER - RIEEVERE
BB - BB ATEBETE A A
R 8,750,000 7T °

2018 ANNUAL REPORT %R

215



216

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

On 10 December 2018, the principal terms of the pre initial
public offering share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) were adopted by the Company, and the
share options granted to 35 employees of Guangzhou
Weigang on 30 April 2017 had been approved by the board
of directors of the Company as the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. Upon the adoption of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, a total of 46,666,725 share options were offered for

acceptance by the Company to the 35 employees.

Details of share options granted during the year ended 31

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Number of
Date of grant options Adoption date
R A H BRERE R B
30.4.2017 46,666,725 10.12.2018

201744 HA30H 2018 12 4 10H

The share options granted on 30 April 2017 shall be
exercisable unless and until the Listing and be exercisable in

the following three batches:

(i) the first batch being exercisable after the second

anniversary of the date of the Listing;

(i)  the second batch being exercisable after the third

anniversary of the date of the Listing; and

(iii)  the last batch is being exercisable after the fourth

anniversary of the date of the Listing.

38.

Vesting date

5E B

30.4.2017

201794 A 30H

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

RO RERNZNRE (#)

M2018F 12 108 * A ARIRMEEH X
NHRABEAERETEAEZHR - mA
RAEESEHMER2017F 4 A30H A
B35 BRERENBREERE X
NRABEREREST S - RERAERAFH
BEREREEIE - NARIBMZ3SE
BEREA 46,666,725 1 BB A 1%
e

H ZE20184F K2017F 12831 H It FE
EREEREFEOT

Exercisable Exercise
period price
TEHE THEE
3.1.2021 to 29.4.2027 (Note)
2021F1A3AZE (Ff3E)

20274 H29H

R 2017 F 4 A 30 B % i /88 IR #E B JE &

HE WA ETE XL A0 T=

1DATIE

() BE—PRLTEHE _BFEEAT
fF

(i) MR LETBEHE=ZFBFELAIT
fF: &

(i) ZBE—MHRLETBEPFMNBFREA
1TfE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

RO RERNZNRSE (#)

(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEREBAQNRAEERAEBRERENES
share options held by directors of the Company and 2018F 12 A31 H L FERF A AR RIER
employees of the Group during the year ended 31 December RS -
2018:
Granted Lapsed Exercised Outstanding
Outstanding during during during at
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2018 the year the year the year  31/12/2018
12018 R2018 5
1A18 12A31H
e it AH HATRE  FRERE  FREAM  FRERR i RATHE
(Note b) '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Hrizb) 1 1 1 1 1
(Note c)
(Bizte)
Directors
Ez
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 - - - 3,933
Wik 0.237T 2017545300
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 3,933 - - - 3,933
Bk 0.237T 2017545300
Employees (Note a) HK$0.23 30.4.2017 38,800 - (2,213) - 36,587
{E&(Note a) 0.23787 201754 A30A
Total 46,666 - (2,213) - 44,453
&5t
Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
EXRATRE &
Weighted average
exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
MEFHTER & & &
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 38. LURHDAERBANIGRSE @)
(continued)
Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
Outstanding during during during at
Exercise price Date of grant  at 1/1/2017 the year the year the year  31/12/2017
B20175 R2017 5
1A1H 127318
& RiAH WA ERERE  FREBXR FREAE B
(Note b) ‘000 ‘000 000 000 000
(Mtib) T4 T4 i) T4 47
(Note ¢)
(Histc)
Directors
Bz
Mr. Deng HK$0.23 30.4.2017 — 3,933 — — 3,933
B4 0.23TC 2017%54A30R
Mr. Dong HK$0.23 30.4.2017 — 3,933 — — 3,933
BrE 0.23737 201764 A30R
Employees HK$0.23 30.4.2017 — 38,800 — — 38,800
| 0.23%7 201754 A30A
Total — 46,666 — — 46,666
@5t
Exercisable at the end of
the year Nil
ERAITE &
Weighted average
exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
METHTRE & & & & &
Notes: Wizt -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, two employees of (a) REBE2018FE 12 A1 BILEE  K&EBE

(b)

(c)

the Group left and the corresponding share options granted
were lapsed accordingly.

The exercise price was fixed at RMB8,750,000 for 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing. The
exercise price per share is calculated by dividing the total
exercise price by the total share options granted upon the
Listing.

The share options granted shall equal to 3.5% of the total
number of shares of the Company upon the Listing. The
number of share options granted to each of eligible directors
of the Company and the eligible employees of the Group are
calculated by a pre-determined percentage times the total
number of shares of the Company upon the Listing on 3 January
2019.

(c)

WEEEER EREMNEEBRESERE
KA o

RADA EMERMDEEIS%ME * 1T
BEE A ARES,750,0007T - FRRITEE
THZBITHEERIA EMEE R HAERER
STER/E -

B HBRIERER AR R LM & RG22
3.5% - BT ARAGAERESZRALEE
BREENERESE NIKEABEE L
FIAR 201941 B3 AARRAE L&Y
WM ERL -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 38.

(continued)

The estimated fair values of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
granted on 30 April 2017 are RMB6,305,000.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The major inputs into the model were as

follows:

Grant date

R B

Exercise price
TEE

Expected volatility
TRHDK R
Expected life
TAHAF 5

Risk-free rate

42 e 1) ==
Expected dividend yield
TRHRE =X

Note: The exercise price was fixed at RMB8,750,000 for 3.5% of the
total number of shares of the Company upon the Listing.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the comparable companies’ share price over the
previous 10 years. The expected life used in the model has
been stated in the option scheme. The risk free rate was
referred to the China sovereign bond yield with the term close
to the option life as at the grant date.

As the vesting of the share options is contingent on the
success listing of the Company, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Listing is probable upon or after the
date of the Listing Committee hearing of the Stock Exchange
is passed and as a result, share-based payment expenses
of RMB2,160,000 is recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing date.

RO RERNZNRSE (#)

R2017F4 A30H XA AHESHE
BEAZHERENGFTAARBEAEARE
6,305,000 7T °

ArBEEA-BEAREEERAMAE
B - RRANEEHAREBELT

30 April 2017
201794 A 30H
Note

B eE

60.4%
10 years

104
3.5%

0.0%

Hiat : TEBERADQ R L&D B E3.5%m
T IEEEERARYS8,750,000 T °

HHREDRBEATELBEARRERBEE
10FRESLRIRERE - ZRAMEMRTE
HIF HE NIRRT 8 - R R X2
EhEIEERREE  FHEBREAN
BT B ERESS -

ERBERENSBIUAR AR AT K
WEM: RRBAEERE RERTE
MZEESRMEAK 2B EMBEAEE
BB MR E 2201812 A31H k5
EERERUARMDAEERNIMEAIARE
2,160,000 L( =T —+F : &) o

BRI ERBEERAFEEABRETS
RHBRENROAETFEEARARN
£ AR ARE BT 30% °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. XD AKMEARFE

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

REmESR - NA R B ERHEERA 2 M
BRBFBEEHN T °
Proportion of nominal value

of issued capital/registered
capital held by the Group

AEEERERT
BA/EMER
HEZBAL
Date and place of Issued and fully As at 31 December
incorporation/ paid share capital/ W12A31H Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment registered capital 2018 2017 activities
TMRL/ RIAH ERTRAR
HEAR BB Rt 2 BA/EHER 2018 2017F EXBEH
% %
Directly held:
HERA -
WeiGang Environment 11 May 2017 US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment
®ABRR BVI holding
2017465A118 1% REER
RREBRES
Jade Far 16 May 2017 US$1,001 100.00 100.00  Investment
AE BVI holding
201745A 168 1,001 %7 REER
RREBRES
Indirectly held:
FERE -
Weigang Holdings (Hong Kong) 19 September 2016~ HK$10,000 100.00 100.00  Investment
HBIER(BH) Hong Kong holding
20169 A19H 10,000 /87T RERR
B
Jade Road 28 October 2015 HK$10,000 100.00 100.00 Investment
AR Hong Kong holding
201510 A28 H 10,000/ 7T RERR
B
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.
COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREH

Guangzhou Weigang
7

Xinjiang Wosen
MEAR

Shenzhen Xinnengji
RYIFT A

Date and place of
incorporation/
establishment
AR,/ B B
Rt

15 July 2009
The PRC

200947151
e

17 November 2011
The PRC

2011F11 178
e

24 November 2016
The PRC

201611424
e

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTRARE
R/ MRER

As at 31 December 2018:
RMB50,000,000 (issued
and fully paid up capital)
RMB400,000,000
(registered capital)

R2018%12H31 8 :
AR#50,000,0007 :
(BEITRARRER)

AR 400,000,000 70
Gaii-zy)

RMB5,000,000

AR 5,000,000 7T

As at 31 December 2018:
RMB14,400,000 (issued
and fully paid up capital)
RMB28,000,000 (registered
capital) (Note a)

R20185F 12318 :
AR%: 14,400,000 7T
(BBITRARER)
AR 28,000,0007C
(M ER) (Heta)

RATNM B A RFFREE)

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital/registered

capital held by the Group
AEERECRT
BA/ERER
HEZADL
As at 31 December
W12A31H8
2018 2017

2018 F 2017 F
% %

90.00 100.00

100.00 100.00

100.00 72.86

Principal
activities

TEEH

Providing
solutions for
solid waste
treatment

REERENRE
BANR

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

REEREREIR
R

Providing
research and
development of
environmental
protection
technologies
and facilities

RERREIR
R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.

COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREHE

Chaozhou Xinnengji
FM AT A

Guangdong Lvhuan

ERAR

Weierneng Environmental

BRI

Date and place of

incorporation/
establishment

FERER LRI A

R

16 March 2017
The PRC
201743H16H

HE

28 August 2017

The PRC

201768281
e

25 July 2018
The PRC

201867261
e

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BRTRARE
R/ EMRER

Deregistered (Note b)

BEHHED)

RMB60,000 (issued and
fully paid up capital)
RMB10,000,000
(registered capital)

AR¥60,0007T
(BETRBREX)
AR# 10,000,000 7%
(FERE&ER)

As at 31 December 2018:
RMB2,000,000 (issued
and fully paid capital)
RMB20,000,000 (registered
capital) (Note c)

R2018%F 12317 :
AR#2,000,0007C
(BRTRBRES)
AR 20,000,0007C
(EMEX) (Mt c)

RATNM B A RFFREE)

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital/registered

capital held by the Group

AEEREERT
BAE/ERER
HAEZEDT
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
% %
N/A 90.00
TER
51.00 51.00
51.00 N/A
TER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

None

On 14 September 2018, Guangzhou Weigang acquired the
remaining 27.14% equity interest in Shenzhen Xinnengji from
Party A at consideration of RMB1.

As of 31 December 2018, an amount of RMB14,400,000 had
been paid to Shenzhen Xinnengji as capital injection by the
Group. As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding amount of
RMB13,600,000 has not yet been paid by the Group.

Chaozhou Xinnengji was deregistered on 17 December 2018.

Weierneng Environmental was established as a limited liability
company under the laws of the PRC on 25 July 2018 and an
indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which
is owned as to 51% by Shenzhen Xinnengji and 49% by an
independent third party, Party D. According to the articles of
association of Weierneng Environmental, the capital injection of
the shareholders should be paid to Weierneng Environmental no
later than 31 August 2037.

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of RMB1,000,000 has
been paid to Weierneng Environmental by the Group and Party
D, respectively. The outstanding amount of RMB9,200,000 and
RMB8,800,000 has not been paid by the Group and Party D,
respectively. As at 31 December 2018, Weierneng Environmental
has not commenced any business.

of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

39. AR AINMBRBFEE)

Hpi

(a) MR2018F9H 148 BMNEBUAARE
1T S B A R AU 7% I3 88 1% R 64

27.14% R A s ©

#HZE2018F 12 A31 8 * A£LEE RFRIIFT
BE 15 37 1+ A R 514,400,000 TT1E BT & ©
R2018F 12 8318  "EBHMERE

15 A AR 13,600,000 7T ©

(b)  FAMTHFAEIRE R 20184 12 B 17 HESH ©

(c) FEREERRFERN20184F7 A25 BREFE L
BN A—RERAR - BAQBIREEIE
2EMBAR - BRYFREBNBLIE=7
THDREAS1% R 49% Wz - RIEBER
ML RRABEZERMA - REEEER
20374 8 A 31 BRI T FRIBALIRIR ©

HZE2018F12A31 8 AEERT HEH
Il 17 24 R Ak 3R 4R 32+ A FE ¥ 1,000,000 7T °
REBEAT HHAZMTHSEIBIRARE
9,200,000t & A K % 8,800,000 7T ° & =
2018 12 A31 A  BRALIRRHRARME

[BES R

BB QRN FRBETEMBERZES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

39. AL TBHIME R RFS )

BEERFEZERESNID2EMBRAAF

material non-controlling interests 15

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

TR N2018F 12 31 B ANEE %
BEAFEREZNIEZEMNBE AR 2

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests as at

224

31 December 2018:

Place of
incorporation

1

Proportion
of ownership
interests and
voting rights

held by

Profit
allocated to

Accumulated

and principal non-controlling  non-controlling  non-controlling

place of interests interests interests

Name of subsidiary business 31/12/2018 31/12/2018 31/12/2018
FERES
PR e R

390 BEHHE BT IER Rt

1t B R RRERE Rz MR FERER

TEEE 2018 2018 £ 2018

WEAREH 12 12A318 12A318 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTFr ARETFT

Guangzhou Weigang The PRC 10% 8,490 27,037

B4R i

As at 31 December 2017, non-wholly owned subsidiaries

of the Group with non-controlling interests are individually

immaterial.

R2017%F 12 A31 8 - NEBTEA IFER
HEREEEWMBARMERETEK o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. XATMKMEARFEA
COMPANY (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEREZNIEZEMNBEATF
material non-controlling interests (continued) & (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's AT FrE 22018 12 H31 BAEBHA
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests as at 31 BRI RS A M E A R 2 BB 5 &
December 2018 is set out below. The summarised financial B o THIBLM B S E R 25 & B R E H AT
information below represents amounts before intragroup ZERE o
eliminations.
Guangzhou Weigang BEM#EE

At 31 December

2018

MR2018F

12H31H

RMB’000

ARKEFIT

Current assets MENE E 392,878
Non-current assets ERBEAE 97,644
Current liabilities mEaE 200,663
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 19,485
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNRATHER ANEEEZ 243,337
Non-controlling interests of Guangzhou Weigang JE& N 4 78 FE 1 AR A 2 27,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. XARIMMEARFE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFEREZNIEZEMNB AT
material non-controlling interests (continued) (&)
2018
2018 &
RMB’000
AR TFr
Revenue WA 475,632
Expenses X (393,518)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & RFE K& 2 E W HEEE 82,114

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable 2N %A A FE(5 7

to owners of the Company RkEmKmRE 73,624
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable B/ 47 JE2 IR R 25 FE A5 A1 B Kz
to the non-controlling interests of Guangzhou HEW AT
Weigang 8,490
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  FRFE & 2 E KNS5 82,114
2018
2018 &
RMB’000
ARMFr
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of BT B 4
Guangzhou Weigang IR R AR S =
Net cash outflow from operating activities CEEREENRES T L FE (50,843)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREEHEENRES T L FE (45,092)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEDEENRESTAFE 92,870
Net cash outflow REmtF58 (3,065)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

40.

41.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 January 2019, 312,471,000 ordinary shares with a par
value of HK$0.05 each of the Company were issued at a price
of HK$0.88 per share by way of public offer. On the same
date, the shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Upon the successfully listing of the Company, all the rights
granted to Orient Landscape pursuant to the terms of the
investment agreement, except for the profit compensation

right, were automatically terminated.

40. HEHEREH

M2019% 1 A3R » A 2 312,471,000
PG REE0.05 BT BIIAAREE
%088 BTTHERET - AR - AR
AR RSP AR £ 7 ©

ARRBMRIN LW - RBIRE W (FK A
RABEME TR HMENS BRI - 1E
B EREERID -

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 4. XARMBERRERRZE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KB AR rRE 2,168 8
Property, plant and equipment Y BB Rk 56 =
2,224 8
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H b fE W 5K78 6,580 2,036
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YT B A R FRIB 54,205 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHREES 1,275 —
62,060 2,036
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accrued expenses H Ath B SRIE K FEAT RS 8,028 1,650
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHE A RIZRIA 5,386 6,530
13,414 8,180
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A 31 HILFE

41. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

41.

RATHERRRE @B E)

2018 2017

2018 2017 %

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARKFr

NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) ABEE(&fE)EE 48,646 (6,144)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAER

LIABILITIES REBEE 50,870 (6,136)

NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) BE(AE)FE 50,870 (6,136)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE

Share capital AR 7N 41,413 —

Reserves ki 9,457 (6,136)

Equity attributable to owners FiN/NEIEF =N
of the Company FE(hHER 50,870 (6,136)
TOTAL EQUITY (DEFICIT) (4 B 50,870 (6,136)

WEIGANG ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY HOLDING GROUP LIMITED 4B HRRRIFIZERERF G R A 7



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

41.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND a1, AT FIEAR R R Ak 488 (42)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KNBREESE
Share
Share option Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
REE BRERE Hith it R ER A%
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETFT
At 18 May 2017 R2017%5 74188
(date of incorporation) (FEfAkz &) — — — —
Loss and total comprehensive HIRERE K
expense for the period 2EAZEE — — — (6,144) (6,144)
Acquisition of a subsidiary e 1= — — 8 8
At 31 December 2017 2017512 831 B — — 8 (6,144) (6,136)
Loss and total comprehensive ERERE K&
expense for the year 2EATEE — — — (10,150) (10,150)
Issue of ordinary shares to AERAREEARES
pre-IPO investors, net of BIEER
share issue cost (IR BT A) 16,281 = = - 16,281
Issue of ordinary shares by ~ BBEREMLETEBER
loan capitalisation 7,302 — — — 7,302
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HERARELEE AR
share based payment BERNTH — 2,160 == — 2,160
At 31 December 2018 ®20184F12A31RH 23,583 2,160 8 (16,294) 9,457
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“AGM”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“CG Code”

“China” or “PRC”

“Company” or “we”

“Director(s)”

“Global Offering”

“Group”
“HKSCC”

“HK$” or “HKD”

the forthcoming annual general meeting for

the year 2018 of the Company

the audit committee under the Board

board of directors of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code as set out

in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

the People’'s Republic of China, but for
the purposes of this annual report and
for geographical reference only (unless
otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan,

Macau and Hong Kong

an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 18
May 2017 under the names of “Weigang
Environmental Technology Holding Group
Limited” and “#BINERBRIZRERBR A
Al”, and registered as a non-Hong Kong
company under Part 16 of the Companies

Ordinance

director(s) of the Company

the offer of the Company’s Shares for
subscription as described in the section
headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in

the Prospectus

the Company and its subsidiaries and

operating entities

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for
the time being of Hong Kong
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GLOSSARY
Bx

“Hong Kong”

“IFRS”

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“Latest Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Memorandum
and Articles of
Association”

“Model Code”

“Nomination

Committee”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC
the International Financial
Standards,
and interpretations promulgated by the

Reporting
which include standards
International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and the International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC)

any entity or person who is not a connected
person of the Company within the meaning

ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

24 April 2019, being the latest practicable
date for the purpose of ascertaining certain
information contained in this annual report

prior to its publication

3 January 2019 on which the Shares were

listed on the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended from time to time

the amended and restated memorandum
of articles of association and articles of
association of our Company, conditionally
adopted on 20 May 2018 with effect from
the Listing Date, and as amended from time

to time
Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

the nomination committee under the Board
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GLOSSARY
B=

“Period”

“PBOC”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

“Prospectus”

“Remuneration

Committee”

“RMB” or

“Renminbi”

“Reorganisation”

“SFO”

“SFC”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shares”

“Stock Exchange”

wop

from the Listing Date to the date of this

annual report

People’s Bank of China

the pre-IPO share option scheme of our
Company as approved by the Board on 10
December 2018 with effective immediately
prior to the completion of the Global

Offering

the prospectus of the Company dated 19
December 2018 in connection with the Hong
Kong public offering of the Company

the remuneration committee under the Board

the lawful currency of the PRC

the reorganisation of the Group in
preparation for Listing as set out in
the subsection headed “History and
Reorganisation and Group Structure -
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
as amended, supplemented or otherwise

modified from time to time

the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong

holder(s) of the Shares

shares in the share capital of the Company,

with a nominal value of HK$0.05 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

per cent.
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